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CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . (gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee meeting is
now in session. Today is March 24 th and the time is 9:02. Good morning,
Members, and thank you for attending. . .the first district meeting in Kihei. Nice
to see you here bright and early this morning.
COUNCILMEMBER

: . . .(laughter). . .

CHAIR PONTANILLA: At this time, the Chair would like to recognize the Members
that are present this morning. We do have Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Good morning, Chair.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning. Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning. Member Kaho' ohalahala.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning. Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Aloha. Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning. Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Good morning and aloha, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning. And joining us later will be Member Johnson,
and excused at this time is Member and Chairman Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The Chair would like to recognize the...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: . . . Excused.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, and, and Wayne Nishiki, he's excused at this time. The
Chair would like to introduce the Administration personnel. This morning we do
have personnel from the Planning Department. Upfront with us is the Budget
Director Fred Pablo, along with Director Jeff Hunt, and Deputy Director
Kathleen Aoki and, as always, our First Deputy Corporation Counsel is
Traci Fujita Villarosa. Supporting the Committee this morning, our two
Legislative Analysts, Ms. Gayle Revels, as well as Scott Kaneshina, and our
Committee Secretary is Yvette Bouthillier this morning. Members, we do have
several people-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Good morning . . . (inaudible).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --that have signed up for public testimony this morning, but
before I call on the people that want to testify this morning, I'd just like to
welcome Member Nishiki. Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: . . . Sorry.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . Just a few ground rules. Public testimony will be accepted
on today's agenda, which is the Mayor's proposal. You have three minutes to
provide public testimony with one minute to conclude. Before we take public
testimony, though, if everyone can turn off their cell phones or put it on silent
mode at this time. And for those that are testifying, if you can provide us with
your name and the organization that you represent, the Committee would
appreciate that. So, Members, the, the first person that signed up for public
testimony this morning is Patricia Cadiz. Patricia will be followed by Tom Cook.
NOTE: Pause while Ms. Cadiz approached the podium.

. . .BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY . .
MS. CADIZ: . . . Good morning.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Good morning.
MS. CADIZ: Thank you very much for hearing our testimony this morning. I want to
start by saying I really appreciate the gravity of the situation of the budget this
year. I'm here to talk about the, the UH Sea Grant Coastal Hazard Extension
Agent position, which is a shared position partially funded by the Federal Sea
Grant Program. Zoe Norcross held this position for several years, and my interest
in this is...I think you've all heard me . . . (laughter). . . up here testifying before
about beach permits for windsurfing activities, but my other interest is beach
preservation. And Zoe Norcross was an invaluable resource in trying to obtain
the necessary County and State permits, and knowledge that it takes to replenish
a, a beach properly. So Zoe was our go-to person, basically, the one and only
person that we could really go to for a lot of information. There is a County
employee, it was Thorne Abbott. Now Jim Buika has taken that position, but they
are plenty busy with other things. So this position not only is leveraged by the
fact that it's partially funded by the Federal monies, but in so many instances,
including the situation that I'm in, the permit that we obtained with her help,
which is Tara Miller is the one holding the position now . . .(clears throat).. .
excuse me, the project is all paid for with private funds. So with a little bit of
help from the government side, with permits in place, the guidance and oversight
in place, the private money kicks in, and then the project is done. And we hire a
local surveyor, we hire a local bulldozer driver, we hire local bulldozer equipment
rental, we hire a trucking company, we buy the sand from Ameron, we buy our
insurance locally. And all that money, of course, is part of keeping the jobs going
and keeping people off the unemployment rolls.
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. . . So this position that...the UH Coastal Hazard Extension Agent, is...it's the
one position that is truly charged with oversight and management of our
shorelines. And I think you all know that our shorelines are sort of in a critical
state of needing attention and oversight, and they are so much a part of what we
are--from running beach activities, to attracting tourists, to our way of life here on
Maui--that to have those beaches managed properly and have these activities that
she facilitates the permits for executed properly, I think is critically important. So
for the...what, I know every dollar seems like a lot nowadays, but what, what you
invest in this position is. . .the return on that investment is, in many cases, maybe
a million dollars worth of private funds invested back into the to the County -MS. REVELS: Three minutes.
MS. CADIZ: --so a great return on the investment. Thank you. Any questions?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, any questions for Ms. Cadiz at this time?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. And thank you, Ms. Cadiz, for being
here today. My question to you is you mentioned earlier that it was a partially
Federally funded position, and I understand the State is also involved. Is that
because the Fed, the money goes through the State, and then to us; is that how that
works?
MS. CADIZ: You know, I'm not exactly sure of the mechanics of it.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MS. CADIZ: My understanding is that historically the, the position has been shared by
County level and Federal, and then there's another position at the State level
that's shared by Federal and State money.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
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MS. CADIZ: And that position's been held by a gentleman name Dolan Eversole. He's
sort of a State version of this one that we're talking about here at the County
level. So when it's time to do anything in that Shoreline Management Area,
anything vegetation mauka, from the vegetation line mauka is County jurisdiction,
and you need County guidance. Anything from the vegetation line, line makai is
State jurisdiction, and you need State guidance. Zoe and this position here, I
think Tara will tell you she's got... she has background, a multi-faceted
background. She even understands the Federal rules and guidelines. Putting all
of those agencies...putting the knowledge that it takes to get to...to do what's
right for all the agencies that actually have jurisdiction in that area is a really
valuable resource. I think there's actually 13 agencies that have jurisdiction in the
Shoreline Management Area.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well, thank you and...
MS. CADIZ: And every one of them has got their own set of rules, so.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I'll, I'll ask on behalf...on behalf of the
Committee, Mr. Chair, if we send a letter to the Administration and maybe get an
explanation of where these funds are coming from, because I know they're
shared, and I, and I, I was told by State and County, now you're saying Federal.
So, you know, maybe a clarification so we understand better.
MS. CADIZ: I bet when Tara Miller testifies she'll she able to clarify it.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MS. CADIZ: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. For your information, Mr. Victorino, that's part of
the questions that we're going to be asking the Planning Department this morning.
As you know...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. I'll hold my questions until then,
Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: As you know, last year we had some issues regarding the
Coastal Management Program and how do we fund those positions. . .knowing
that the State is part of the pass-through from Federal grants.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So we'll take up that issue this morning. The second person to
sign up for testimony is Tom Cook followed by Barbara Guild.
. . . Tom Cook?
MS. GUILD. I know some of you...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I'm sorry, Barbara. Barbara, Tom Cook is the next person, and
you follow Mr. Cook.
NOTE: Silence.

MS. GUILD.

I'm Barbara Guild. Am I on now?

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No, not yet.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: You're next.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: . . .(inaudible). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: You're after Tom Cook.
MS. GUILD. Okay. Sony.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: . . .(laughter). . .
NOTE: Pause while Mr. Cook approached the podium.

MR. COOK: . . . Good morning, Council Chair, Council Members. My name is
Tom Cook. I'm here to speak as an individual, as a local business owner. . .about
the budget. I'm glad to have the opportunity to come and discuss this. I've been
looking forward to your getting into this discussion because it is so relevant for
the mechanics and the operation of all aspects of our community and affects
everybody.
. . . You know, I am a local businessman living with and managing this economic
downturn. I have 29 employees and had worked through the last downturn when
the Japanese money dried up. Pretty much our construction company, which
works principally in the high-end market, but we've also done affordable, has
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worked steadily for the last 18 years, 19 years that I've been a licensed general
contractor. And I've always...my philosophy is every problem is an opportunity.
The bigger the problem, the bigger the opportunity. I'm going to be pretty harsh
on my statements today as far as the management of Maui...my opinion of the
management of Maui County and how... and my opinion, I think that the County
has manifested or compounded our economic challenges that we have right now.
I'll spare you, but you can look at Hawaii Business Building Industry Magazine.
Over the last five years, I've, I've had a couple of articles in it saying about, you
know, this isn't going to last forever. The boom and the County needs to be
proactive in their entitlement process and their review process, and don't be so
afraid of overdevelopment because it won't last forever. It never does. I'd give
the County...in an executive summary, I'd give it a D...D+. I think the biggest
problem right...getting to the guiding principals, and the mission and goals, the
first statement--find a balance between supporting a strong economy and
preserving the qualities that make Maui so special. That's a problem statement. I
think our plan that I testified about holding off on is similar in that regard. It
sounds good. Basically, we have severe polarizations and dysfunction and the
supporting a strong economy and preserving the qualities that make Maui so
special.
. . . I'm a builder. I'm not a bad guy. And I can build whatever you want and
whatever you need--be it a school, a house, a road, a sewer system. And the
contribution the industry makes and the comments and input that we have to
interact with government needs to be heard. You know, how much money did we
not get encumbered and has to be returned from the Federal stimulus money for
CIPs? That's really the department heads and the management of the County,
that's their responsibility to be prepared. We have things that need to be done.
Are we capable of implementing these things and managing this money? You
know, the park improvements, I'd like to see an audit of the fees that were
collected for the last 15 years on the island. I know from a couple of projects that
I worked on, you're talking about a phenomenal amount of money that has been
charged to projects for parks.
MS. REVELS: Three minutes.
MR. COOK: Okay. I'll put the rest of itself...I'll summarize on this. The County shoots
itself in the foot, and we need to be more proactive in working in partnership with
the government. And I'd like to say in support of MEO, and the Main Street
Association, and the non-profits. . .I am supportive of these companies I
think...or organizations. They're money well spent by the County. And it's
tempting...like I want to...you know, if I cut a secretary 'cause I can't afford her,
but I need her. So don't, don't be overly harsh. I'd rather see you bill...get...take
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on more debt, raise the water fees, raise the sewer fees. You know, make us,
make us pay our way, but don't undermine the essence of the community, which
are these non-profits. They need the money. You might not have it. Get
creative. Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for Mr. Cook?
Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Real quickly. Mr. Cook, could we have a copy of
your testimony? Is that possible?
MR. COOK: Yes, I will summarize it and submit it.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, thank you. And then secondly...and thank
you for, for, for your comments as far as the non-profits are concerned, and, and
we...you know, we, we always work hard in that respect; however, there are a big
segment of our community cannot afford-MR. COOK: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --the "dollar" that we talk about even for
transportation. So it's easier said than done, but that's our job to get it done.
So...but I thank you for your manao and thank you for all what you bring to the
table.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Molina, followed by Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Thank you, Mr. Chair. Good morning,
Mr. Cook, and thank you for being here and for your testimony. And it's
interesting in your testimony you mention your support for the Tri-Isle Main
Street Association, and they, I guess, get their grants from the Planning
Department, which we're reviewing today.
MR. COOK: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Just to get a clarification. You mentioned a very low
grade in terms of dealing with the County. Can you specify...now you deal in
particular with which department the most in this County?
MR. COOK: I deal with Developmental Services, Planning, Water, really on the
building permit portion of it. I've always said this--Maui County has really good
people working, and it's a matter of...to me it's the management of the people
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that is sometimes lacking, and that goes to very the top. The buck stops at the top.
Water and Planning, to me...I think Department--to answer your question,
Department of Water costs this County a fortune in lost commerce, a
phenomenal, unbelievable embarrassment of money. I mean I can't overstate
that enough. It's, it's, it's, it's obscene. The Planning Department, I have support
for. I don't...I mean I know that they say they got...has accelerated the timeline.
If you in an SMA or if you're in an Ag lot, you can get bogged down in needing a
farm plan and definition of what a farm plan is and, and what not. If you're in an
SMA area... if, if... you're going to get bogged down. If it has any type of... you
know, is it in the plan? If it has one layer, but not all the layers, it could take a
long time to get through the process. If you have a lot in Kahului with a water
meter, you'll probably get a pennit. . .you know, 60 to 90 days. But if you have a
lot in Haiku or in Kula and, you know, you...and you're building a legal farm
dwelling. . .that could be very contentious. So...
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Mr. Cook, if I could just stop you right there?
Mr. Chair, and I know we're focusing on Planning today, so I'll just craft this next
question, very simple question, related to Planning. I'm looking at their
Administration and Planning Program, Accomplishments for Calendar Year 2009,
and they're stating, and I'm reading verbatim: with the addition of staff,
cross-training of existing staff, and streamlining the permit review process, the
Division was able to improve its response time. Subdivision review improved
from a backlog of one to two months to no backlog on new applications. And as
for the "older" applications, the response time has improved from three to four
months to 30 days. And I remember in your testimony on Friday, you mentioned
something about older applications and the response time. Do you agree with
assessment from the Department that they have improved on response time, in
general, for permit review applications?
MR. COOK: I, I'd like to give...you know, I'm always trying to be positive because I'm
a positive guy. I'd like to give them a positive stroke. I would, I would
debate...the number of applications have severely diminished, so, of course, it's
going to be a faster time. So I don't think they can take credit for necessarily for
subdivision applications being done quicker if you have a fraction of them. And
as far as the permit review, I think that they have made strides. I encourage you
to fund them--and this is challenging to find the money--I encourage you to fund
them to do what they need to do, and I encourage you to hold them accountable.
I don't necessarily agree with that. I think it's an overly rosy statement.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you, Chair, and thank you, Mr. Cook, for being
here this morning. I'm listening with interest to your statements about, first of all,
the non-profits and your support for them. You know, you're preaching to the
choir as far as I'm concerned. I totally understand the value of that, and I hate to
see us cut it to the point where we cause them not to be able to serve people at this
time, particularly when a lot of people are in need. That's the Catch-22 here--is
when we don't have the money, people are in trouble and need more help, and
how do we find that money, which you addressed, and you talked about raising
rates, and fees, and taxes, and whatever. You know, as lawmakers, it's very
difficult for us because although we see the sense in that, there's the...you know
how it is, for every person who supports what we do, there's another person who
feels that all we want is money-grabbing people that never have enough. How do
we deal with those folks? That's our problem--is, you know, we know what
needs to be done, we're willing to do it, but then there's this huge backlash of
people who say I can't afford it, and I'm not giving those guys any more money.
And they don't seem to understand that our County is growing, and we're not
like we were in 1950. We are a totally new place and government has to be larger
in order to take care of a larger community and more problems. Comment,
please.
MR. COOK: I would say the response is the government needs to demonstrate its
efficiency so that we're going to raise...we're going to raise rates to cover costs,
and we're going to demonstrate that we're using your money prudently. I think
part of that backlash is people going, you know, I don't want to give you money,
it's like throwing it away. The County has the opportunity to print money.
. . . You know how you do that?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: How?
MR. COOK: Land entitlement. Okay? And I'm not saying sell the island out. You
have the capacity to significantly increase your property tax base through the
entitlement process. And if you would do it either thumbs up or thumbs down on
projects, in an expedient manner, so people would know what is possible and not
possible, then you could be able to address this. I advocate the high-end market,
not because I'm sucking up the rich people. It's because I think that
they... although they, they take a lot, they bring a lot. Okay. And, and it's
just...it's the economics of it, efficiency, and accountability. You have the power
to make laws. With that, you have the responsibility, you should be accountable.
And that's what I would respond. And, and if people don't want to raise the rates,
then they have to be responsible to accept the consequences.

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
March 24, 2010

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much for your manao. It's always good
to have another head offering us their input. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions for the testifier?
MR. COOK: Thank you for all your efforts, please keep it up.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Tom. The next testifier is Barbara Guild.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: . . .(inaudible) . . .(laughter). . .
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: . . .(inaudible). . .
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: . . .(laughter). . .
MS. GUILD.
So I've come to talk to you about the lack of your putting in the budget
funding for a. . .for a position that is quite important to Maui. And that is for the
same thing that Patty Cadiz talked about. And it's a, a position called...the
position's name is coastal processes or coastal hazard specialist. And the Federal
government, through NOAA, pays 10 percent or 20 percent of the salary of this
position, and the Maui County, in the past, has paid 80 percent of it. And it's
been taken out of the budget. And it really needs to be a position that is funded
by the County government because, as Patty pointed out, the position is necessary
for maintaining our, our coasts, our beaches, and the places where the road runs
next to the beach. And my reason for being here is that for the last 15 years at
Sugar Cove, which is here on the North Shore, I've been involved in beach
nourishment. And that means that we've hauled in material to put in front of the
seawall that we had to build because the land was eroding so rapidly. And the
reason that the land was eroding there, in case some of you don't know, is
because they mined the sand from that shoreline for about 100 years to make lime
out of it in the lime kiln to process the sugar cane. And so, they had actually
taken away the shoreline protection. And by taking away that protection, it
caused the land to erode and the beaches to go away. And this has happened
throughout Hawaii, everywhere that they grew sugar cane. So
the...understanding coastal processes--and this position requires a person that has,
I believe, a master's degree in coastal processes. And also, this position in the
past has been very instrumental in allowing private people, as we are at the Sugar
Cove condominium, where I live, to get a permit to do this. And there are many
government jurisdictions over the shoreline, as you probably know. Makai of the
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shoreline is the ocean and the Army Corps of Engineers, and the State, and other
agencies are involved. But when you're on the land part, then the County has the
jurisdiction. And then so, in order to, to rehabilitate coastlines you have to have a
permit, and it's quite important to have someone who is in the government that
can direct private people to do this.
MS. REVELS: Three minutes.
MS. GUILD. Okay. Are there any...well, do I have another couple minutes? Okay.
The other thing is that since this is partially funded by the Federal government
and the counties or the State, but in this case, the County is required to support the
other part. And if we're going to be having a stimulus program and involved in it,
then we have to do our part. We can't just let the Federal government do it.
Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing
none, Ms. Guild, this morning, we...
MS. GUILD Okay. Thank you very much. I hope you consider reinstating this
position.
.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Ms. Guild, this morning we will be reviewing with the
Department when we get to the Coastal Management Grant. It is a grant that
grants the positions.
MS. GUILD. I'm sorry, but I can't hear you . . . (laughter). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I'm sorry. When we go to the grants area, the coastal
management group is funded through grants from the State, as well as the Federal
government. So we will be discussing that particular issue this morning.
. . . Okay.
MS. GUILD. All right.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Next testifier is Darren Okimoto.
NOTE: Pause while Mr. Okimoto approached the podium.

MR. OKIMOTO: . . . Good morning, Council Chair, Council Members. My name is
Darren Okimoto. I serve as the Extension Leader for the University of Hawaii
Sea Grant College Program. I oversee an Extension faculty of about 24 staff that
includes Tara Owens. And just to let you know a little bit of background. You
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know, the University of Hawaii Sea Grant College Program, it's, it's a
university-based program with Federal partner, is NOAA. We receive funding
from NOAA every year to run our activities. We support research programs. We
also have some funding to support extension activities. And so, that...out of that
sort of Extension component from the NOAA funds, that's how we support
various types of Extension Agents, leverage those funds with other sources, such
as County funding, to supports these different types of activities.
. . . And so, one of the things I just wanted to inform you about is that, you know,
this has been a longstanding relationship with the County. We have been in
partnership with the County for over 14 years now. The main purpose of this
project is to provide technical assistance and the latest scientific information to
County departments so that they can make informed decision-making based on
the latest scientific formation. One of the other things you should be proud of is
that this program has actually spawned similar programs with Kauai County. For
the past two years, the County has been supporting a similar position to provide
similar activities for, for that County there. And then this past year, in September,
Hawaii County also made a request to partner with us to establish a similar
position on the Big Island to deal with various types of coastal processes and
coastal hazards, issues there. So, so it's a good program. It provides needed
value to the various stakeholders that it serves. I have written testimony here that
I won't cover all in my, my allotted time, but one of the things I want you to
consider is that for the current grant that Sea Grant has for Fiscal Year 2010, there
was a gap there when Zoe left us, and it took us about six months to hire Tara on
board. And so, if you folks were to extend the project deadline beyond June 30 th ,
we would have an additional six months of time actually for, for Tara to serve in
this capacity and that would give us also time to go ahead and look for additional
funding sources to keep her on board. So we're working hard actively to look for
other types of funding sources to help and keep this position because it's so
valued. So that's all I have at this time. I'll be happy to answer any questions
that you have.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. And thank you, Mr. Okimoto, for that
explanation. Now that kind of clears the picture in my mind.
MR. OKINIOTO: Sure.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. And you mentioned for the six months
that...between Zoe and Tara -MR. OKIMOTO: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --you had, those funds weren't expended, I guess,
is what you're saying.
MR. OKIMOTO: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And so that funds are still available. So if we went
from June 30 th to January, those six months, we could cover that individual.
MR. OKIMOTO: Yes. Yes, we could extend that. We could cover Tara out, say to the
next January of next year.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
MR. OKIMOTO: And that way it would give us...buy us time to look for other funding
sources.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And, and, and, and real quickly. How is it looking
for other sources, because I know the Feds...I mean cutbacks are starting to come
down.
MR. OKIMOTO: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Last year was spend money like, you know, crazy
to get things. Now, they're saying we got to cut back. How is it looking in your
perspective?
MR. OKIMOTO: Well, I think we've got two possible sources of funding to, to tap into.
We recently attended this meeting called, called PRiMO in Waikiki It's the
Pacific Risk Management Ohana. And I spoke to the director there. And so, he,
he expressed, informally, some interest to support projects here on Maui, and he
would, might be able to provide some funding as well. So, so we do have some,
some irons in the fire that could potentially provide funding.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you. And I guess it's. . .when we
review it with Planning, we'll see what we can do. Thank you, Mr. Okimoto.
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MR. OKIMOTO: Yeah, thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Okimoto, please clarify. Did you say the
County of Maui already received grant monies from your organization for six
months of Fiscal Year 2010?
MR. OKIMOTO: Oh, no, it was actually the County of Maui provided us the grant
funding to support the position. And because it took us six months to hire Tara on
board, right, we haven't expended six months of those funds. So there's still...we
can extend the project beyond the June 30 th deadline for another six months
because of that gap in not filling the position.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So that money that the County provided you, I don't know how
much, was it matched by the Federal government?
MR. OKIMOTO: Well, it's, it's matched, see...no, we match that. So -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, you match.
MR. OKIMOTO: --it's about $80,000 that the County provides to us, and then we
provide $20,000 in matching funds. But the other thing that we leverage is
University resources, access to scientists in our broader Sea Grant network. So
we're bringing in other resources as well besides this actual funding.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So the $20,000 that you leverage is, is that part of the State
requirements?
MR. OKIMOTO: No, actually when we get our, our Federal funding source from
NOAA, we have to match it 50 percent with our own, you know...you know,
University funding that we use to match that. And so, once we have that in place,
then we use that funding however we see fit. So we don't have to match that with
any sort of State funding.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you.
MR. OKIMOTO: Okay. Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA:
Any more . . .(laughter).
Member Kaho' ohalahala?

questions, Members?

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah, thank you, Mr. Okimoto. I, I
guess it is confusing for us because, yes, definitely I think we would want to be
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able to support that, but I, I think the real question is the funding sources. Okay.
You say that NOAA provides funding to you at the UH Sea Grant Program.
MR. OKIMOTO: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: And you are having to match that
50 percent?
MR. OKIMOTO: Yeah. So by law, right, for Federal funding, we're required to provide
a 50 percent -COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Match.
MR. OKIMOTO: --match to NOAA funds, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. And then it is it that match or that
source of funds, then, that you are trying to leverage now with the County of
Maui. So you're saying that we put in 80 percent in, in a program like this, and
you match it by 20 percent.
MR. OKIMOTO: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. I guess the issue I think, Chair,
was in our last budget round was whether or not you were getting your Federal
funding. And I don't think that that was made clear to the Council. And that's
why we're a little hesitant to fund the program, of which we had no idea as to
whether or not you were going to receive your, your Federal funding.
MR. OKIMOTO: Oh, okay. Okay. So, so the Federal funding is in place. We have
received Federal funding.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: . . .(inaudible). . .
MR. OKIMOTO: You know, we get it on an annual basis.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah, I just want to clarify that, because
I think that's part of the mix-up.
MR. OKIMOTO: Okay. So the Federal funding is in place.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: We weren't going to put monies upfront
if there were no monies there for you to --
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MR. OKIMOTO: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: --even begin the matching, you know,
for...but if that's clarified, then we will further get that clarification with the
Department, then.
MR. OKIMOTO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: I think that's where the confusion lies
with . (inaudible).
MR. OKIMOTO: Oh, yeah. Yeah. So we, we have that...our funding in place to
support this position.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.
MR. OKIMOTO: Yeah. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. One more question, Mr. Okimoto. So there's no lag
time then? In other words, if we're going to fund the position or if you going to
fund the position, somehow, that there's no lag time for the fiscal year that the
position is in place.
MR. OKIMOTO: So...okay. So my understanding is that this position hasn't been
funded for Fiscal Year 2011. So it's going to end at the end of this June, June
30th . And so, one of the things that I think you'll hear from folks is that they want
this position continued, and one of my solutions that I'm proposing to you is with
Fiscal Year '10 funding, what we can do is extend that funding, because it's
already been committed by the County. . .another six months. That would
hopefully...you know, if you're, if you're able to fund this or not, we may be able
to find additional sources of funding to help support this position for
Fiscal Year 2011.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you for that information. I wish you were
here last year when we brought up this particular subject regarding the coastal
management employees.
MR. OKIMOTO: Sure. Thank you very much.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions for Mr. Okimoto?
Seeing none, thank you again. Helen Nielsen?
NOTE: Pause while Ms. Nielsen approached the podium.

MS. NIELSEN: . . . Good morning, Council Chair, and good morning, Council
Members. My name is Helen Nielsen, and I'm testifying on behalf of myself.
And I, too, am here to urge you to keep the coastal hazards specialist position.
. . . This position, formerly held by Zoe Norcross-Nu`u, is now staffed by
Tara Miller, and it's an essential position for the island in which we live. I think
the tsunami scare should, should be a good reminder about the importance of how
fragile our shorelines really are and, and how we, like so many islands around the
world, are so vulnerable to, to these forces. And proper planning is so essential to
that. You know, this position brings a wealth of knowledge. You're not just
getting Tara. She's an amazingly accomplished person herself, but you really do
get access to all these other scientific data. And we're really lucky to have some
support from NOAA on this. So I don't want to reiterate what everyone has said.
I really just urge you to find a way to fund this nationally recognized University
of Hawaii Sea Grant position. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing
none, thank you again. Jonathan Starr?
NOTE: Pause while Mr. Starr approached the podium.

MR. STARR: . . . Good morning, hardworking Council Members. I know you had a
busy evening last night. I'm Jonathan Starr, and I'm here to support the Sea
Grant position. In my four years on the Maui County Planning Commission,
including last year, I was the chairman, I realized two things. One, is how hard
our planners work and the good job they do, and I really have a lot of appreciation
and respect for all, all of the people in the Department. I just don't see any, any
dead weight there. The Current Division people, the Long Range people, the
Enforcement people, they work really hard. And the other is how important our
shoreline programs are. We, at the Planning Commission, are the final authority
on shoreline matters, and I've watched projects go by where we have the setback
regulations are based on 100 years of history; however, the sea is rising much
faster now than it was. So we, we see things that 50 years...were built 50 years
ago that are now being inundated. You know, look at Amala Place down by the
harbor, you know, where the...the highway heading out, you know, toward
Olowalu. And right now we're building new infrastructure not only in the
Tsunami Inundation Zone, but in places that will be awash in probably 20 or 30
years. You know, this is crazy, but, you know, that's...we need to improve that
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process. You know, recently we had a project, our new aviation field storage
tanks are being built right behind Kanaha Beach Park. . .in the Tsunami
Inundation Zone, in a place where they will get inundated in the not-very-distant
future. You know, we look at the issues about tsunamis. We look at the fact that
our reefs are dying at an incredibly fast rate, and we don't know all the causes.
We need the science and this is a position that provides that science. This is our
link to NOAA. This is...we have the best agency on Earth, and we have all of
their research and work at our disposal, but we're cutting off our ability to access
it by losing this position. This is really essential. All of our coastal, coastal zone
regulation is based on the transects and data done by Sea Grant. And if we don't
have a program specialist, it will become very difficult to legally defend the
setback regulations, and also we, it's an education program not only at Maui
Community College, but in the high schools with Zoe and now Tara go and
educate our kids. They educate our community This is really core, essential
stuff.
MS. REVELS: Three minutes.
MR. STARR: And I really ask you to find some way to fund the thing through the next
year. We're, we're going to be at a huge loss, maybe not...and it will be a lot
sooner than we think if we don't find a way to continue this program. Thank you
very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Jonathan. Members, questions for the testifier?
. . . Seeing none, thank you again. The next testifier is Tom Cook.
MS. REVELS: . . . Already did.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I'm sorry, Tom Cannon . . . (laughter).. .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: . . .(laughter). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Ooh. . .I looked you straight in the eye and call you Tom Cook
. . .(laughter). . .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: . . .(laughter). . .
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Hana hou.
NOTE: Pause while Mr. Cannon approached the podium.
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MR. CANNON: Good morning, I'm Tom Cannon speaking on behalf of the Wailuku
Main Street Association/Tri-Isle Main Street Resource Center. Many of our
Board of Directors are here with me in the, in the gallery here. I know that the
Tri-Isle Main Street Resource Center is familiar to you. Thank you very much for
your past support of our effort to achieve economic revitalization of Maui's small
towns within the context of historic and cultural preservation. Main Street is a
comprehensive program providing assistance to Wailuku, Makawao, Paia, Haiku,
Lanai City and many other Maui County small towns. Main Street's program
structure provides for volunteer independent professionals to assist the
community by working with government agencies to evaluate, create, and
implement a number of definitive plans. In addition, our Volunteer Structure and
Design Committee has provided many years of professional design review on
behalf of the community for proposed projects within Maui's small towns,
helping to insure that growth will be carefully designed and compatible with each
town's local character. County support of the Main Street Program is a good
investment that has proven to be more than cost effective. Our dedicated staff and
volunteers make best use of limited resources, and in addition to providing
planning assistance directly, also provide the framework for a remarkable
volunteer effort on the community's behalf. Without this framework, all the
donations of time and independent community-based analysis would be lost. If
the architects, the attorneys, engineers, bankers, the urban planners, the other
professionals who volunteer on Main Street's committees were to charge for their
services, each meeting would cost hundreds and sometimes thousands of dollars.
Support for this program has saved the County money and empowered the
community As our former Planning Director pointed out, Maui doesn't have
municipalities, and if it wasn't for the assistance of Main Street's qualified staff
and volunteer professionals, the Department would probably have to hire a
planner for each of our key small towns. Main Street assists the community in
various ways that affect core County services. We often are able to report social
service needs and the need for and justification for basic Capital Improvement
Projects when a small improvement early on can frequently avert a much larger
expense later. Main Street helps keep Maui County's local economy healthy and
vibrant. We do that by working effectively to help keep our small towns genuine,
vivacious, and viable. Main Street works with property owners to make
incremental improvements that raise property values, draw customers, and
encourage additional reinvestment that retains and creates jobs. We have been
doing this for almost 25 years now. A primary reason that Main Street receives
the support of so many volunteers is that it is viewed as truly representing the
wishes of the community as a whole. Main Street's emphasis on the process of
repeatedly seeking out community consensus has given the program a reputation
of integrity, which enables and encourages participation. This community
building is a core service that pays many dividends, both economically and
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socially. There can be no doubt that the Tri-Isle Main Street Resource Center has
had, and continues to have, an important positive effect on maintaining Maui's
small towns and the community traditions they exemplify.
MS. REVELS: Three minutes.
MR. CANNON: Over the years, we have. . .we have won both national and local
recognition for our efforts. Please continue to support the important work of
WMSA/Tri-Isle Main Street Resource Center with funding that has already been
reduced by 10 percent due to our current economic challenges. The funds will be
well spent in leveraging the maximum benefit from our volunteers and providing
the County with valuable community-based professional service that is, in
practical terms, unavailable otherwise. Thank you for continuing to see the
tremendous assistance the Tri-Isle Main Street and WMSA. . .have provided Maui
County communities. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for Mr. Cook [sic]?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Good morning, Mr. Cannon -MR. CANNON: Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --and thank you for being here to give us your input.
MR. CANNON: You're welcome.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: You're requesting basically...well, the 243, the same
as the prior fiscal year.
MR. CANNON: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: And how much are you guys being allocated from the
Department for this particular...this upcoming fiscal year?
MR. CANNON: For the year we're in now?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Correct. Yeah . . .(inaudible). . .
MR. CANNON: We are still trying to get a contract from the Department for this present
year.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Oh, is that right?
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MR. CANNON: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: And how come it's taking so long? Have you been
given reasons why?
MR. CANNON: Yes, they gave us a new contract with many new provisions in it which
are extremely onerous, really unreasonable, including such things as being able
to edit our material. . .after we hand it in to them and for us not to say anything
about that. So they could come up with a completely opposite conclusion to what
our, our studies have proven, and we wouldn't be able to say anything about it.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. And I know this organization has been around,
for roughly a quarter of a century has been working with the County.
MR. CANNON: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: And how long have you have been a member of this
organization?
MR. CANNON: Oh. . .plus or minus 20-plus years, 22 years.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Have you ever, have you ever seen this kind of, I
guess, it appears to me to be a somewhat, somewhat contentious relationship with
the Department in your experience?
MR. CANNON: I have never seen this before, no.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: And so, the Department is recommending how much
for this particular fiscal...upcoming fiscal year?
MR. CANNON: I think it was...
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: It's below 243?
MR. CANNON: Yes, that's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Well, we'll get that information.
MR. CANNON: Well below. Well below.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay.
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MR. CANNON: It's, it's below 200, I believe.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. And I'm...and, Mr. Chair, I'm particularly
interested in this because this organization does work in my district,
Paia-Makawao-Haiku, and of course, they've done work for
Mr. Kaho'ohalahala's district and Mr. Victorino's district. So that is why I'm
quite interested and concerned with all of these, you know, remarks that are being
made. And so, anyway, but thank you, Mr. Cannon, I certainly appreciate you
being here, and I certainly appreciate the work you've done, your organization has
done out in Haiku, and Paia, as well as Makawao. So I am quite surprised at the
significant reduction which is over 10 percent, and I certainly want to get some
reasons from the Department as to why. And anyway I'll, I'll get into it a little bit
later, Mr. Chair. Thank you.
MR. CANNON: Thank you -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MR. CANNON: --Councilman, we appreciate your concern.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: . . .(inaudible). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa, question?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes. Thank you very much, Mr. Cannon, for being here.
I've been aware that there is some kind of tension going on for a while because
your Executive Director is very effective in communicating.
MR. CANNON: Yes, she is.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: . . .(laughter). . .
MR. CANNON: . . .(laughter). . .
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And so, we...I'm looking forward to a discussion of this
with the Department, and I'd like to thank you for being here this morning. This
is a matter that I think needs to be concluded. It's been lingering for quite a
while. And, you know, having been a non-profit director myself, I'm amazed that
your doors are open considering that it's like three-fourths of a year that you have
no money to...you know, to, coming in to reimburse you for whatever it is you're
doing.
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MR. CANNON: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So we'll be looking into it. Thank you.
MR. CANNON: Thank you very much, Councilwoman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chair And thank
you, Mr. Gannon [sic], for being here and all your work on GPAC and other
things. You've been very active in the community The exact amount, it's in here
in the budget--was 25 percent. You guys are reduced to 182,250. That's the
amount for the next fiscal year.
MR. CANNON: Yeah, I guess I repressed that.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: . . .(inaudible). . . 25 percent. I figured it out real
quick.
MR. CANNON: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Let's, let's not talk about the, the tension. We'll
discuss that with the Department. Was any rationale given to you by the
Department for the tremendous cut? You know, because everything else has been
10 percent, 10 percent, and now Wailuku Main Street is being cut 25 percent.
Was there any rationale given to you guys, to you or the Director?
MR. CANNON: No, there was no reasonable rationale given to us at all.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. I'll keep that question for the Department.
And, finally, with this reduction and if this reduction was to stay the way it is,
what kind of services would you guys now have to cut out?
MR. CANNON: We would have to curtail services tremendously and-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. CANNON: --and Maui's small towns would be, would be hurt by that-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
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MR. CANNON: --big time.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And, and right now the small towns are probably
more adversely affected than the big shopping centers just because of the
dynamics in, in the way our people shop. And we got, for example, in Wailuku
town we have the First, First Fridays and that has been a tremendous plus. . .and
that's been very supportive by your agency and others. So, yeah, we'll, we'll
wait...and, Mr. Chair, I'll wait for the questions to the Department itself directly.
Thank you, Mr. Gannon [sic].
MR. CANNON: Thank you, Councilman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Members, any more questions? Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, just one more question. Mr. Cannon-MR. CANNON: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --can you share with us who are the current Board
Members? And I ask that because you guys have provided a lot of...over the
years, a lot of historical input to the Planning Department, which has been very
helpful. Who are some of your current Board Members that are on it right now?
MR. CANNON: Some of our current Board, Board Members are actually sitting in the
audience here: George Rixey, who's a licensed architect; Bill Frampton, who's
an urban planner; August Percha, who's also a licensed architect; I'm a licensed
architect; Chubby Vicens, who has been associated with A&B over the years;
Carl Griffith, who's our treasurer; Artemio Baxa... Judge Baxa -COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay.
MR. CANNON: --Hilton Unemori, engineer...a licensed engineer.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Okay. Let me just stop you. So you have a lot
of people that have experience with planning, and architecture, and advocates for
small towns, as well as you have a former judge -MR. CANNON: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --that's currently on, on your Board.
MR. CANNON: True.

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
March 24, 2010

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: So you have a wide...a wide array of people who have
a lot of skills that can save the County a lot of money from hiring outside
consultants.
MR. CANNON: Very correct, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Great. Thank you. So, in my opinion, it's, it's
money well spent by this County.
MR. CANNON: It is. It's leveraging the County's dollars in a very beneficial way -COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: All right.
MR. CANNON: --that helps the local people.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you very much, Mr. Cannon. Thank
you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions for Mr. Cannon? If
not thank you again, Tom.
MR. CANNON: Thank you, sir.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Jocelyn Perreira?
NOTE: Pause while Ms. Perreira approached the podium.

MS. PERREIRA: . . . Good morning, Chair Pontanilla, Council Members. My name is
Jocelyn Perreira. I'm the Executive Director and the Tri-Isle Main Street
Program Coordinator for the Wailuku Main Street Association, Inc./Tri-Isle Main
Street Resource Center, representing the eligible small towns in Maui County.
We have nine towns that we assist in total.
. . . We are proposing that flat funding for 243. . .remain We took a 10 percent
cut last year and still have no contract for services rendered, in good faith, for
Fiscal Year 2010. The Mayor's current budget gives us a 25.1 percent cut or a
32.6 percent cut over the last two years. We had received word from Planning, as
late as February, that 218,700 was in the Mayor's budget, so now we see a further
cut, and we, we just can't explain it.
. . . My purnose. . .today is to just outline the grant packets that we had distributed
to you, that you should have on your desks, so you know what it contains.
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. . . In there, it contains the grant request and proposal, including scope of work;
Tri-Isle Main Street cumulative accomplishments for all towns; letters requesting
support from all towns in the private sector, and more coming in; fact sheet and
current economic revitalization work, which I believe is kinda in your front;
program testimonial excerpts; and a grant for, report...final report for the last grant
that you gave us for $270,000; comparison chart between Wailuku Main Street
and the Maui Redevelopment Agency; and small town marketing efforts,
including our website, the Hawaii Magazine's December 29 issue, and the
continued circulation in, in the hotels and elsewhere through The Guardian
publication. This cut is too severe. It threatens the viability of our program. We
need the 243, which already represents a 10 percent cut. We will have to reduce
hours or eliminate. . .at least half of our staff of 2.5 positions . . .(sigh). . . We
have three positions. We have already reduced the hours of one full-time
position, so that's where it's the 2.5. The program relies on qualified
professionals, but needs the support of at least a skeleton crew, which we already
have currently in place. During this cyclical economic downturn, we are more in
demand than ever. We are responding to many requests and doing much more
with bare-bones funding and a tremendous amount of goodwill. We have
equipment on life support, and we have not turned away people or
community-based organizations for assistance. More and more landowners,
business persons, and residents from our small towns are asking for help. . .now
more than ever. Over the past 25 years, Main Street has been proven to be cost
effective as noted in the administrative communications to Federal agencies and
at the Maui County's own Cost of Government Commission in to 2006. We
understand in tough economic times sacrifices need to be made. We understand
the complexities of balancing the budget or stretching the quarters into dollars.
MS. REVELS: Three minutes.
MS. PERREIRA: Two-hundred forty-three thousand allows the program to continue to
provide and maintain a high-quality program, including providing uninterrupted
services to our small towns. We have a no-frill operation and need...that can
meet the challenge of changing times. It's like when you have to pick between
insurance A and insurance B. When you look at the cost of what government can
provide and compare it to Main Street's good return on investment, you will find
insurance B, Main Street, is significantly more cost-effective, and it does not
increase the County workforce, and provides you with another independent voice
to consider when making important decisions backed by a team of professional
resources who understand planning principals steeped in local lifestyle and
traditions, and a small town specialist who works well with the County planner
assigned to small towns --
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MS. REVELS: Four minutes.
MS. PERREIRA: --to effectively provided needed assistance--I can conclude--needed
assistance to achieve regulatory relief and overcome impediments to economic
viability. Main Street has proven its linkages to economic revitalization resulting
in community reinvestment and protection of property values to secure level
revenues and opportunities for new investment and job retention.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier this morning?
Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chairman. Good morning, Ms. Perreira.
Thank you for your testimony. You're mentioning leveraging of funds, and I'm
looking in your packet that you gave us with the regards to the Wailuku
Municipal parking structure. You assisted the County to get 1 2 million Federal
dollars. Thank you for that. And your organization is also involved...got
involved with the Paia Bypass and with the current PRAG study group. So...and
you're still working without a contract?
MS. PERREIRA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: You haven't been paid.
MS. PERREIRA: Well, we're working on the premise that we have an appropriation,
and in good faith, and that has been relayed over and over in written
communications and verbally by the Board to the Planning Department. We've
also submitted two reports for the two quarters and, again, based on expecting to
have a contact.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. And thank you also for speaking out your, your
thoughts with regards to the Policy Plan and the Island Plan. I don't think
anybody's thoughts...what organization you represent should be muzzled, or
threatened, or whatever. Anyway, it's a free country. I see here you have
provided assistance to landowners like Kim Haole, Josh Stone, Ernest Rezents,
Three Sisters Bakery, Giovanni Rosati, Paul Andres, Habitat for Humanity,
Ed Theilk. These are very well-established people, small businesses--again,
economic revitalization for our small towns. Have you...do you provide free
assistance to the Department as well or do you get compensated? Have you been
asked by the Department to provide -MS. PERREIRA: We have been asked...
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --go beyond and above?
MS. PERREIRA: We have been asked by the County to assist us. Most recently we
received a request to be part of the project management team for the
comprehensive Wailuku marketing study, and I've sat down...we've planned and
structured a networking. . .and strategy to go forward with that. And that's
something we're really . . . (laughter). . . excited about after many years asking for
that. Additionally at no cost or charge, I have taken under my wing, personally,
to facilitate and give orientation, and program understanding, and small town...on
small town issues, and facilitate the small, the County planner assigned to small
towns-COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: So you're providing free assistance-MS. PERREIRA: --in her administrative...
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --to our County planners?
MS. PERREIRA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: And yet you guys are getting cut big time, big time.
MS. PERREIRA: Well . . .
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. I have no more questions. I'm just
. . .(laughter). . . you know, there's no words to describe how I feel right now,
Mr. Chair. Thank you, Ms. Perreira. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Chair, and thank you, Ms. Perreira, for
being here. I also looked through your, your program here and, you know, I was
looking at the performance, the board meetings, also the design and project
reviews over the last year, and it's pretty extensive. You know, 14...you have
bi-monthly meetings, six, I mean on, and on, and on. So I mean, you know, you
can see all the great things, and it's here in the, in the book, and I think we'll,
we'll be asking the Department hard questions in this respect. But I want to know
from you, first of all, how are you able to survive during this period of time when
we're into March and the fiscal year, June 30 th is right around the corner? How
have you been able to survive without the funding being put in?
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MS. PERREIRA: Well. . .I . . .(sigh). . . I wanted to not forget anything, so I kind of
wrote it down. . .if you don't mind. First of all, we have continued to provide
services in good faith pending a receipt of a fee for service contract as noted in
our many communications to the County, similar to what we've had for 24 years.
We've tried to reduce costs by deferring the purchase of needed equipment.
We've tried to conserve costs by reducing or delaying purchase of things that we
have control over, such as supplies and cancellations of resource and training
materials, and renewal subscriptions. Since 2008, we've had to reduce the hours
of one of our full-time employees. Travel has been reduced to a bare minimum.
We have put planned projects requiring consultant services in phases and
partnered with the professionals by absorbing portions of the projects in-house
due to our qualified staff. And instead of paying upon commencement of projects
in incremental installments, they expect to be compensated at the tail end or the
completion of the project, which is remarkable because normally we have to pay
upfront an initial...we have to secure them well in advance because this is like the
charity case, you know, they doing this for us. So we have to secure them well in
advance, and then they require an initial payment, and then midterm they get
another payment, and then upon completion they--but they've been really good
about...they will wait until the tail end because they want this organization to
survive. We are operating on residual funds from earned income, a late payment
from our grant that we received...the grant that we submitted our report back in
July, we finally got a payment in October. So we're using that to kind of survive.
Small town, small program contributions and the frugality, and I under...I
underlined frugality of staff along with the goodwill and pro bono services of our
professionals and our community volunteers.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you. So I get the picture, and I think
the public gets the picture now. And a final question I have for you. We were
part of that first meeting that you're referring to here and, you know, we brought
in, what, about 50 people or something like that, and all different professions,
different walks of life. Your organization seems to be able to get to, what I call,
the grassroots, and that's something that I think sometimes other organizations
kind of fail in accomplishing.
MS. PERREIRA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So thank you. My, my question to you is very
simple. If, if the Main Street Resource Center was to go to the wayside and no
longer exist, what would happen? Give me a quick. . .30-second synopsis of what
would happen.
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MS. PERREIRA: You know, I've done this program for 25 years. I know what it was
like when we started. Nobody understood the importance of small towns. I mean
everybody thought Maui was, come to Maui, enjoy the fun in the sun, and
everything went to, you know, the places that have tourists and what not, and our
poor little small towns, they just had to make do. They have a frontline advocate
in the trenches, 24/7, that understands what they are going through. On top of
that, it's not easy to mail, mesh the interests of newcomers with the old timers
and to bring community and business together. That is the, that is the most
difficult thing to do. If this organization is not in place. . .I, I mean, you know,
I'm grateful that you read the letters from the small towns themselves. They tell
you what they are doing. You know, go ask people like Calvin Shibuya. Why,
why are these people here? Why have they stayed with us for so long? Because
they feel we are. . .essential to their success. And I would like to say, if you don't
mind, that if you look at the malls and you look at our small towns, you know
Main Street has been there and they've been working, because, frankly, our small
towns are surviving better than the malls and that's because they're so unique, so
special, good service, and they're the essence of Maui. They're the essence of
Maui that we all have to work really hard to preserve and protect.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. You captured the, the final statement I
was about say. And, you know, that is the ambience for which people come to
Maui for. Host culture and all the other aspects are all part of the, the whole
picture and many tourists still continue, and they say they go up to Upcountry and
Wailuku, and they do shopping every year when they come back. So thank you,
Ms. Perreira, and we will be really researching from the Department what these
challenges are and try to get some answers for that. Thank you.
MS. PERREIRA: Thank you, sir.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members-MS. PERREIRA: Mister-CHAIR PONTANILLA: --any more questions? Member Nishiki?
NOTE: Silence.

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: . . . I was looking at your fact sheet, Jocelyn -MS. PERREIRA: Yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --this orange.
MS. PERREIRA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I don't know what page, Committee Members, let me
see.
MS. PERREIRA: It's the orange sheet in the packet.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: It's. . .under letters requesting support. Anyway, you
can find orange, it stands out just before blue.
. . . Your. . .request was 243. That was what was given to you last year?
MS. PERREIRA: That's what is owe to us from your appropriation -COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay.
MS. PERREIRA: --for

is, this year.

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay.
MS. PERREIRA: We had, 270 was the last grant.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Let me ask you this. When I look at your salaries for
three full-time positions . . .
MS. PERREIRA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: . . . 169,048 [sic]. If I use that as a program and
calculate what your overhead is just for personnel-MS. PERREIRA: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --it comes up to like 65 percent of your total operating
budget is-MS. PERREIRA: Uh-huh. Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --in wages
. PERREIRA: Uh-huh.
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --for personnel. So this doesn't make sense. So,
obviously, with your in-kind donations from professional people and, and the
gamut, what is your total operating budget?
MS. PERREIRA: Total value of the program -COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah.
MS. PERREIRA:
--is, is very close...we gave you a conservative amount,
300-something thousand, but it's actually. . .one second. . .$382,700 as an
estimate. But, frankly, depending on the projects that we take on, it could be
much higher.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay.
MS. PERREIRA: It could be as high as $550,000. And such is the case, if you look on
the exceipts. . .during the Arakawa Administration, as attested to by their
Planning Director, that he noted, I believe it was $250,000 only in projects. That
doesn't include the community business assistance, or the planning efforts, or the
program development and stability. And that's where the value, the estimated
value of the program is about $550,000.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. Okay. Okay. Good. Because if I were to look
at this, I'd say you got top-heavy...
MS. PERREIRA: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --personnel-MS. PERREIRA: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --for a program that's giving you only 243.
MS. PERREIRA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And I would question and look at you -MS. PERREIRA: Sure. Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --and I don't know if that's what they're looking at.
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MS. PERREIRA: Um-COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So let me ask you this.
MS. PERREIRA: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: .. . Have you received. . .communication from this
Department who is in charge, I guess-MS. PERREIRA: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --of monitoring your . . .
MS. PERREIRA: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: . . . organization, have you received any concerns as to
how you're operating?
MS. PERREIRA: You know, we, we've gone for quite a while with no communications
whatsoever. The Board received two letters with misinformation that they
promptly corrected. So they...
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Misinformation?
MS. PERREIRA: Yes. In. ..inconect...
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So they have . . . (inaudible)-MS. PERREIRA: Incorrect...
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --critical-MS. PERREIRA: Incorrect computations and calculations. And I want to add--you're
right about the way this looks with 65 percent, but County government or any
business is going to have...the majority of their budget is going to go into wages.
If you look at the County's wages, it's also very top-heavy.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: But anyway, I'm just asking you...you just...you,
you...I'm not asking you to defend it. I'm asking you for facts.
MS. PERREIRA: Uh-huh, uh-huh, sure.
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So the question that I asked you was--critical letters
from this Department, you've said were erroneous.
MS. PERREIRA: . . . (sigh). . . Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So you then corrected those letters.
MS. PERREIRA: The Board of Directors, not me, the Board of Directors and our team
of professionals did.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. And, and, and can I request, Mr. Chairman,
those letters?
MS. PERREIRA: I have them with me here.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: . . . (Inaudible).. .
MS. PERREIRA: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, Jocelyn, if you can make it avail-COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: It doesn't need to be now.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah-COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I just want to see 'em.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, if you can make it available for the Committee? Not
now, but you can have copies made -MS. PERREIRA: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --and then we'll distribute it to the Committee Members.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So. . .any, any, any, any...let's be honest.
MS. PERREIRA: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Anything else? Maybe your organization rubs this
Department wrong. What do you, what do you consider why-MS. PERREIRA: Uh-huh.

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
March 24, 2010

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --as far as justification, that this cut was so deep?
MS. PERREIRA: Well, you know, I can only, I can only give to you what we have
heard directly from them, what we understand has been communicated to them -COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay.
MS. PERREIRA: --that there is. . . there is a concern that was expressed by the Director
himself that. . .they, they cannot have an organization that is going to comment on
something Planning-related that is contrary to their opinion.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: They don't like criticism?
MS. PERREIRA: That's correct, or competition.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Do you have that in writing?
MS. PERREIRA: We have witnesses at a meeting that that was discussed, was written
down, documented. The Board of Directors had knowledge of it and that was not
refuted by our former Chair John Min.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions for the testifier? If
not, thank you.
MS. PERREIRA: May I...I, one of my...I, I need just to untie this for you all?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sure.
MS. PERREIRA: Thank you. I was reminded by our professionals who have worked so
long and hard on this for so many years--and, you know, like getting the Iao
Theater finally, which is our signature project that we got, we're happy to show
you something that we're in large part responsible for assisting. So this is our gift
to Maui County. . .our latest gift . . .
NOTE: Pause.

MS. PERREIRA: . . . and in particular, Wailuku. This is the, the conceptual design for
the Wailuku municipal parking structure that was utilized by our Mayor when she
went to the Feds to get $1.2 million. This was the design prepared by this
organization. . .that's reflected through architect August Percha who, who was so
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good at articulating, hearing from our many numerous forums and workshops,
and whatnot, what the people wanted to see, that looked like and felt like
Wailuku, that could be embraced, and accepted, and add to the
economic...strong, long-term economic viability of Wailuku town. Thank you,
Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
NOTE: Silence.

MS. PERREIRA: . . . Mahalo.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. The next testifier is Diane Sumida.
NOTE: Pause while Ms. Sumida approached the podium.

MS. SUMIDA: . . . Hi. Good morning, Council Members.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning.
MS. SUMIDA: My name is Diane Sumida. I'm a small business owner, and I am on the
Board of the WMSA. I just wanted to speak on behalf of WSA [sic], to support
them. I, I've been on the Board for only about a year, but I joined the Board
because I feel that was very important that small towns exist, and we help the
small towns. But also I know this is a very tough economic times, especially in
our business because, you know, in fast food we're kind of, like. . .in the middle
because, you know, people. . .dollar drinks or whatever. But. . .I think WSA [sic]
is a very important program because it helps a lot of the small people and the
small towns. And I was very impressed when I got to, I got elected to be on the
Board because there's a lot of prominent and very important people that we serve.
And I would just like to say that. . .you know, I would like you guys to consider
the budget, because I think this is...the program's very important and we don't
want to cut the budget. So it's very detrimental to the small towns. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier?
Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Just one quick question. Good morning, Ms. Sumida.
What kind of business do you have?
MS. SUMIDA: Actually, I've got the McDonald's in Wailuku.
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Oh, okay. Okay. Good. And they serve as the Main
Street, I guess kind of serves as a voice for, you know, McDonald's and other
businesses.
MS. SUMIDA: Yeah. So, you know, because I'm a small business owner, hopefully I
get input on, you know, like the small towns and, you know, help with the
retailers.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you.
MS. SUMIDA: . . . (inaudible).. .
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Next testifier is August Percha.
NOTE: Pause while Mr. Percha approached the podium.

MR. PERCHA: . . . Good morning, everybody. Aloha. My name is August Percha. I'm
the Vice-Chair of Wailuku Main Street Association. I'm also an architect. I've
been licensed in Hawaii for 20 years, and I'm also now just recently a LEED
accredited professional, something I'm quite proud of. I have lived in Wailuku
for the last ten years and been a member of Wailuku Main Street, on the Board,
and about four or five years ago became a member of the Structure and Design
Committee. And we do a lot of good things. And in...at that point in time, there
was a discussion about the parking lot and there was a lot of confusion. And so,
the guys asked me to illustrate, and that's how that came about, and that's how it
got the funding for Planning Department, and that's how we're moving forward.
So I guess that was for free.
. . . So you're all aware of our struggle to get the funding released. It's based on
appropriations that you folks have made for us and our mission statements. But if
you look at the contract they're trying to offer us, it's twice the size, and it
reduces and diminishes our role in the small towns. . .aside from the issues that
Tom brought up. So we don't want to be pigeon-holed. And to tell you the truth,
I think they've already spent the money. And I think maybe an audit should be
done on this. And now that I'm talking about it, I'm, I'm looking on the Internet
and. . .on their budget proposal. . .this Page 16-6, there are some whoppers at the
top, just whoppers. They're either typos or they're lies. They need to be
audited. . .especially for these statements. Don't let them make fools of you. . .the
way we've been made fools of. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier?
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Mr. Percha, good morning.
You made some pretty strong statements here. Can you cite where on 16-6, what
are the strong statements that you believe are . . . (inaudible). . .?
MR. PERCHA: Well, on the second paragraph. The most glaring one, to me, is as for
the older applications, and this is for calendar year 2009. . .the response time has
improved from three to four months to 30 days. Okay, the typo there should read
"three to four years to 30 weeks". You get my drift? So don't take this as the
truth. I'm telling you, I've got experience not only with Main Street, but with
other clients, and they're going to be speaking out at other community meetings
which you all will be part of. There's other statements in here. At the top, they
make a statement as if that's an accomplishment, the Flood Insurance Protection
Plan. This is an ongoing program. . .for years and years and years. And then I
think they put in an amount of $500,000 just to kind of put an awareness of
commerce. Planning Department currently has no awareness for commerce,
especially in the small towns. And I know that's a strong statement, but that's our
role and that's why we need the funding. And I think, frankly, that they're trying
to diminish our funding to squeeze us down. . .either to take the money from us
and put it in there, that they think that they think that they can provide this service
in-house.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions for the testifier?
Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah, some, some clarification just because I
didn't...maybe I wasn't listening to Jocelyn. . .completely. What money. . .of
what was allotted to you in this fiscal year, have they withheld? What, what have
you received so far?
MR. PERCHA: Not one penny. Zero. Zip. That's why...they've spent the money on
something else.
NOTE: Silence.

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: . . . Zero?
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MR. PERCHA: Zero!
NOTE: Silence.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . Thank you.
MR. PERCHA: Yet, we continue. . .much to the surprise of them. Sheer will.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Uh. . .I'm sorry. I think you answered the question.
MR. PERCHA: I'm sorry. Excuse me.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I am speechless.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: . . . (laughter).. .
NOTE: Silence.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . You done?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions?
. . . Seeing none-MR. PERCHA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --thank you again. Next testifier is George Rixey.
NOTE: Pause while Mr. Rixey approached the podium.

MR. RIXEY: . . . Aloha.
COUNCILMEMBER

: Aloha.

MR. RIXEY: My name is George Rixey, and I'm a Board Member for the Wailuku
Main Street Association and an architect. And obviously I'm in here, you know,
here today for support for the funding for Wailuku Main Street Association. But I
just want to give you a little bit, sort of a little snapshot of how I got involved in
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the Wailuku Main Street Association. A number of years ago, I had my first
project in Paia. And already sort of being familiar with Planning and the
necessity for our small towns, you know, and, you know, it's for revitalization
and what not, I was aware of Wailuku Main Street Association so I thought I
should go talk to them, you know, to see what was going on. And then they
introduced me to the Paia Main Street. And so, I just wanted to get a feel, you
know, as how I was going to fit in and basically it was the renovation of the old
Kobayashi Garage on Baldwin Avenue. And, you know, in meeting with them
and kind of going around and, you know, meeting all the neighbors and the people
in the community and what not, it kind of inspired me. . in looking at the. . .the
design guidelines for Paia, and it kind of inspired me to see how the design
guidelines for Paia were appropriate or integrated to the actual designs or what
you see in Paia at that time. So I did. . .an image survey. I went through all Paia,
and took all kinds of pictures and everything, and sort of related how that related
back to the urban, back to the design guidelines, and then I gave a presentation to
the Planning Commission. So the Planning Commission, which normally
probably never even read the design guidelines, now they got a really thorough
picture of not only what the design guidelines were, but how they related to Paia.
So that, that's something that wouldn't have, wouldn't have been there if I hadn't
been inspired by Wailuku Street. Anyway, so after that they...I think a year or so
after that they asked me if I would volunteer to join their Design Review
Committee. So for a number of years now I've been, been doing that. And, you
know, I can tell you that it's a very. . .important, vital service to the community,
because what it's doing is it's, it's sort of like a link between government and, as
Councilmember Victorino said, grassroots. And it's very, very, very evident.
And it's kind of also interesting that, you know, I got to hear this morning talking
about the Extension Agent for the coastal management. That, that's a very similar
type of entity, and I know that for a fact, too, because I know Zoe Norcross and
had worked with her in a number of dune restorations. And I can tell you without
her service to link what I was doing to government, it wouldn't have happened.
So...and I, and I think a lot goes for the Wailuku Main Street Association. You
know, if it wasn't for their link between grassroots. . . the local people -MS. REVELS: Three minutes.
MR. RIXEY: --the small towns, development, business, and government a lot of things
wouldn't be happening the way they are today. So thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier?
Member Baisa?
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, and thank you very much, Mr. Rixey, for being here.
You know, this is an unhappy situation, but obviously we have an issue that's
very important to our community I wouldn't...we wouldn't see this group of
community pillars here bringing an awareness about it if there wasn't, you know,
something very important at stake here. So what I'm trying to figure out and what
I think we need to know is, from your perspective, what is causing this, this
tension between the Planning Department and WMSA? Is it because you're
acting as some kind of a voice that is voicing a minority position that may not,
they may not agree with or what do you think is it?
NOTE: Silence.

MR. RIXEY: . . . Okay. I'm going to give you my personal -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Fine.
MR. RIXEY: --experience.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Fine.
MR. RIXEY: I think it has something to do with a disconnect between expansion, you
know, government expanding. . .and as it expands it becomes disconnected from
its roots, the local roots. And I think it's just, it's just not understanding sort of
the value of our lifestyle in small town, what that really means. And it's, it's not
something that you can write down. You know, it's not like a smart growth code.
Although it's essential that we have smart growth code because we can look at it
as a map, but it's something that, you know, it comes from within, and you have
to know it. And I just think that there's a little bit of a lacking in the experience
of it. And, and maybe that's. . .discomforting. So maybe it sets in like a little
fear, or a little sort of separation, or a little competition. And, and also I think,
too, that...you know, it's true that in the, the process of the. . .Maui County
Plan. . .that. . .the Wailuku Main Street, you know, we sort of hold different
values than is being presented by the Planning Department in terms of growth and
how that growth is established.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I appreciate that. Thank you very much.
MR. RIXEY: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions for the testifier? If
not, thank you again, George, for being here.
MR. RIXEY: Okay. Mahalo.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: At this time, the Chair would like to recognize the presence of
Member Johnson. Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Good morning.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, for your information just to clarify for the record,
that the Planning cannot...the Planning Department cannot spend any money on
something else when it is a line item, but they can choose not to spend it. So just
be clear.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Good enough.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Bill Frampton?
NOTE: Pause while Mr. Frampton approached the podium.

MR. FRAMPTON: . . . Good morning, Chair -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning.
MR. FRAMPTON: --and good morning, Committee Members. My name is
Bill Frampton, and I'm here this morning to respectfully share some brief
thoughts just regarding my experience with the economic value and positive
impacts that I believe Wailuku Main Street Association and Tri-Isle Resource
Center provides to our County. As a quick background, I was blessed to be raised
here on Maui my entire life with my family. And I'm also proud to note that my
father, Gary Frampton, was the person who started Big Brothers and Big Sisters
more than 40 years ago. And in doing so, my family was raised to help strengthen
our family values in terms of giving back to the community, and the value of nonprofits and what they can do to help enhance our community and take care of each
other. Also, I have been involved, somewhat related to that, helped inspire me to
be involved as a land use planner and a planning consultant for the past 20 years
on Maui. And that ties into an example that I had. My, one of my first
experiences with Wailuku Main Street was a project that I was gratefully selected
to help a mainland owner have a project right in the heart of Paia town, right...it's
called Paia Town Center, and I, I believe many of the Council Members
remember us coming forward bringing that project, and it was approved several
years ago. But what was very, very important to note on that project was for the
first year and a half I was able to help convince the landowner to not file
applications right away, that which they wanted to. Instead, we went to Wailuku
Main Street, and it was a very. . .valuable experience because, as has been talked
about earlier, the grassroots comments that came out, the comments that--we had
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a wonderful architect and some other professional engineers. But the comments
that we received via Paia Main Street Association through Wailuku Main Street
Association, they were able to go to people to bring out comments and voices that
really reshaped our plan and became a plan that I was proud to take through the
process, but in doing so we also were able to have community buy-in so such that
I believe we saved valuable time and money from the County's perspective.
When we got to the Planning Commission, for example, there was no one that
testified in opposition. We had testifiers providing positive input. It smoothed in
that transition, and it also helped, I believe, for the County Council process, it
helped save time there instead of what we see so many times. We've all seen the
battles fought on the floor of the Planning Commission or on the floor of this
Council. If we can solve problems ahead of time, it's invaluable, and it's hard to
put a dollar on that amount. But, again, it's sort of the right thing to do. And one
last comment I'd like to note is when we talk about the experience that Wailuku
Main Street has brought to the table, I'm humble to be able to be a board member.
I did a quick calculation and there's over 325 professional years if you look at -MS. REVELS: Three minutes.
MR. FRAMPTON: --what the, what the board of directors represents. That's just the
board, over 325 years of experience directly on Maui is extremely valuable. And
I believe it's a, it's a really worthy organization, and I hope you're able to find a
way to try to continue to support them. Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chair. Good morning, Mr. Frampton, and
thank you for being here and reminding us about the Paia Town Center project
that you served as a consultant for that landowner. And so, you're saying you see
the value of... and by the way I believe you probably had to deal with the Paia
Main Street Association, which is, I guess, comes under the umbrella of Tri-Isle.
MR. FRAMPTON: That's right.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Right.
MR. FRAMPTON: That's right.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: And you make a good point in that they do serve as
that intermediary to go through the grassroots community, get their input, and
save a lot of contentious . . .

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
March 24, 2010

MR. FRAMPTON: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: . . . matters from occurring at the Planning
Commission level as well as the Council floor. So this is where you see the value.
And today would you say Paia town is a very thriving town economically as a
small town, and do you feel that Main Street has had a hand in it?
MR. FRAMPTON: Oh, oh, absolutely. It's interesting the client that I helped out, our
client is a very, very successful commercial business owner around the globe,
many projects. And one of his, by far, favorite projects is Paia. And because it's
successful, but he was overwhelmed--with all the small towns he deals with
around the world. . .in Greece and Italy, up in the. . .California--he couldn't
believe what Paia Main Street was able to do for him. It, it, he was blown away,
and so that when he came here he was just taken aback, and it was a no-brainer in
terms of the economic viability of the town. He had no problem investing, if you
will, into that town because he was very confident in the long-term survival
largely attributed to the work done by Paia Main Street.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. And, and you also made a point about...well,
you know, as the Members know, Paia is a very vocal community--in that whole
district I represent, Paia, Haiku, Makawao. So any types of development
proposals, if you don't touch bases with the grassroots community, as we all
know, we're going to hear it at the Council level and Planning Commission level,
so.
MR. FRAMPTON: That's right.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: And so, they also...did they provide assistance for the
Planning Department as well during this...from your experience as a consultant?
MR. FRAMPTON: Yeah, well, what, what was really interesting is they had done a
market analysis of vacancies, and absorption rates of businesses, and a survey, if
you will, of what did the Paia town merchants, what did they want to see for the
future? How much growth would they want? That was very instrumental in
shaping the design of our project--how much commercial building should we
provide and how much shouldn't we provide to maintain that balance to really
enhance and stay consistent with that wonderful feeling of Paia. And, and that
was straight through Wailuku Main Street and Paia Main Street Association.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Uh-huh. Uh-huh.
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MR. FRAMPTON: Yeah, they, they had a very big influence on how this went. And I
believe that helped the Planning Department because their staff planner, at the
time, was really amazed that they didn't have to spend like they thought--here
comes Paia Town Center, this could be an overwhelming battle. Instead, it was
the opposite. And I think that...again, that's hard to put a dollar on . . .
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Uh-huh.
MR. FRAMPTON: . . . but it's, it's well spent money for the organization.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: And one last quick comment. And I
remember. . .those of us who were on that Council when we dealt with the Paia
Town Center, I believe Mr. Nishiki's former assistant, Member Anderson, was a
Council Member at the time. And as we all know, Member Anderson has a high
set of standards to follow, and I, I believe she was, you know, very supportive of
the projects after all these standards were met. So, anyway, thank you very much
for your comments, Mr. Frampton. Thank you, Chair.
MR. FRAMPTON: No problem. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions for the testifier?
Seeing none, thanks again, Bill.
MR. FRAMPTON: No problem. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Next testifier is Amy Hanlon.
NOTE: Pause while Ms. Hanlon approached the podium.

MS. HANLON: . . . Good morning, Council, Mr. Pontanilla. My name is Amy Hanlon.
I'm on the Board of Directors for Wailuku Main Street/Tri-Isle Resource Center.
I'm not sure why I'm on it except that I was asked to be on it, and I'm a good
board member. I know a thing . . . (laughs). . . A board member is to support the
rules, the project, but mainly our Executive Director is always the star of any, any
organization, and I can tell you that she does well. And you talk about her salary.
You couldn't pay her, if you had to, as far as hourly wage. She, she's 24/7 most
of the time. Her heart is in it, and I'm sure she wouldn't be, be there if she didn't
believe in what she's doing. And we, we thoroughly support her on that. And we
hope that our request for monies will be approved. That's all I have to say.
Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing
none, thank you.
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. . . The last testifier signed up prior to the start of this meeting is
Alexa Betts Basinger. If there is anyone that want to provide public
testimony. . .please sign up with the Secretary out front, if you haven't.
NOTE: Pause while Ms. Basinger approached the podium.

MS. BASINGER: Good morning and aloha, Chair and Members. I'm Alexa Betts
Basinger. I'm here, first, as a lover of Wailuku, infused from 12 generations of
Wailukuans, but also I'm here as the current chair of the Maui Redevelopment
Agency. There are going to be other people that will talk to you about all the
good works and progress of the Maui Redevelopment Agency and, in fact, this
body made it a legal agency with a legal plan in 2000.
. . . I'm here really, and I don't need to tell you, about the importance of boards
and commissions. I've been watching your, your hard work about that
. . . (laughter). . . lately. . .in support of government's work. And what I'd like to
do, really, is read you a very brief statement of the unique mission of the Maui
Redevelopment Agency. And this is from your document passed ten years ago in
2000, the Wailuku Redevelopment Plan. The Wailuku Redevelopment Area Plan
was developed pursuant to Chapter 53, Hawaii Revised Statutes, HRS, the Urban
Renewal Law. The plan provides the vision, direction, and plan of action for the
revitalization of the Wailuku Redevelopment Area. The Wailuku Redevelopment
Area Plan directs the actions of the Maui Redevelopment Area, the MRA, and
provides the context within which the MRA can utilize the powers provided to it
through HRS, Chapter 53, to eliminate slum and blight conditions. And it goes on
to talk about those powers. But I wanted to talk to the importance of arms of this
government that are so important--staffed by volunteers who are also experts. As
you know, different boards and commissions have different requirements to be
functional on them. I next want to talk about...I want to refer your attention to
the ordinance for the Planning Department budget, Page 9, item number 12,
Section A, Subsection 4. Section A highlights the grants and other monies under
their administrative request. Number two is the grant to Wailuku Main Street/TriIsle, which you just heard, for their work is $182,250. Number three is for
General Plan update completion, $15,000. Number four is the budget to operate
the Maui Redevelopment Agency, which is $81,000. And, lastly, number five is
the cultural resource management, $25,000.
MS. REVELS: Three minutes
MS. BASINGER: Okay. I, I'll rush. In a, in a world that wasn't under economic
tension, for the MRA to function fully, as it's on its way to doing, would take
about $250,000. And at one time, from the County, we did have that budget. We
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are very grateful for $81,000 'cause it allows us to continue our work--and you'll
hear about all the things we have been doing as this session goes along--but it
allows us to continue our work in, in being able to fund ourself. And that's been
our emphasis over this last year. Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier?
. . . Seeing none, thank you very much.
. . . The last testifier for this morning is Jan Dapitan.
NOTE: Pause while Ms. Dapitan approached the podium.

MS. DAPITAN: . . . Good morning, Chairman and Council Members. My name is
Jan Dapitan, and I wanted to provide a little history of the Wailuku Main Street
Association so maybe the...some of the things, questions that you have--this
program began in Wailuku with Frank Abrams taking the leadership of a small
committee of architects and the engineers. And Mr. Abrams had started a litter
program by putting dumpsters out on the roadways. I don't know if any of you
remember those days. But he called me to come in to be a part of this founding
program. It's very similar to Keep America Beautiful, which I have worked with
for over 30 years. The program of National Main Street is pretty cut and dried,
but it does have one feature which allows for the localization or the culturalization
of the grassroots because it is a bottom up program, and it deals with volunteers.
And until we understand volunteers are not free, volunteers bring their expertise,
whatever that may be, to the workings of a, of a program. The Executive
Director...if you look at the personnel, the Executive Director is that key focus.
That is the cheerleader...not only the cheerleader of these professionals to keep
the motivation and keep the thing going, but there is a tremendous amount of
paperwork when you're dealing with nine towns, when you're dealing with
individual boards of nine towns,. This...you really have to look at a broader
picture. And I know that you know. And over the years I have watched a young
woman, who was head of the Azeka Market with a background in marketing and
promotion and a heart as big as ever. . .and over these years she has matured and
has grown to a leader in the community And with a person with that kind of
experience, that kind of background, and that kind of heart to be able to go and
talk to anyone, and to hear the, the, the concerns of local community is quite a
treasure. And I have seen too many times people...and they...and as they reach
their peak or their height, in terms of operation, they also become a target. And,
therefore, it's easy to say, well, gee, should they be paid that much. Well, her
salary right now is in a middle range for non-profits, for smaller non-profits
because they usually go by the amount of money.
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MS. REVELS: Three minutes.
MS. DAPITAN: So I just wanted to have you look at--the salary has not exceeded. . .at,
by any stretch, the amount of value that she is bringing to a program. The expert
financial background, the, the no-problems year, by year, by year with audits
stand for the management and to the good standing that this program has within
the organizations of non-profits. So I just wanted to say that historically there's
been no problem. Velma Santos, Goro Hokama, people who were the. . .the
history, the backbone, the strength of this program would be very pleased today
with how well and how much attention you've given it. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Question.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Jan, I'm sorry that you, you, you gave so much of your
testimony towards money. That, that is not . . .(laughter). . . where I was going
with it. And so, please. . .I don't even know what she gets paid, if you're
wondering that. And I know of people in the non-profit areas that are getting paid
$100,000. So it's not that concern. The concern that I've had from the onset,
when I looked at this budget, just because you're putting so much emphasis on it,
is for salaries to programs what that was. And it was 65 percent when I looked at
it, bare bones. Of course, I got some explanation. So, therefore, you
know...anyway, I just wanted to ask you if that's why you thought my
questioning was -MS. DAPITAN: I just want...
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --and you had to defend that?
MS. DAPITAN: Well, just for the, just for the general thinking. A lot of times if you are
just looking at funding, and you may, you may come to that assumption, but I
think that that is...I think it's been made very clear today that the value of the
volunteers, the value of the grassroots people in these small towns, and I, and I
just want you to know how much work that is -COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah.
MS. DAPITAN: --because I know. Thank you.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any more questions, Members?
. . . Seeing none, thank you. Members, Ms. Dapitan was the last person to sign up
for public testimony. Is there anyone out there...anyone else that want to provide
public testimony at this time? If not, Members, without any objections, the Chair
would like to close public testimony.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
. . .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, we've been going at it for quite some
time and the Chair is going to call for our mid-morning recess. We'll take a 15 on
this one here. So we'll reconvene at 11-5, 11:05. This meeting is in recess.
. . .(gavel). . .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Chair.
RECESS:
RECONVENE:

10:47 a.m.
11:09 a.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . (gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee meeting is
reconvened.
ITEM NO. 1: PROPOSED BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2011 FOR THE
COUNTY OF MAUI (CC 10-27)
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, if you could turn to Page 9 on the proposed bill,
Page 16-1 on the Program Budget, and 14-1 on the Budget Details, we'll start
from there. And the request from the Planning Department is $4,627,000.
Members, just let me caution about how we Q&A the Department. Please, you
know, keep out the micromanagement of the Department. Ask specific questions
in regards to the budget itself. At this time, the Chair would like to call on
Mr. Hunt for opening comments.
MR. HUNT: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
NOTE: Pause.
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MR. HUNT: Budgets aren't always about numbers. Budgets also establish direction for
each department, and I thought I'd briefly give you an overview of our
Department, both numbers and direction. The Department has four divisions--the
Administration Division, which provides overall management including drafting
of ordinances that you folks see regularly. We have a Long Range Division
which drafts plans, such as the Countywide Policy Plan that you adopted last
Friday. . .also the Maui Island Plan is another example. Our Current Division
processes major development applications, SMAs, hotels, et cetera. And our
Zoning Administration and Enforcement handles minor applications, public
inquiries, and enforcement. In the budget, you'll note our Department goals this
year. The Department's overall goal is to promote a managed and balanced
growth in our community Another goal is to enhance service and effectiveness
of the Department. Specific objectives of the Department is to assist the Council
in adoption of the Maui Island Plan and in adoption of legislation. This
legislation will, hopefully, involve home-based business bills, the smart growth
mixed use bills that allow residential uses in the business districts, the delegation
of renewals or approvals bills that we call the streamlining package, and perhaps
the TVR package of bills. Another objective, as noted in the budget, is to
improve customer service by providing prompt information. An example is our
zoning confirmations are now returned or responded to. . .most of them on the
same day. In the past, it was weeks. We also have pursued the streamlined
permitting. We've reduced the backlog from months, to weeks, to even days for,
for certain permits. We have drafted legislation and examined internal processes
to focus more on small routine permits. . .and, thereby, provide more time on our
larger impact projects. And, finally, our...an objective is to create a teamoriented environment. We have been pursuing this through interdivisional
communications, coordination regarding permitting and review of bills, et cetera.
The last objective is fair and effective enforcement, and we've been pursuing this
by having enforcement be based on the law--whether we agree with it or not--and
that we provide consistent treatment, and we also seek solutions.
. . . As for the numbers in our budget. . .we're under austere times and the
budget's austere.
. . . The Department's budget is being proposed to be cut 15 percent, an amount
equal to $861,000. We would accomplish this by reducing our total salaries by
8 percent. This would involve freezing four positions and reducing our overtime.
We are also reducing our operations by 29 percent, mostly through elimination of
consultants and contracts, and grants, and training. And then, finally, we are
reducing our equipment expenditures by 10 percent. So, again, the overall
Department budget is reduced 15 percent, $861,000, through freezing positions;
reducing overtime; eliminating consultants, contracts, grants, training, and
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equipment. I was going to. . .merely wait for questions, but I think given the
testimony this morning maybe a response is, is deserved, particularly on, on
Wailuku Main Street. The Department does have some concerns with Wailuku
Main Street. We also have some contract issues with Wailuku Main Street. But I
ask you to separate those issues from the budget that is before you. And we can
talk about the contract, we can talk about our issues, but those are not the basis of
the budget proposal before you. The budget proposal before you is to cut their
budget by 25 percent. Now, trying to be the optimist, the budget is to provide
them 75 percent of their budget. Other non-profits in the budget are proposed to
be reduced by up to 25 percent. We're not picking on Wailuku Main Street. The
reality is we have a $53 million shortfall, and Wailuku Main Street provides a
number of positive services to the community as probably every other non-profit
organization that has been cut or being proposed to be cut does likewise. The
Mayor, I believe, and I try not to speak for the Mayor, but I believe she directed
the budget focus on core essential services especially regarding non-profits that
provide food, shelter, and clothing. So that, I believe, is...should give you some
kind of background on, on the. . .25 percent cut proposal. It's not based on the
issues that we have with Wailuku Main Street, and we have met with them
regarding those issues. It's not based on the contract, and Kathleen can answer
that, she knows it much better than I do. So don't let...don't...don't let that
confuse the issue. These are desperate times and people are desperate to retain
their funding. And so, as a result there, there's a lashing back because we're
proposing to cut their budget. The comments that, well, we've spent the money,
and you should do an audit of them. . .you know, what we need is a calm, rational
analysis of the situation that's going on. And we're here to provide that for you.
NOTE: Silence.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . That's it, Mr. Hunt? Mr. Hunt, you done?
MR. HUNT: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. You know, as far as your cut of $861,000,
that includes the one-day furlough?
MR. HUNT: Yes, that would include furloughs for all our staff for one day a month.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Fine. Members, what we're going to...
MR. HUNT: That's equal to 4.6 percent pay cut for every staff member from the
Department Head down.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes, we understand that. Members, we'll go, you know, A, B,
C Accounts again. And most of the questions probably will be coming out, out of
the B Account, which is in the Operations area where we have monies from the
County providing grants to some organizations. And when we review the Grant
Revenues area, this is the area that is in regards to the Coastal Zone Management
where we receive money from the...a pass-through from the State to the...from
the Federal to fund certain positions. So we'll concentrate on the A Account.
Members, we'll start off with Member Molina, if you have any questions.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: This is the A Account on the Administration and Planning
program.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Plenty questions, A, B, whatever. But I'll try to, you
know, make sure my colleagues get the equal amount of time as well. So anyway,
good morning, Mr. Hunt and Ms. Aoki. First, you've heard, you heard comments
on your...16-6, Members, for your information, in the Program Budget about the
accomplishments for calendar year 2009, specifically, with regards to the
streaming lining... streamlining of the permit review process, older applications.
The response time has improved from three to four months to 30 days, and then
also a comment made that...well, first let me ask. With the downturn in the
economy, has the Department seen less applications coming before the
Department for approvals?
MR. HUNT: . . . As a generalization, the, the overall numbers are reduced, and some
particular types of projects have actually gone up.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Uh-huh. But overall there's less work now for the
Department because there's less applications coming in. So, which would only be
natural then for, I guess, improved response time. . .wouldn't that make, make
sense, you know, from a logical standpoint?
MR. HUNT: I, I don't believe that's the only reason. I mean there's, there's a number of
efforts that we've made to streamline the process, including legislation, looking at
internal processes, et cetera. There's, there's a huge backlog. So even though the
number of applications that are coming in, they still...the staff still has a backlog
of permits to deal with. So I, I, I believe that part of it is the fewer permits
coming in, but part of it, I think, is the efforts of the Department staff to cut down
the backlog and the time to, to take, that it takes to review these applications.
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. And, and I just ask these questions to get
clarification on the statements that have been, you know, printed and, of course,
with the concerns expressed from the public. You know, so I'm just trying to get
a deeper understanding as to, you know, why this. . .genesis, I guess, of these
comments and to see what the, you know, whether they're accurate or not or, you
know, where I'm coming from. I'm just asking these questions on behalf of the
public, who have concerns. Um. . .I guess that's it for the time being for the, I
guess, the A Account. My questions, Mr. Chair, obviously are being more
centered towards the B Account. And. . .oh, yeah, one, one, one quick question
regarding salaries. Like the other departments yesterday, we see some increases
for planners, and I believe the Administration had told us that their stance in
general, no increases for department personnel. And, Mr. Chair, I guess to be
consistent, like what we're asking of all the other departments, I would like a
written explanation from the Department why certain personnel are getting
increases. I don't know if it's related to collective bargaining or if this is just
internally the departments are giving certain planners or other personnel raises.
And, of course, I see the reductions too, but I think it's important for the Council
and the public to know, so we don't get questioned by the public, hey, how come
the Mayor has stated that, you know, they're going to hold the line on giving
raises to County employees, but then when you look at the document you see
increases for certain personnel? And one more...one quick question with regards
to where in the budget is it reflected, the furloughs? I believe the Mayor stated
that the directors, and I would presume maybe deputy directors are going to get
hit with the furlough. Where is that reflected? I'm looking at 14-2,
Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I think. . .regarding the question, Mr. Pablo answered the
question -COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Oh, okay.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yesterday, I asked.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --in regards to looking at the salary adjustment-COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: All right.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --line.
MR. PABLO: Would you like me to make a comment?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, maybe, Mr. Pablo.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, if you can?
MR. PABLO: Thank you, Chair Pontanilla and good morning, Members. Regarding the
questions from Councilmember. . .Member Molina, yesterday there was a similar
question-COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
MR. PABLO: --and the furloughs are reflected in salary adjustments at the bottom of
Page 14-4 for the Planning Department.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay.
MR. PABLO: With regards to the changes that you mentioned, increases and decreases,
those are footnoted. . .on that same page. Some of these are for reallocation. One
of them, I believe, is an incentive salary and so forth. The information are in the
first four pages.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay.
MR. PABLO: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Pablo. And, again, Mr. Chair, I ask
for that request from the Department to try and justify the increases for some of
their personnel. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Just a fast question. On one of the
footnotes, Reallocation. . .what do you mean "reallocation"? Did we do any
changes to the position itself to make it, like, a grade higher?
NOTE: Pause.

MS. AOKI: . . . Good morning, I can answer that question. For reallocations, what
happens is you have a situation where it had been...I, I'll give you an example. If
you look at PC-0059, that position had previously been budgeted for reallocation
from a Planner W to a Planner V. Instead, that money was used for reallocation
for position No. 0080. So you may find situations where, yes, position 88...0080
did have an increase, but the decrease is shown in 0059. Essentially what
happens is the planner is reallocated from a W to a V, but that was something that
was agreed to prior or during, during the deliberations of Fiscal Year '10. So we
have to reflect it in Fiscal Year '11.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. But there's no adjustments made after the budget
is approved, meaning whatever is approved for Fiscal Year 2010. . .there's no
adjustments made by the Department?
MS. AOKI: That is correct. For Fiscal Year '10 there were absolutely no reallocations,
and no promotions, and no step movements.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, Chair, just one quick question. I looked at the
listing that we received from Personnel, dated March 10 th , and it shows five
vacant positions. I think I heard Director Hunt say you weren't going to fill four;
is that how you're going to deal with this?
MS. AOKI: For the vacancy list that we received, I can let you folks know that as
of...for PC-0003-COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
MS. AOKI: --Planner V -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Right.
MS. AOKI: --that was filled and the person was hired on March 16 th . So this report is
actually a little dated because there were already interviews, and the lists had
already been given to us, and the position was filled. The Office Operations
Assistant, which is our front receptionist/clerk has been filled, and the PC-0047
Planner III has been filled. The positions that were proposing to be frozen do
include this Zoner [sic] Inspector Trainee PC-0049, and also PC-0058 Planner I in
the current position. In addition to that, we have frozen the three college interns,
as well as the part-time GIS person in Long Range. So we're freezing a total of
six positions.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. Thank you. That's it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, where in this--or if it's not in this, just let me
know--the Sea Grant. . .person? Is this in this section or is it in the next section?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson, it's going to be B Account.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: The next one?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. All right. Just needed to know that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: No questions on this. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. The first thing is if the
Department, when referencing anything, if you could give us a page number
because the position numbers are not in numerical order. And so, if you could
give us the page number and approximately where on the page it is, okay?
MS. AOKI: Okay. Sure. I apologize.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And I think you may have touched on this, but you
are freezing the positions, freezing positions. So all the vacancies are being
frozen?
MS. AOKI: The only...we only have...the vacancies that we have, yes, are being frozen.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And. . .so would that mean that they're not
going to be budgeted for?
MS. AOKI: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I see. Okay. Thank you. Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thank you. Mr. Chairman, I don't know how far
back. . .when Planning came before us asking monies to fill positions--do you
remember that time that we were having that, and we never took any actions?
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: September . . .(inaudible). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: It's going to be the last item on the Coastal Zone Management.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. Do you remember those positions that they were
asking for -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes, it's in our...
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --besides the Coastal Zone?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The only...oh, I know what you getting at. Yeah, at the time
we had the discussion on Coastal Zone Management, there were three vacant
position in the Planning Department -COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --and my discussion, at that time, was to advise the Department
not to fill those positions because, you know, how, how you were going to fund
your Coastal Zone Management positions because it is funded out...funded by the
State and the Federal government. You know, we want to make sure...we wanted
to protect those three positions and not fill in the planner's position. So maybe, at
this time, you know, I can have the Planning Department kind of explain the
positions in the planning...the Planning area, how those positions were filled.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. So, so my specific...now that you've educated
me, I warma know if Planning Department. . .just as they've done a lot of times to
find money, found that... and I think they told us they, they had that money, but I
don't know what. . .kind of Council approval that required at that time, but I
wanna know this. Now. . .if you can remember that meeting and, and I think you
were there also. . .did you fill any of those positions and which ones are they?
MS. AOKI: Okay. If... let's see.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And I think, Mr. Chairman, not I think, for myself I
know. . .1 had said that it is easier if we're going to look at this coming year's
budget, because we know it's going to be an austere one, that it was easier for us
to cut positions that were unfilled because there was no personality there, no
human being that depended upon it. And, and, and, and that was basically my
policy. It's easy to not fill this position because they're empty now. . .rather than
to, to do it later on. And so, I don't know if staff gave you that information, but
did you fill those positions?
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MS. AOKI: Okay. First I'd like to clarify because it seemed through the testimony that
there's a little bit of confusion. There's the Coastal Zone Management Grant
that we get, and then there's the Sea Grant which we give. So separating the
two--the Coastal Zone Management was what I came before you back in
September because we had received word that the State may not be able to fund
the positions. Subsequent to that, we did receive notification from Office of
Planning on Oahu that they were going to be able to fund the positions with
Federal monies. So, yes, we did hire people for those positions because we were
assured, and we still are. Same thing goes for Fiscal Year '11. They have stated
that they will be able to continue funding these four positions which are located
on Page 14-11.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And we'll go there later on, Member Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. Okay. Now, now, now, now that it is grant
money, so those are all Coastal Zone positions that -MS. AOKI: They're funded by...
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --we were debating upon -MS. AOKI: Well, that's...
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --that day?
MS. AOKI: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay.
. . . None were other positions that are permanent?
MS. AOKI: No.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. Thank you.
MS. AOKI: You're welcome.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I'm done.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. So, Ms. Aoki --

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
March 24, 2010

MS. AOKI: Yes?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --in regards to the three vacancies in the Planning Department,
at that time when we had this particular meeting, I, I do have the vacancy report in
front of me. . .and if you could identify those three positions that you filled?
MS. AOKI: The three positions that I filled for Coastal Zone Management?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No.
MS. AOKI: Oh.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: For the Planning.
MS. AOKI: PC-0003, which is a Planner V.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . Okay.
MS. AOKI: PC-0024, which is a Office Operations Assistant.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
MS. AOKI: And PC-0047, which is a Planner III.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
MS. AOKI: I would like to note, though, that there's been vacancies and filling of
positions over the last year, so this is just reflective of what was on the vacancy
list that was sent to you folks.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Exactly. . .at that time. So, you know, we clear in our mind the
positions that were there at the time when we had that meeting last year. So when
we come to the Coastal Zone Management, then, you know, we don't have to go
back and forth, yeah.
MS. AOKI: Okay. Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Mr. Chairman?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes, sir?
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: If I, if I can continue? So in the Mayor's message. . .I
know she did not say that she directed all departments to freeze positions. I also
know that we, in the Council, as a policy, did not direct or take any action to
freeze any positions. So, therefore, it is fair to understand that this Administration
has really not directed any department to not fill vacant positions--is that a fact?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Department or Budget Director?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Oh, well, yeah, let him answer.
MR. PABLO: I'd be glad to take-COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Mr. Pablo?
MR. PABLO: --I'd be glad to answer that.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah.
MR. PABLO: I think what we have to go back is to that first day when the Mayor
presented the budget, and I was also giving a presentation on Monday. We try to
look at a balanced approach on how to do this. We have a 53 million shortfall,
but we also are an economic engine for this County. Do we stop hiring? Do we
stop purchasing? Do we stop doing projects? Our goal was to try to balance all
of that. Rather than looking at the vacant positions and freezing them, we have to
identify what is the workload. . .what is the staff required for that workload. Do
we reduce the programs and services 'cause we can't fill that position where, in
fact, we can now because the unemployment is high? We took the, we took the
decision that we will, we will identify 69 positions, which it came out to be,
which believe will not have a long-term impact on the programs and services that
this County provides. Those positions, which were identified last year to be
partly funded, if we had qualified candidates, we feel we should fill them. This is
a Program Budget. If we have a position that was half funded and it's an
important position for staffing, and if a vacancy becomes vacant, which is a lesser
importance, the manager should make that decision--let's fill this one and keep
this one on the side.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Mr. Chair?
MR. PABLO: So that was, that was, that was the logic behind that.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah, Mr. Pablo, you, you, you do not have to explain
that, because I think all, all Council Members know that--that this Program

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
March 24, 2010

Budget gives you the flexibility, should you find money and should there be a
vacant position, as you stated, that it was your choice, and we did not say don't,
do not, Mr. Chairman, okay. So I, I, I just wanted to know -MR. PABLO: Certainly.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --what your policy was.
MR. PABLO: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Just because people are asking.
MR. PABLO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And so -MR. PABLO: And that's how...
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --I need to know an answer just because -MR. PABLO: Certainly.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --that's fair.
MR. PABLO: I agree . . . (laughter). . . And like I say, it's not easy finding...when
you...in that presentation I gave on Monday, the 53 million shortage is in the
General Fund. The General Fund Operations is 295 million. You're looking at
pretty close to 20 percent. Right?
. . . Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah, thank you.
MR. PABLO: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Pablo. I think we all understand
the Program Budget and how it can be utilized to, you know, advantages and
some time disadvantages. So, Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. Going back to Planning. . .my question
to you, Mr. Hunt, with these...and I'm always sorry to see the internship go, but I
understand, you know, things being what they are, they are. But with these cuts
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as far as personnel is concerned or the not filling of positions. . .would that have
an impact, basically, on our ability, especially with our boards and commissions
for which, you know, the Planning is really one of the. . .the mainstays? I see
you, you didn't make any changes there, but by some of these cuts, would they
have an effect on your overall operations?
NOTE: Pause.

MR. HUNT: . . . We're, we're proposing three major cuts, and we tried to spread the
pain or grief. One is a Planner I in the Current Division; another, as Kathleen
mentioned, was an Inspector Trainee in ZAED; and then there's a GIS intern, I
believe, in Long Range. So we tried to spread it out throughout the Department.
I believe it will have an impact on our Department. The Planner I, in particular,
would generally assume duties that are more mundane and not as complex, and
thereby free-up the plan...the senior planners to spend more time devoted to the
more complex projects and, in theory, move them along quicker. Now, having
said all that. . .again, we're dealing with a $53 million shortfall. We believed we
had to make cuts somewhere, and these were cuts that we felt we could live with.
You know, if we weren't dealing with a $53 million shortfall, we would be asking
for those positions and, and more.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. I guess the other question begs to be asked.
You know, your accomplishments here, and, and, and I don't doubt your
accomplishments because, you know, I know you guys have worked very hard to
streamline the system and all of that. But again the question is being asked with
this downturn, you mentioned, yeah, in some areas we have less work, in other
areas we have maybe more in special...in specialty areas. What is your forecast
as far as, and nobody can give you, can give you an accurate number, but what is
your forecast with new and existing permits that are sitting there as far as
completion? You know the, especially the permits that are presently
being...that's in the system itself. Because I heard constant complaints it takes
six months, nine months, you know, and you're saying, no, now we've got it
down to basically one to two months on the backlog and 30 days in other areas. If
that is true, then I shouldn't...we shouldn't be hearing the complaints from the
public, but I continue to hear that. So how do you address that and how do...how
does the public feel confident by you doing this will now have a, hopefully, a lot
leaner machine to, to get the, the job done.
MR. HUNT: . . . You, you asked a . . . (laughter). . . a lot.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: About six questions in one, right, I know.
MR. HUNT: I'll try and. . .I'll try and break it out. And if I, if I forgot one --
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No problem.
MR. HUNT: --ask it again.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
MR. HUNT: First of all, there's different types of permits.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
MR. HUNT: And so, if we make a statement that the permitting backlog has been
reduced, you need to focus on what type of permit we're, we're speaking to. Is
that a subdivision, is that a commercial building permit, et cetera?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. HUNT: Some of the permits do take months and months, but that's out of our hands
because we're either waiting on SHPD or the County has adopted a thorough
review process in order to protect our culture and our environment.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
MR. HUNT: So the SMA does delay...a building permit in the SMA if, if it triggers a
major application, that would delay it by months definitely.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. HUNT: So overall I believe the number of permits is, is going down because of the
recession. But, again, we have a backlog of permits to deal with. The current
Planning Division, for example, has over 500 permits, I believe, in which they are
still dealing with. That's an average of 40 applications each planner. Now, some
of those are the same application, or three applications are, are involved in one--a
Change in Zoning, a community plan amendment may be the same, but still that,
that's a high volume of, of permits for one person to deal with. So I do anticipate
the number of permits to come down, but that doesn't mean that our work is
necessary...necessarily less. Our, our focus on streamlining is to get the routine
mundane permits through quicker. If somebody wants to put a garage on their
house, that should receive less review than a hotel along the shoreline. The other
issue is that this is the first time that the Department has had an ability to analyze
our internal processes and legislation, external processes, and try, try and improve
those processes. I wasn't here during the early part of the decade, but from what I
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can tell, the staff in the Planning Department--and I believe other departments as
well--were so overwhelmed with just processing permits that they didn't have the
time to analyze how do we process the permits. And so, I think this is actually an
opportunity. And we are taking advantage of that opportunity. That should not
be misconstrued as, oh, well, our workload is, is reduced. When the economy
comes back around, then we should have an improved permitting process because
of the time that we're taking now to streamline that permitting process.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, and I think...
MR. HUNT: And if I missed anything...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No. No. No, I think you've kind of covered all the
questions in, in one capsule, and I think that's good because then the public has a
better understanding what this means by, you know, you saying we streamlined
and yet they think it's not being...it's not happening. It's not an immediate
gratification, in other words. It's a process that you're also doing self-evaluation
so that when we get going, again, things would move along a lot more
appropriately and a lot more efficiently, and that's what you you're working at
right now.
MR. HUNT: That's our intent, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. I think that, that, that I think most people
can understand. And then the other question was brought up about the Flood
Program and, you know, the statement was made, and I just going to ask the
question. This Flood Program, the Flood Plan, Floodplain Plan, it's an ongoing
thing, right, by, by, by the program itself?
MR. HUNT: I would consider it ongoing.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, ongoing because I've been in the insurance
industry for the last 27 years, and I know these flood plans are constantly
evolving and constantly changing because of variables and a lot of it is GIS now
can really pinpoint areas where in the past we could not. Computer models now
do a lot better than the naked eye could do. But it said over here. . .saved over
500,000 in flood insurance premiums. Where, where did you get that? And, and,
and, and I ask that question 'cause, you know, I'm in the business, and I haven't
seen a lot of changes except for a few areas that now have been moved out of the
flood zone. So are that...is that what you're referring to?
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MR. HUNT: First of all, we consider it an accomplishment because even though it's
mandated, it still required a lot of work-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
MR. HUNT: --and it still resulted in reduced insurance rates or premiums for our
citizens. And through those reduced insurance rates--and I've got someone in the
audience, and he can nod his head, you know, if wrong, if I'm saying something
wrong-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
MR. HUNT: --but through those reduced insurance rates will result in that dollar savings
that, that is in there.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Okay. I, I think more. . .more than the rates
you're referring to is, is the zone changes. And when you have zone changes,
then you go from a different rate structure, you know, when you change zones.
Not so much the rates have been changing. It's more the zone changes. When I
say "zone", it's an area. And if the expert wants to come up and, and contradict
what I'm saying, that's not a problem. But I'm just saying, you know, that's my
experience in this area. And the last thing I'll conclude is that. . .you guys
have...your expenditures in the One Main Plaza, you show here that operational
expenses and rent...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Victorino, is that the B Account?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, is that...oh, okay. I'm going into B. I'm sorry.
Sorry. Sorry. Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Save that.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So like everybody else I make mistakes. I
apologize, Mr. Chair. That's it, that's it for me right now. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Hunt, you mentioned about, you know, you
guys are working through the process in trying to gain efficiency in regards to the
work that you do. As you gain efficiency, do you see your Department reducing
staff in the, in the future?
MR. HUNT: . . . No, I actually don't. I believe we're understaffed now. And if we
weren't in such dire straits, I would be proposing more staff still. The, the system
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that our County and our State has set up for planning review is complex and some
people consider it onerous, other people consider it protective--depending on
which side of the development fence you sit on. The Planning Department didn't
set up this system, but we are charged with administering it, and it is, it is a
complex, somewhat difficult system. And even if we get fewer permits, the way
the system is set up is there's thoroughness that's involved and there's also. . .a
cry or a plea from the community to do more than what we're doing now. That
we're deficient currently; that we're not following up on our conditions of
approval; we're not enforcing as well as we should; we're not analyzing these
permits as thoroughly as we should. So in answer to your question, I believe
we'll need more staff in the future.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Let me stop you right there. In regards to the Zucker
Report, in regards to your manpower requirement that was made, I don't know,
four or five years ago, have you met that criteria?
MR. HUNT: The management of the Department went through the entire list of Zucker
recommendations and there's, there's 128 recommendations from that report--and
for a little background for some of the people, this audit was required during the
previous Administration. There was concerns about the performance of the
Department, and I actually think in that case it came out with some good
recommendations. The current Department management went through all
recommendations, and we believe, and we believe we've completed 56 percent of
those 128 recommendations. We believe we've partially completed 37 of them.
In saying "completed" or "partially completed", some of those would be ongoing.
You don't just check it off. If it's an efficiency issue, well, okay, we're done, and
we don't do that anymore. We, we've completed the initial stages, and we'll
continue the doing...continue...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, what, what I was more interested in was, you know,
based on the Zucker Report and your manpower requirements too at the time, to
do your processing more efficiently--they suggested, you know, what should be
done in regards to, you know, increasing your Department staff at that time. I, I
don't know if you already reached that point in regards to the staffing
requirements, as recommended.
MR. HUNT: There, there's...going off from memory, there's several recommendations
regarding staffing, and I would hate to make a conclusion without analyzing that
and coming back. But I'm pretty confident in saying we've at least partially
completed those, and I would...I'm pretty confident in saying we've completed
some of them.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
MR. HUNT: For example, one of the recommendations was to create a second
Planner VI in the Current Division, and we have, and we filled that, and it is
starting to pay off already. We're getting better efficiencies there.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Maybe that type of information, if you can
provide. . .provide it to this Committee. . .in regards to your requirements for the
Department based on that Zucker Report.
NOTE: Pause.

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: . . . Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: You know, on this areas that you say that you ...
. . . well, it's not funded...well, we not going to fund the positions, but
you'll...according to what I read here, it's going to be positions left vacant until
such a time, I guess, when the economy improves. My question to you is that if
we eliminated those positions, and you come back later on to justify those
positions, what is your take on that?
MR. HUNT: We would strongly advocate not eliminating those positions. We're okay
with a freeze. We understand, again, the $53 million shortfall, but as I've said,
and I'm not going to repeat myself, but I tried to send the message that we
actually need more staff. And, you know, don't, don't cut those positions. Freeze
them. We can get through the, the budget downturn or the economic downturn,
and-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay-MR. HUNT: --once we get healthy we'll ask for those to be reappointed or refilled.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. And the reason why I ask that question, and maybe
for our Budget Director too...you know, we've frozen positions, not "frozen
positions", but...and you gave good explanation in regards to why you filled it.
And I think most of the Members probably feel the same as I do. If we remove
funding, you know, for that position, that the position won't be filled with monies
that you find as you go through your A, B, C Accounts. And that's one of the
biggest thing I think now that we struggling with in regards to positions being
filled through other means. So I thought I'd just, you know...and, Mr. Budget
Director, your comments is well taken, but I think for myself and probably for
some of the rest of the Council Members, I, I think that it's important that we
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understand your process in regards to filling positions that this Council has not
funded. So, you know, I, I leave that comment as that. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, thank you, Chair. And thank you for bringing
up the Zucker Report, the audit. I think that will help us make fully informed
decisions and to see how far the Department has come in meeting those
objectives. And, you know, as was stated by the Director, 56 of 128 have been
met, but that's not even half, yeah, so there's still work in progress. And although
37 of them have been met some...well, they're making progress, but the point is
that's why that audit was done--because of not only concerns from the body back
then, the Council, members of the public as well. So I'm looking at that as a tool
to help the Department. If I could ask a question of the Department? Of the
personnel listed here, how many of them are part of the Long Range Planning
Division?
NOTE: Silence.

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: . . . And I ask this, Chair. . .my understanding is the
Long Range Division dealt with, I guess, the GPAC, and the Island Plan, and
Policy Plan, if I'm correct. Madam Director?
MS. AOKI: There are a total of 16 positions.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Sixteen?
MS. AOKI: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Now that the GPAC's work is done, have there
been adjustments made to the Long Range Planning Division? I mean primarily
there...that, that was their purpose, right, to work with the GPAC and the Island
Plan, and so forth?
MS. AOKI: Well. . .the Community Plan...I mean, you know, they serve more than just
doing the Countywide Policy Plan and the Maui Island Plan. Now, they're going
to start doing the Lanai Island Plan, the Molokai Island Plan, and also the West
Maui Community Plan. Those are the next three that they're going to start, you
know, addressing. And then you also have to consider the fact that in the Maui
Island Plan there are a lot of actions, there's tons of actions that need to be taken
by the Planning Department, as well as other agencies, not just us. So they will
be primarily tasked with doing that as well.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. We just completed the Policy Plan, and I guess
the stated deadline for the Island Plan is October.
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MS. AOKI: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: If and it's a big if, if the Island Plan is passed by
October, then is there still a need for 16 Long Range personnel? And, and I'm
looking at this, Mr. Chair, as, you know, we're talking about cutting back. You
know, we got to look at ourselves, first, as a County. You know, people in the
private sector, people are losing their jobs. Jobs are getting eradicated, and the
members of the public are looking at the County as to what we can do to save tax
dollars. So just food for thought, Mr. Chair. So, yes, Mr. Director?
MR. HUNT: Maui County Code 2.80B sets out an ambitious schedule for the update of
the General Plan. It gives us ten years to update 11 plans; the Countywide Policy
Plan, the Maui Island Plan, and nine community plans. Essentially, I look at it as
painting the Golden Gate Bridge. As soon as you're done with that process, you
better start in on, on the next goal or you're going to be in trouble. It's, it's, it's
difficult to imagine even meeting that ten-year cycle. . .given the amount of
involvement and, and citizen review that this community seems to favor in the
updates of these plans. So as Kathleen said, the. . .we are already starting on the
Lanai Community Plan and the Molokai Community Plan. The West Maui
Community Plan will be started up shortly behind that, and also Hana. So we'll
have four community plans going at the same time, likely, the Maui Island Plan
will be going. So in response to your question, the Long Range Planning
staff--and also as Kathleen mentioned, there's other obligations, they have master
plans they're working on and there's implementation tasks should the Maui Island
Plan be adopted. So in answer to your question, I don't see the ability to cut Long
Range staff. I will, in all likelihood, be coming back and asking for more staff.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Well, that will be an interesting discussion,
Mr. Chairman, but, you know, we got to make adjustments where we need. And
how do you measure efficiency? I mean just having more personnel doesn't
guarantee efficiency. And are we going to get these plans done in the allotted
time? I mean we've seen it--these plans don't get done in the allotted time. So
that, that's what we're being judged by the public, you know, when, when we're,
when our departments ask for more personnel. . .that's more tax dollars. And
people have a right to expect efficiency from not only this Department, all
departments when there's more requests for personnel. So I know there's the
argument about economic, we being an economic stimulus. But we also must be
sensitive, on the other hand, to the rest of the public. So I'm just trying to think of
ways how we can make some additional adjustments. And that Zucker Report,
the audit, I think will help serve as a guideline for us, Mr. Chairman. Thank you.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Molina. Words well taken. Any more
questions for the Department on the A Account?
NOTE: Silence.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: You have? No?
. . . Okay. Yeah, just a comment from the Chair regarding the A Account. You
know, we've ...
. . . you know, this is pretty difficult budget. You know, everybody thought it was
going to be easy, but it's not. You know, when you try to look at efficiency as
well as trying to reduce your. . .costs, it becomes a challenge. And, you know, I
come from the private sector. Although it was ten years ago, some of the things
that we look at, and one of the hardest thing to do is removing positions. But. . .I
don't think any one of us want to go there, but if it becomes such, then, you know,
we, we need to swallow hard and just do that. But at this time, you know. . .we'll
review the budget, and we'll do what we need to do in regards to balancing the
2011 Budget for the Administration. Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah, and, and, and I...your, your words are well
stated; however, I think that if this Council. . .when we don't fund positions,
Mr. Chairman, is really saying that we don't want those positions to ever be
funded during this next year, fiscal year. And we've seen, in the past, that if there
are vacant positions but departments find money, they fill it. So I think that is an
important policy question that we need to deal with, yeah. If we're not...if we
don't want to see it funded, then we should eliminate it because we heard the cry
here today, and, and, and he's not going to be the first, and we've already seen
actions of other departments where we've not funded but somehow they find
money, and they fill the positions. So if we know how this process works, then
we need to make that policy decision. We've asked Fred. . .and, and his answer
was we need to stimulate the economy. And is that how we see, and is that the
reason that we accept from Administration as their answer, as to how stimulation
of the economy will occur? I mean, you know, I, I, I'm not going to say that's not
a good reason, but I'm going to say that is not the reason why we left those
positions unfunded. That is the general idea of what we should be dealing with,
Mr. Chairman, not economic stimulation, Fred. And that's not why the Council
decided not to fund the position. So, anyway. . .it is High Noon, and so-ALL: . . . (laughter).. .
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Gary Cooper wants to go and shoot up and disappear--
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ALL: . . .(laughter). . .
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --into the distance.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you for . . . (laughter). . . reminding all of us that it's 12
o'clock. Members, when we get back, we'll, you know, close out the A Account,
and then we'll go into the B Account, and lastly the. . .last of the items that we're
going to be reviewing is the, the grant revenue side. So, at this time, the Chair is
going to call for our lunch break, and we'll reconvene at 1:30. This meeting is in
recess. . . .(gavel). . .
RECESS:
RECONVENE:

12:00 p.m.
1:31 p.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . (gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee meeting is
now reconvened. Members, when we left off, we were still in the A Account. Is
there any more questions on the A Account?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Uh-COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Not a question.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: A. . .statement. Fred, this is really confusing for me-MR. PABLO: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --when I see different departments coming up, and then
they come and say, man, we're at bare bones already. You know, it's like
my...the skin's gone-MR. PABLO: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --the vein's showing. You know-COUNCILMEMBER

: . . .(laughter). . .

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --like blood's coming out.
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COUNCILMEMBER

: . . .(laughter). . .

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: You know like. . .and, and, and I, and I feel sorry-MR. PABLO: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: yeah? Until. . .until...
COUNCILMEMBER

: Oh, here it comes.

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: . . . because they're saying, oh, I can't run my
program...until. . .and I hope it's not the, in the name of economic development,
as you said-MR. PABLO: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Mr. Chairman, they start filling those positions that
were vacant . . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: . . . and, and tell me that, you know, they're almost
naked.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: They're bones and they haven't eaten and everything
else.
COUNCILMEMBER

: . . .(laughter). . .

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Until that time.
MR. PABLO: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: That if I see any of them 20 pounds overweight, I'm
going to question that-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay-COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --because of what they're doing here. And that's my
concern, Mr. Chairman. So . . . (sigh). . . Fred . . .
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MR. PABLO: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: . . .you cannot. . .you cannot tell these guys, when they
come up to speak on two sides of their mouth. . .one part, we're bare bones, and
then after that, fill these positions from wherever they get that money
from. . .because you, because you've cut it so bad that they can't run their
program.
MR. PABLO: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Any response?
MR. PABLO: Yeah, I'd, I'd like to make a response to that.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thank you.
MR. PABLO: As I said. . .the idea of a Program Budget is to provide flexibility for the
department. Other budgets are line item, and I think maybe that's what some of
the Members are leaning towards, a line item. Once it's cut, no filling. With a
Program Budget, it gives the manager a lot more flexibility. And the example I
would like to give is let's say because we had to cut last year--remember last year
we removed or this body removed X amount millions from the budget. So to
compensate for that, certain positions were frozen or partly...not "frozen", but
partly are not funded. Now, those positions are important or could be important,
let's say. I think it's the manager's choice if a vacancy arises and that's a less
important position, not that they're . . .(laughter). . . they're not all important, but
let's say you had a very highly technical position that we partly funded because
we had to, looking for money last year. A vacancy opens up this year at a less
important position. Which should the manager fill, the less important or the one
that was partly funded? That, I think this is what we have to see because we're
faced with. . .the public. Do we cut back programs or services because we do not
have the proper staffing? Or do we leave it to the manager, with this limited
funds that we've given them, to allow them to make the right decision to keep a
certain level of programs and services? That's what I'm saying. It's not just all
for economic stimulus. That's the second part of it. A lot of articles that are
coming out in the Journal of Accountancy and the GFOA is a lot of municipalities
are retrenching instead of acting as a stimulus. And that's the part I was bringing
out. We need to understand what is our role as a county government. You know,
do we really want to hamper the departments that they cannot keep a certain level
of program service? Do we close swimming pools? Do we close the lifeguard
stands? You know, this is what I'm stating. And, and I think the Program Budget
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is, is a darned good way of managing, a darned good way of
managing. . .especially in a case where you have limited funds.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . Okay. Thank you. I, you know-COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: He didn't really shut me up. I just don't want to argue
that point anymore . . .(laughter). . .
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: You know . . .(laughter). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No, I-COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: You know?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Well, the thing is that . . .
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . because of the Program Budget, you know, we give the
Administration the flexibility in. . .moving, well, not "moving", but meeting their
objectives one way or. . .or the other by. . .and we all know that funds are moved
from A, B, and C Accounts.
. . . What you driving at, if we had a performance-based budget where A Account
is strictly for administration, B Account for operations, C Account for equipment,
then you would know how much money is being spent on personnel. And, and if
there's a need to increase personnel, then the A Account would basically tell us
that; or in operations if they don't have enough money to meet their every day
expenses, then the B Account will give us that indication; and the C Account, you
know, in regards to the equipment. But. . .the performance budget, unless we ask
a quarterly report in regards to how, how the Program Budget is doing on a
quarterly basis--meaning that if monies are being moved from A, B, C Account to
supplement, you know, each of the accounts in the performance ...Program
Budget, then a quarterly report will tell us that. But right now we don't have any
means in regards to knowing how much money has been moved from each of the
accounts until we come over here. And we have all of these questions all the
time. And, you know, I've been here eight budgets now, and one of the things
that I advocated my first year was a performance-based budget because a
performance-based budget is strictly that--it tells you. You know, you perform
on, on A, you perform on B, and you perform on C Accounts. So if you want to
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go to a performance budget, then it's something that we need to discuss with the
Administration, probably not this year, probably not next year, but the following
year so that, you know, we can start the process if we decide to go performance
budget in the next couple of years. But it's not going to take, you know, one
budget cycle to do that. So I just...I know we have a lot of discussions every,
every year regarding the budget. And because of our economy today, you know,
we now, you know, scrutinize the budget really careful, and that's the reason why
for a lot of questions, probably a lot of tensions. So. . .it's going to be our
responsibility, as Council Members, to come out with a budget for Fiscal Year
2011 for the Administration to administer. So, Members, it's going to be up to us.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: If we see, if we see vacant positions that are noted, and, and we
feel that, you know, we don't fund the position and the likelihood of, you know,
monies being found and, and, and, and filling out that position, then what we
could do is provide some kind proviso where we say that all of the vacant
positions that we say now are frozen will be frozen for that budget year. And
if. . .more manpower is required for, like say, Fiscal Year 2012, then it would be
the department's responsibility to provide us that justification.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: . . .(inaudible). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The other way to go is just eliminate the position. Justify, you
know, in 2012. So you know, you know, I thought I'd just provide you that
comment in regards to performance-based budget as compared to program-based
budget. And, you know, what we could kick around in regards to the, the
positions that are frozen, you know, for each of the department. We have the
ability to control that so that it, it doesn't. . .be filled. Mr. Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah, and, and, and, and, and I, I thank you for the food
in which perhaps now I can. . .figure out which way, which food I want to eat by
giving those alternatives as far as how we're going to craft it. But I'm glad we
also have the departments here to give us...or listen to them as far as how they
think, you know, and, and how, how they're acting towards that budget because,
as I've said, we set the policy. And, and despite that we may say, and, and we can
look at it as being a line item, yeah. . .take, for an example, Main Street, okay.
Now, I'm not...I don't have the proof yet until we get to the B Account, but if I
find out that they didn't give any money to this, and yet it was a policy question,
and we decided to give money to these people, why they've not. Thank God
they're still operating. I don't know how they do it. You know, pray hard. God
sends them money or whatever, I don't know that question. But it's a give and
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take, but yet if we're agreeing on, on, on a policy statement and yet I don't know
what the answer is, I surely want to. . .fmd out today-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --you know. So. . .the leading statement that Mr. Hunt
said about we're going to look at this budget, and, and, and, and, and not gloss
over. . .to me, Mr. Chairman. . .if I'm going to be barred from asking any question
that pertains to today's budget and not have an answer as to why or why not I'm
going to deal with this Department, I, I want them to answer also straight with us.
So, anyway, Jeff, you know, I don't think that, for me anyway, I don't want to
gloss over this, this day that we have to make financial decisions on how this
Department is going to run and what they've done in running such a program.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, and that's the process...
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And I thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Nishiki. And that's the process that we go
through. You know, again, you know, being here eight years we, we go through
each department's budget request. Of course, we ask a lot of questions, and we
finally come out with a product. And it is our right to ask the departments
questions in regards to the budget that they are proposing to us. And, and this
Chairman will not shy away from, you know, having you ask those questions.
The only thing I ask is that sometimes we ask questions that are, you know,
basically micromanaging department. That's when I get concerned, yeah. It's not
our place to micromanage, but we can ask the tough questions that you guys are
asking. . .in fact for the last couple of days. And I, I don't think the departments
that have come through had faced, you know, those tough questions in. . .eight
years.
. . . This is the first time, because of the economic condition, that we are asking
questions--because not only the departments that are concerned, but we do have
programs that we support outside this County Building that are also asking
questions. And, and, you know, we all the share the same burden--both the public
as well as this County. So with that, I had enough with A Account
. . .(laughter). . . If any Member. . .Members here have any questions on the A
Account? Mr. Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. I just wanted to ask one
question because of what we're discussing and what you have expressed. So
when, when a position is not budgeted for, meaning that they will not either fill
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that position or...why does the equivalent personnel number doesn't get adjusted?
Because we're talking about personnel here, and we're talking about positions.
So if, if a position is not funded why does it reflect it to include that position?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: That's a very good question.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Because if it's not included in the EP count, then
they would...wouldn't they, the departments, have to come back to us if they
wanted to find money to fill that position during the fiscal year?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: That's a good question, and I'm stuck for an answer for you.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Would the Budget Director have a response?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, maybe. Budget Director, if you have any response.
When we freeze a position...but remember, Members, last year we didn't fund
positions.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Uh-huh.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So the positions were there. So in this case here, we are
freezing the position.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So, you know, there is. . .some definitions, I guess, that need -COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah. Right.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --to be clarified. Budget Director?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Well, before he answers let me say that the...it's
titled "equivalent personnel". "Personnel" usually refers to a person that work in
that position. But what we, what we talking about is, you know, another segment
of that being actually positions. whether we funding it or not. So I, I have a
question on that. And if the Budget Director has comments?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Budget Director?
MR. PABLO: Certainly. I'd be glad to give my comments on it. The, the EP counts is
what the Budget and Finance Committee has authorized. Whenever we come
down with a budget, and if there's expansion positions, as they call it, if this body
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approves it, that will be one EP count. Whereas, funding the position or not
funding positions is just showing a dollar amount on it. In a Program Budget, as
long as we have the EP count, the, the department can fill that position--and this
is in accordance with the general budget provisions in the ordinance. Now, for
example. . .the whole thing in partly funding or not funding it is really a budget,
budget mechanism for, for reducing funding of that particular program. In some
cases, we don't want to do that. For example, Police last year, they had an
increase in salary of 6 percent required by the Collective Bargaining Agreement.
And yet I want to try to make as little impact on the General Fund budget as
possible. So I met with the Chief of Police and agreed, I forgot how many
positions it was, about 48 positions that they agreed to 50 percent funding. That
way, it gives them flexibility. They can, they can fill those 48 positions half year,
`cause there's only 50 percent funding, or because they were recruiting quite a bit
of new recruits because of the unemployment situation, the could actually use that
funding at 50 percent and do full funding for 25 positions. This gives them...or
they could do partly for full year, partly for nine months, partly for six months,
part for three months. This way, it gives the Chief of Police the flexibility when
to hire, when to recruit, and so forth. And I said it, this is a real good item for the,
for the Program Budget, and. . .I don't know . . .(laughter). . . if you have any
more questions, yeah, but that, that's an example. The Police had the EP
positions, but they only had 50 percent funding for those 48 positions. I, I think it
was 48. We could check on that, but I was just giving that as an example.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Director, thank you for that explanation.
Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, and, and, and I just want for clarification, and,
and just so that I understood what Mr. Pablo said and what you just explained.
There's a, there's a, there's a difference between a position, an EP position in the
budget. . .and freezing a position in the budget; am I correct, Mr. Chair? You,
you mentioned that earlier.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, remember last year we...the positions were left in
place -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: --without any funding or with partial funding. This time
around, the position is frozen. When I hear "frozen", it cannot be filled.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Is that what you're understand, Mr. Pablo?
NOTE: Pause.

MR. PABLO: . . . I have not come across that term in the, in the Code or Charter. I don't
know if the Corporation Counsel has any comments on the definition of "frozen"?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Could we have Corporation Counsel-MR. PABLO: I'm sure.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --weigh in on this? I mean, since we brought up
the subject and I'd like to get clarification, please?
NOTE: Silence.

MS. VILLAROSA: . . . Chair, I believe that term, "frozen", is being used by the
Administration to voluntarily freeze positions because when the departments want
to fill a position, they have to request approval for that. So if the
Administration ...
. . . if the position is frozen in the administration, it means that it's not going to
get approved to be filled. But I believe, in preparation for the budget, the
departments were given the. . .authority, I guess, to take a look at their budget and
see which positions they could freeze for now and which ones they, they couldn't.
So that...I think Fred had kind of gone over that--that. . .that the departments
basically made that decision. But once the, once the departments declared the
position frozen, then...and I believe it means that the Administration is not going
to authorize it to be filled.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. So, so, so, so, so that what you're saying is
basically once the Administration says this Land Use Permit Clerk, I just, because
I read it right in front of me, is frozen-MR. PABLO: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --right, even if money is found by the department
head, they cannot go ahead and, and fill that position.
MR. PABLO: That's correct, yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. PABLO: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So that's, that's the difference...and if it's just
sitting there as an unfunded position, Land Use Permit Clerk, and the department
somehow down the road finds some money...whatever...like Mr Iinuma said
yesterday, he saved here, he saved there, and then he was able to put this positionMR. PABLO: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --or fund that position -MR. PABLO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --that would be allowable.
MR. PABLO: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. So, so that...so the discussion is...and how
will we know which is frozen positions, and I guess, you know, and what is
unfunded position? I mean I can see unfunded, when it's zeroed out, that's
unfunded-UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: . . .(inaudible). . .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: But, Mr. Chair, how do we know it's a frozen
position? Where does that come in the, in, in, in these, in the budget?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Well, I see what you see. . .but explanation-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, so I mean I just...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --yeah, the explanation given to us was the positions
were. . .you know, frozen or the term freeze.
MR. PABLO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Uh. . .when you look at the, the proposal for 2011, they don't
show any dollars, so . . .
MR. PABLO: When-CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . Corporation Counsel had explained to us. . .based on
the...based on the Mayor, these positions will not be filled.
MR. PABLO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. And, and I guess that's the question...I
think that's what all the discussion is kind of heading towards . . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: . . . is what is not going to be, so that we truly
understand, so that later on they don't come running in and say you want to fund
it, and what is going to be, like, an unfunded position that if later on they need to
fund it, they can go ahead.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I guess that's the clarification I'm asking for.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. And, and -MR. PABLO: Maybe...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --in regards to the EP, you know, the reason why it's left
there. . .if for some reason the position is required, maybe not 2011, maybe
2012. . .2013, then to redescribe the position again, it's going to be a lengthy
process. Whereas, we leave the position without the funding, then it gives the...at
least the department some flexibility in trying to fund...fill positions that were
frozen for a number of years. It could be one year, two, three years.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well, thank you, Mr. Chair, for that clarification
and I, I, I, I knew that, that existed, but I guess the, the key now is the frozen
position and, again, maybe that's what we're trying to get at this point, or at least
I'm asking the question. Maybe some other Members don't have that concern,
but what is a frozen position and what is the term, and how long, I guess, that
frozen position. Unfunded, I understand.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. And, and, you know, again, we have the. . .authority to
proviso the positions that are so-called frozen. . .or freeze, that they not be filled
in the Fiscal Year 2011.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And, and, and thank you, Chair, but, again, if
Mr. Pablo could address that question -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Mr. Pablo?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --I would appreciate it.
MR. PABLO: Okay. Let me, let me address it, I mean, specifically for the Planning
Department.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Fine.
MR. PABLO: When you go through the list of employees from Page 14-2 through
14-4 . . .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
MR. PABLO: . . . to the far left hand column you'll see a footnote with a number. And a
number 4. . .if you look across, there'll be zero amount for 2011. Those are the
positions we have identified with the Department.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And when we...
MR. PABLO: For, for, for example, the first one on 14-2. . .would be, midway, the
PC-0058 Planner W, we...Planner I. We spoke with the Department, we agreed
to not fund that position for Fiscal '11. We could do...we could hold off on that
one. . .similar with the other number 4s. And Kathleen Aoki, this morning,
identified six positions with that footnote 4 on the left-hand column, the far left.
And when you go to the Program footnotes on 14-4, it explains what footnote 4 is.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And I read the footnote right here. It says, number
4, "FY '11 unfunded".
MR. PABLO: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay?
MR. PABLO: Yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And it doesn't say frozen.
MR. PABLO: Yeah . . .(laughter). . .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. No, and, again, excuse me, because -MR. PABLO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --that has been a footnote in the past, unfunded,
you know, that we weren't going to fund something. So, again, maybe I'm
making more out of this than I should-UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: No.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --and I, I apologize, but...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Victorino-MR. PABLO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --just to satisfy your concern, we can put in a proviso saying
that this position will not be filled in the Fiscal Year 2011. Just leave it at that.
COUNCILMEMBER

: Uh-huh.

COUNCILMEMBER

: Yeah.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: That way, we don't have to go into funded, unfunded, what is
frozen, what is freeze.
. . . I, I just want to move on.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . .(inaudible). . .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you. I mean others bring up
questions, and I, and I, and I get concerns, so I ask the same...similar question.
Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. And if you do have concerns, you know, the Chair is
not going to stop you guys from --

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
March 24, 2010

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --sending your questions to me for the Department to, to
provide us with some response. So. . .I'm going to leave the A Account and if
you do have more questions, you know, provide the Chairman with the, your
request. We're going into the B Account, and I think the B Account, we're going
to spend some time. But let me remind you, Members, by 4 o'clock we need to
be out of here. Okay?
. . . Mr. Molina, you got questions on the B Account?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, a couple, Chair. Yeah . . .(laughter). . . Thank
you, Chairman. And my first question...actually, I don't know where, where to
even start. First of all, you know, upon hearing Mr. Nishiki's comments with
regards to. . .the funding of positions and so forth...and...or funding of the
organization, I should say, you know, Mr. Chair, if I'm correct the Council
authorizes the appropriation of monies to any non-profit entity or so forth. It's
not the department. Am I not correct? And, I guess, Corporation Counsel, if you
want to comment? It's not the department who authorizes it. I mean ultimately
it's the Council who does that. Am I not correct, Ms. Villarosa?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Corporation Counsel?
MS. VILLAROSA: You're talking about authorizing of the positions?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No. No. I'm sorry, we're on B Account, Grants.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: We're in B Account, Grants.
MS. VILLAROSA: Oh, okay.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: We authorize that appropriation, right? It's not the
department. The department makes a recommendation to us, but ultimately the
Council has the say in authorizing, allocating those funds, right?
MS. VILLAROSA: For the line items grants . . .
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Right. For example, in this case -MS. VILLAROSA: . . . in the, in the Planning budget-COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --Wailuku Main Street Association.
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MS. VILLAROSA: Right. Right. That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. And if there's a delay in funding this
organization, like Mr. Nishiki had said and we had heard in testimony this
morning--this organization still hasn't been reimbursed for whatever reasons with
the contract--is there any regulation there that the Council should be informed of
this, because we authorized the allocation of this grant and funds? And
yet...now, I don't know, I'm going to give the Department the benefit of the
doubt, if they informed anybody on this Committee or the Council Chair as to
why this holdup is occurring.
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Is there anything, anything in our Code or whatever
that requires the departments to notify the Council in an event like this, when
monies are being held up?
MS. VILLAROSA: There's not a requirement for the Administration to encumber the
funds, as you know, or to expend the monies. But our office does
frequently. . .advise departments, particularly when we know that it's a subject
that was of particular interest, we advise courtesy letters reporting on the status of
items. But it's not a legal requirement.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Mr. Chair, did we get anything from the
Planning Department related to this holdup from the Planning Department and
Tri-Isle Main Street-CHAIR PONTANILLA: UH-COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --to your knowledge?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: We received a memo from the Mayor, dated March the 10 th . I
don't know if everybody got that copy. . .which states the Administration's
position regarding this particular contract.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. And this seems to have been...I mean,
Ms. Perreira or the Tri-Isle Main Street provided us a timeline of events that have
happened. So I'm just trying to get specifics as to what's been going on here.
And I don't know if the Members got a copy of a letter that was directed
to...from...to Mr. Cannon from Ms. Aoki. . .Ms. Aoki, related to the contract.
And we've been given copies of the contract as well.
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. . . And. . .the wording in this letter concerns me, Mr. Chairman. I don't know if
everybody got this. It's a March 4 th , 2010, letter, and I'll...if nobody has copies
I'll ask Staff to make copies of it. And it states in reference to Wailuku Main
Street Association and the grant agreement. Your request to delete the line noting
that "all materials collected in association with this project will be transmitted to
the Planning Department" is not acceptable, and furthermore, is not negotiable.
The grant agreement has been drafted, reviewed, and authorized by the Maui
County Department of Corporation Counsel. As such, the Planning Department is
firm in its commitment to the content. Please take note that the signed and
notarized document needs to be returned to the Department no later than
Thursday, April 1s t, 2010 in order for proper processing to occur with the
necessary agencies. Failure to do so could result in lapsing of the grant. You
know, Mr. Chair, this is the most strongly worded letter I've ever seen coming
from a department to a non-profit, and it concerns me. It almost sounds like
there's some kind of arm-twisting going on here. And I would like to request...I
don't know if this standard procedure they're adding to this contract. All these
years this. . .Tri-Isle Association, they've never worked with...all of a sudden all
these new terms are being added to the contract. Are they doing the same for
other non-profit associations, like, for example, MRA or anyone else? I mean,
you know, if you're going to do this to one you better do it to all. This is very
strong, and, you know, one could interpret this as just strong-arming and
threatening and. . .I mean I hope it's not that. And I'm going to dig into this.
And there's some, got to be some kind of accountability with this, Mr. Chairman.
I'm extremely concerned about this kind of tone. And, you know, all these years
this organization has worked well with the County Planning Department. Why,
all of a sudden, all this stuff is occurring, you know, and it's disturbing, extremely
disturbing. And I hope this Administration...I don't know if this Administration
is condoning this kind of tone or policy, you know . . .(sigh). . . I hope I'm
proved wrong because there's some issues in here that could be perceived as
being slanderous to the people of this organization from the Planning Department.
And we certainly as heck, Mr. Chairman, don't need another lawsuit. Ha, we got
too much . . . (laughter). . .already to deal with.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I agree with you.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: This is...I don't know, just for me it feels like there's
some kind of strong-arming tactics going on here. And when you look at the
amount of the cut, it's pretty extreme--from 243 down to 182. There needs to be
some explaining done. So I guess that's where I'll start and ask for the
Department's...well, to give their side of the story.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Either Budget Director or Department.
. . . Uh, but before you answer that, Mr. Pablo, when we discuss the 2010 budget,
and we approved that budget, that budget was presented to us by the Planning
Department. And now we have this issue. Can you explain...I know they have
the authority to expend that dollars, but whenever a non-profit comes to this
Council and we approve dollars for the services that they provide to this County,
what is our responsibility in, in trying to meet our obligation to any nonprofit in
Maui County? Because the departments recommends and we approve. Maybe,
Corporation Counsel?
NOTE: Silence.

MS. VILLAROSA: . . . Mr. Chair, I, I don't really have anything else to add besides, you
know, what I had stated earlier. The Administration...as you know, the Executive
Branch doesn't have an obligation to spend money. The Council is authorized to
appropriate the funds, and then it's the Administration that encumbers the money.
And as I said earlier, you know, there's no requirement, any, there's no reporting
requirement or--unless there's a specific requirement, you know, if a specific
requirement doesn't exist, there's no legal requirement for the department to
report that back. But, like I said, if we know that it's a controversial item or
something of particular importance, then we do advise the departments to send
courtesy letters. But that's, that's about it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Let me ask you this question. Have we held funding...well,
how many, how many non-profits did we held funding for in Fiscal Year 2010?
. . . Maybe, Budget Director, if you can't answer that question now, if you can
provide it to us in writing, and I'll have Staff provide you with that particular
request. Okay? Mr. Hunt, if you can answer Mr. Molina's question?
NOTE: Pause.

MR. HUNT: . . . Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I'll give a few comments, and then I'll turn
it over to Ms. Aoki. First of all, I would like to say that I think a better way to
investigate issues is to ask questions before you make conclusion after conclusion.
. . . We're here to answer those questions.
. . . There's a, there's a saying--there's two sides to every story. And I would ask
that you listen to our side of the story before you make conclusion after
conclusion.

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
March 24, 2010

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: That's what I'm doing.
MR. HUNT: The contract that is with issue of the Wailuku Main Street Association, as I
understand it, and Kathleen can go into more details, is based on standard contract
provisions that we hold with other non-profits and grants. . .is based on those
other contracts. It was reviewed and revised by Corporation Counsel, Mr. Hopper
is here. I would ask that you ask for his input regarding this issue as well.
. . . The problem arises because in the past the contract...in my opinion, the
contract for the Wailuku Main Street Association was unusual. What we are
trying to do is bring that contract into compliance consistency, perhaps is a
better word, to be consistent with all the other grants and contracts. Wailuku
Main Street sees that as a problem from their perspective. I can understand that.
The contract puts...the contract doesn't give them the freedom to act as much as
they would like. One of the issues between Wailuku Main Street and us is the
issue of oversight and accountability. Because there's tax dollars involved, we
believe that we have a responsibility to have oversight and monitoring because if
something goes wrong. . .that contract, that grant is within the Planning
Department's budget, and who do you think is going to be called to the table?
. . . So again we're not, we're not creating an extra hurdle for Wailuku Main
Street. . .we're bringing them up to the same level as everyone else. And with
that I'll turn it over to Kathleen who can give you more details.
MS. AOKI: Thank you. What we did was you should have all gotten a handout that's a
letter dated from the Mayor, March 16 th , 2010, and attached to it is part of the
reason why this contract has taken so long. The reason why they have not been
paid anything is simply because we don't have a contract agreement signed. So
until I get that, I can't pay them anything. So it's not like I'm withholding
anything, it's just that the agreement hasn't been signed, and it has taken a long
time to get that process going. I was looking over Ms. Perreira's timeline, and I,
too, made a timeline of the correspondence that we've been having with them,
and it pretty much matches. Essentially, the first proposal that they gave, one of
the issues was that they wanted to use $13,000 for a project at Baldwin Beach.
And when I contacted the Parks Department, they already have a master plan
contract for this particular project, so it didn't make sense for Planning
Department to put in $13,000 for a Parks' project that was already funded. So we
said, you know, that that wasn't going to work. We also raised questions about
what do they use $50,000 for in their contracts. That Exhibit B could no longer
be special for them because they would go and...they, they crossed out certain
sections of standard language that is in every other contract. So there were things
like that that we looked over, and we said, you know what, no, everybody has to
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play by the same rules and have the same Exhibit B--which I can go over. We
also mentioned that we needed to see bylaws, that there were issues with the
products being draft or not being draft and being final. And that stemmed a lot
from the Makawao Beautification Project that happened, which I'm sure you're
all aware of. So in essence we provided sort of this letter on August 4', '09,
stating our concerns. They responded September 2 nd , and then said they wanted
to meet with us. So we met with them. And I, I'm kind of...I'm not, I'm not
going to go through every single thing, but there were emails and discussions,
phone calls with then Chair John Min, who I had conversations with. When they
came back with another proposal for the $13,000, their proposal was to go
through every single community plan and go through sort of what's been
implemented, what hasn't. And I explained to them that I, when I was in Long
Range Planning, had actually already done that. So we didn't need that to be
done again. So, again, we had a question about what are we going to do with this
$13,000 for the project? There were also issues, because when I looked at their
last contract, I saw a 12 percent increase in salaries, and given that nobody was
getting any raises, I questioned that. They responded that it was not 12 percent,
that it, in fact, was only 6 percent. So, again, it raised kind of questions when
everybody's being cut, you know, these salary increases. Nevertheless, we, we
went back and forth and Erin Wade came up with a project that they could work
on, and they discussed it with Wailuku Main Street Association, but there was
one--the difficulty for me, and again this is, this is because I'm going to get asked
what is this money going towards--they agreed to do this. . .this project, but there
was going to be no report given. So I wouldn't have anything in my hand to say,
okay, this, this function was done and this was the outcome of it. So I said that's
not acceptable. I don't want a video. I want some...even if it's a one- or
two-page report, I need something. You know, and to me that's reasonable.
What other contract would give where you wouldn't get something in return
besides a video. So again it went back and forth, back and forth. We get to
January. We finally draft a contract. We sent it to...we sent it up to Corp.
Counsel for review on January 21 st . I got an email from Mike Hopper on
February 11, asking me to look at a lot of the new language that they had now
added to the contract. So there's a lot of stuff in the contract that was added in
from Corp. Counsel because, again, we're trying to get consistency in these
agreements. And a lot of the stuff was unintentionally omitted in previous
contracts. So I looked at it. I'm not an attorney, and I said, okay.
. . . So it ends up that they didn't like this. And that's where you can look at this
handout. . .which will show you everything that they crossed out in the language
of the contract. Now, I know these pages...the pages of the contract are, are
numbered, but if you look, for example, on Page 4, they've crossed out entire H.
If you look at Page 6, they've crossed out J, K, M. I mean these, these are things
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that I didn't put in, but legal counsel did. So...and then there were some other
mistakes, yeah, that I admit we, we needed to clean up. So I discussed with the
Mayor, and I had, I sent a letter to the board, which is the letter that Mike Molina
read aloud on 3/4...dated March 4 th , 2010, basically saying, you know. . .there's
things that just, I can't negotiate. I can't take these things out and the time's
ticking. And I know that in order to process this, I have to get it to Finance, I
have to get it to Corp. Counsel. It's got to go through all the channels of...you
know, June 30th is going to come up. So I started getting worried that these funds
were going to lapse, and honestly I don't want them to lapse. I want to give them
their money, but I need a grant, and I need it signed. So they didn't like this, and
so I met with Corp. Counsel again--and Mike Hopper is here--and essentially it
was these things cannot be taken out. They can either sign it and get their money,
or they don't sign it and they don't get their money. So the Mayor subsequently
rewrote...wrote this letter dated March 16 th , saying that we are drafting...we're
making some corrections, which were little corrections such as the naming of
their organization, so they weren't substantial, but the more substantial things are
going to remain I reviewed the contract, it came back down, and I was out on
Monday. I read it yesterday, and they were contacted today to come and pick it
up, the revised contract. So, yes, it has taken a long time. This is unusual, but
it's simply because we're trying to be consistent and fair. The language--and I
would, I would actually appreciate if Mike Hopper could explain how he, he
incorporated the language that was put in there.
NOTE: Silence.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Mr. Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Mr. Chair, if it's okay with you, Ms. Aoki requested
Mr. Hopper, as Corporation Counsel, to explain the language that was put into the
WMSA contract.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sure.
NOTE: Pause while Mr. Hopper approached the floor.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . Be, before you review the contract, I just have a question
for the Department. Prior to this fiscal year, what was our agreement and what,
what type of contracts were given to WMSA in regards to receiving funding from
the County? Did we have...I'm sure we had contracts.
MS. AOKI: Yeah, we, we did. When I became Deputy, the, I, I was asked to try to make
these contracts, to start looking at them and make them a little, you know, more
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consistent. But we, for Fiscal Year '09 it remained the same as all the previous
years. So this was-CHAIR PONTANILLA: So only this year...this fiscal year. . .changes were made to
previous contracts?
MS. AOKI: That's correct.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Mr. Hopper?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mr. Chairman, before Mr. Hopper goes on. . .we're,
because the word "contracts" has been used, but we're talking about the grant
agreement of County funds-MS. AOKI: Same-COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --right?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
MS. AOKI: Grant agreement, grant contract.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Oh, okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: It's a grant agreement, but there's . . .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Contract . . . (inaudible).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . contract provisions -COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --that need to be administered.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Yeah, but the title...the document is Grant
Agreement of County Funds?
MS. AOKI: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Hopper?
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MR. HOPPER: Thank you, Mr. Chair. To give a bit of background, our office does draft
grant agreements. I would do the agreements that flow through the Planning
Department. There's not many of those, you know, not as many as the Office of
Economic Development or CDBG would have, for example. So we get the
request to draft a grant agreement, and get a scope of work, and a general idea of
what sort of grant would be needed. We reviewed this grant and did determine
that, upon my review of this grant as well as other County grants, that there were
several terms that were in other County grants that for whatever reason were not
in this grant agreement in past years. Also, in response to some concerns raised
by the Planning Department, we did take some language--and I'm not necessarily
a very creative person--I took the language from other County grant documents,
and in one case, modeled language after a State grant that was given to the
County to, in my opinion, make the grant document more protective of the
County's possible liability that could flow from these grants and to make the grant
sort of more standard with the other grants that were going through our office. I
do believe that all of the language in this grant is absolutely legal, and I would
recommend against taking any of the language out because it, it would be, I think,
a detriment to the agreement. This agreement is very similar to agreements that,
for example, we have with the State, with the Coastal Zone Management Act
where the State is granting the County money, and where the Federal government
would grant the County money. So I believe these terms and conditions--I did
recently incorporate these into another grant that the Planning Department has,
and my plan is to have...to keep this standard set of terms and conditions, to the
extent possible, in all future grants that I'll be drafting for the County. So as far
as the form of the language I do not see anything absolutely illegal with it, and I
do not see problems with it. It is up to the discretion of the, you know, the
department, the Administration to add or subtract terms. And, you know...and so
that could be done. But in my opinion, it would not be advisable to take out the
terms of this grant because I believe that they, you know, are beneficial to the
County, and, like I said, mirror the...many of the provisions that we have in other
grants that the County has given to, to non-profits or other organizations.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Hopper. Mr. Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, well, Mr. Chair, some of my questions have
been answered, but again the perception--for example, it says not negotiable, but
based on what? I don't know it just...usually if you say you're not going to
negotiate, you give a specific reason. And then you look at the tremendous cut in
the grant from 243. Initially, it was mentioned, I guess, in the timetable it was
supposed to be 218 and now 182. Why? It just seems like there's more
questions. And, Mr. Chair, in all fairness, if you feel it appropriate, I'd like to
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ask, you know, when we have Ms. Perreira as the Executive Director of the Main
Street Association respond to what Deputy Director Aoki stated on the floor,
but. . .at, at the appropriate time, after all the Members have had a chance to ask
these questions. But it, it's just somewhat mindboggling that it's like, oh, okay,
only now we're going to change the rules of the game. Only now, after 25 years
the Association has worked with the County in good faith? Why only now, you
know? And I know Mr. Hunt, prior to the being the Planning Director he was the
Deputy Planning Director, so back then it seemed to be okay and now here it is.
Why? You know, so please understand how I'm, I'm looking at this,
Mr. Chairman. And it's not only coming from me. It's also, you know, people in
my, my district as well. And, you know, we've got some very reputable people
that are part of this board, so which is why we need to get some answers. So,
anyway, I, I have more, but I'll yield the floor to my fellow colleagues.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Molina. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, Chair, thank you very much. Of course, this is
another one of those situations that are very difficult, but I have a question, and
it's been bothering since I thought about this awhile back. About the time I left
MEO, and of course that was five years ago, so things may have changed, there
was a new position being taken by the funding agencies, especially the State, and
I don't know if that translates to the County, but they were saying that if we
incurred any costs prior to the date that the contract was executed, that they would
not reimburse us. I'm concerned. This is nine months of work that's been done
and now we're going to sign the, the contract and postdate it and are those costs
going to be reimbursed to these people? Is it possible under our legal situation
here?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Corporation Counsel?
NOTE: Silence.

MR. HOPPER: . . . I do, I do not believe that there's a State law that would prohibit,
prohibit the arrangement here in the contract. So I, I. . .I don't...
NOTE: Silence.

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: . . . I, I...Chair, I think that he-UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: . . .(inaudible). . .
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --misunderstood me. I'm not saying there's a State law.
I'm saying what is our rules and our laws? Do we allow that to happen--that we
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postdate contracts and reimburse things paid prior the effective or the signing of
the execution of the contract? That's why I'm worried--because, you know, these
folks have spent nine months of money while we've been fooling with this thing,
and I don't know how they've operated. It's a miracle to me that a small nonprofit organization can advance, well a hundred, what is it, $240,000 contract.
Three-fourths of that is a lot of money. And, you know, whether or not they delay
paying the consultants, they have to pay the staff and the fringe benefits and the
rent and the lights and the water. So if we're not gong to give them the
money. . .they have a real problem. I mean, all, they probably already have had to
borrow money. I know of non-profits going to banks to borrow money and
paying interest, and they never get reimbursed for that. So that's my concern, is
there's a legality here. That's one of my concerns. I want to know, is that going
to be a problem or are they going to be able to get their money, eventually?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Corporation Counsel?
MS. VILLAROSA: Mr. Chair, I believe so long as the expenses that were incurred are in
compliance with the grant agreement terms it should be okay. I know it happens
fairly often in the procurement contract world. . .and, and in that instance we
advise contractors that they, they really do proceed at their own risk--to incur
expenses before the contract is signed. But once the contract is signed, you know,
so long as they are complying with the terms of the agreement. . .the County, you
know, pays for the...pays for it. So that...I don't think that that's been a problem
in the past.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Well, I've, I've experienced it cut both ways, so I just
wanted to make sure that that's not a situation we're dealing with 'cause we're
talking about a substantial amount of money. That was just one of the concerns I
had. I'm going to just defer the rest of my comments until my colleagues have
had a chance to comment, but I'd like to make a suggestion for solution after that
discussion. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Members, you guys got...Member Kaho'ohalahala,
questions on the -COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: No questions about this.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --WMSA? Mr. Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. Ms. Aoki, the example that
was distributed to us of the contract with the changes, those markings on the
contract and changes were done by whom?
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MS. AOKI: Wailuku Main Street Association.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
NOTE: Silence.

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: As soon as...Mr. Chairman, I need to ask him.
. . . So as far as the document itself . . .
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: . . . where is it located now?
MS. AOKI: The revised draft or the revised final, based on their comments and
Corporation Counsel is, it's completed, and we called them today to let them
know that they could pick it up.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Has that occurred yet? Have they picked it
up yet?
MS. AOKI: I don't know -COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
MS. AOKI: --because I've been here . . . (laughter).. .
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mr. Chairman-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Uh-huh?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --being that, you know, this. . .grant agreement is
getting a lot of tension and that the. . .document we're looking at has all the
changes or markings on it, which was done by the Wailuku Main Street, would it
be possible to hear from Wailuku Main Street's representative. . .the reasons why
they crossed out substantial parts of the contract?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I not gonna allow that -COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --but tonight we have a public hearing up in Makawao ...
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Uh-huh.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . or Pukalani, and maybe at that time she can present her...to
us, in public testimony, regarding the particular contract.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Okay. But we won't have Corp. Counsel
with us, the same Corp. Counsel or do we?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: We won't.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: We won't?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: We won't.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Nishiki?
NOTE: Silence.

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: . . . I don't know who wants to field this question, Fred.
In regards to what we call grant agreements to any non-profit. . .unless a grant
agreement is signed, is it the Administration's policy not to release any money?
Is that something that you do right across the board for any non-profit?
MR. PABLO: That's correct. Yes, that is correct. There is about seven departments
which award grants. Each of those departments have their processing procedures.
They review the applications, they, they work with the Corporation Counsel to do
the agreements, and only until the agreements have gone through the sign-off,
through that various departments, will it be awarded.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. Anyway, you know, you know what, Jeff, I and,
and, and, the Deputy, and the Administration. . .if my words are real strong, and I,
I was assuming something when I said I'm out of words, I really apologize. It
doesn't mean that you're right, but I just want to apologize.
. . . Second, Mr. Hopper. . .when you looked at the...oh, did you look at the past
grant that the Planning Department had some concerns with which she used the,
the word "unusual"?
MR. HOPPER: . . . Mr. Chair, I had drafted that agreement in the past based on the past
agreements. For whatever reason, though, when I compared that--and like I said I
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do maybe, maybe one or two grant agreements a year versus some other
departments--I, I did do a review of that old agreement. And the old agreement,
which I think had been. . .the, the agreement that I had drafted there had been
drafted based on the previous year's agreement and the previous year's. . .did not
have a lot of the terms that were in our other grant agreements that we had used in
other departments that were in our office. So we copied and pasted some
language from our other grant agreements that dealt with these issues. Some of
the issues that came up during the year with the administration of that
grant. . .raised concerns from the Department, and I realized that there were
provisions in other grant agreements that addressed those issues that were not in
this agreement. . .that could have been more, more, more explicitly stated and
more carefully stated, provisions that I believe are in State agreements when they
grant funds to the County and in Federal Government agreements that are in
grants to the County as well. I, I'd been seeing similar language or at least
language dealing with certain issues come up a lot that was not in that original
agreement. So I would say that original agreement was not as thorough as I think
some of our other agreements that we had in our office.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And, and, and as you, as you stated earlier. . .all of
these so-called concerns that you had in, in revising the agreement basically was
to protect the County?
MR. HOPPER: I, I would say that, yes. Dealing with intellectual property issues,
dealing with, dealing with document ownership issues and, and things of that
nature that, in my opinion, could lead to County liability in certain situations.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. Now...
MR. HOPPER: And then, Mr. Nishiki, not to say that that's necessarily true of this
organization, and I am including that in other grants that we're giving out, but
language that I think, in my opinion anyway, advising the Department should be
in all grant agreements.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Right. Right. Right. I guess you're, you're, you're,
you're substantiating that because language was made that they're being picked
on.
MR. HOPPER: . . . That's, you know...
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. Don't answer that. Then. . .what were some of
the concerns raised from the Planning Department in the...in what was raised to
you to look at?
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MR. HOPPER: I'd like the Planning Department to speak on that a bit because I do think
that could potentially get into some attorney-client privilege issues, potentially. I,
I can tell you why this...the language...if you have particular issues with, you
know, certain language, I can certainly address why...perhaps where that
language came from or why I believe that language is important to have for the
County. You know, if, if the Planning Department wants to talk about how
they've advised, you know, how they. . .you know, had concerns or the issues that
came up, then that's, that's okay, but I, I don't want to, as their attorney,
necessarily reveal the conversations that I had with them.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. Well, let me you ask a question in this, in this
way. If. . .there was a concern with oversight and accountability, where in this
document did you tighten it up?
NOTE: Pause.

MR. HOPPER: . . . Well, I think one thing in general the, the documents and files issue,
Section H which-COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Page 4?
MR. HOPPER: --yes, which was taken from another County grant. . .basically makes it
clear that documents that are produced with County funds belong to the County.
And one of the reasons that that's done is to ensure that the documents meet the
scope of the work when they're approved, as well as the fact that the documents
do become County documents, that they are not something that could, for
example, have language saying "not to be revealed without the, you know, or not
to be reproduced without the permission of a certain group", or documents
saying...or, for example, documents that will be used...produced with County
funds and kept confidential, for example, not released to the County, or, or
documents that, you know, don't become public documents, as an example. So,
in order to have that accountability, the, you know it's, I think, clear that the
County...that the documents are produced for the County on their behalf. I think
that the quarterly reporting issues, which was not something I put in there, also
could deal with the accountability, potentially, because they require sort of a
progress payment type payment scale rather than a. . .a lump sum payment.
And . . .
. . . I, I think the, the meetings issue, originally, the language of the, for the
meetings was that all meetings will be held open to the public. I think that's
something that the organization objected to. And so, we basically said that the
revised language would have that the Department of Planning, if it chooses to,
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could have a representative present at all meetings except for board meetings.
That would allow a County representative to oversee what the money is being
used for, potentially. There's also a bylaws section. I don't believe we drafted
that one. I think that was requested by the Planning Department, but I'm not
positive, that requires bylaws and also have to include provisions relating to
nepotism and management of potential conflict of interest situations. You know, I
think that that's...that one's fairly common, I think, for all...for non-profit grants
and things like that. And I can't necessarily, off the top of my head, go over
everything, but I think those are, perhaps, a couple of examples.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. And, and, and I guess, I guess the concern has to
be that, and I don't know how, how many times these documents have been
passed back and forth to each other, you know, for, for one to look at it. So can,
can you explain, just because as Gladys said it's been nine months, okay? And,
and, and I just find it, Mr. Chairman, very hard to believe that all of the rest of the
non-profits are treated in this way. . .that it takes this long, because all of them are
looking for money. So maybe tell me when did this initial process start,
Mr. Hopper? When did you first receive. . .a notification for you to help them?
MR. HOPPER: I don't recall that off-hand, but, you know, we.../ didn't negotiate these
with, with Wailuku Main Street. I had this from the Planning Department as an
assignment. We took the scope of work, drafted the grant agreement, which,
which took a fair amount of time to do that review, and then sent back to the
Department, I think, then the Department forwarded it on. I think one time there
was a review and request for changes, so we did one revision. And that revision, I
think, I finished in a couple of days. And, and so...and that was sent on. I think
as Planning said, not all the delay was the drafting of the agreement, that there
was issues regarding the scope of work and things like that, for example. Again, I
don't get involved in what's the scope of work. I don't get involved in how much
money is appropriated for, for the grant. I get involved in drafting, as to form and
legality, the terms, terms of the grant, and was asked to, you know, take a look at
this grant and decided on my own to take a look at the grant in relationship with
other grants and the grants that I was drafting. . .and, and make sure that I was
satisfied that this grant was something that I could sign off on and, and feel
comfortable with. And certainly not nine months was taken to draft the
agreement.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Well. . .then, well, let me ask you this. When did you
finally sign off?
MR. HOPPER: . . . Well, technically I haven't...we, this has to go through a lot of
departments. I sign right before the Mayor signs, basically, so I haven't signed
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the document yet. I basically approve this for transmittal. I think the most recent
one was March 22 nd . I think I have my signature on that as far as forwarding the
document on.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. So...thank you. So, Ms. Aoki, when...or, or
Jeff, or whomever, when was the first agreement sent to the non-profit after you
found that the original one was not...needed some tweaking?
MS. AOKI: . . . I'll just reiterate that from August 4 th 'til January, that's when the
negotiations occurred between the scope, clarifying what we were going to do
within the scope, et cetera. The first contract was five months. . .five months of
emails, letters, phone calls, et cetera, of trying to negotiate the content of what
they were going to do for their grant.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Wow, it took that long . . . (laughter).. .
MS. AOKI: It took that long.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: . . . of going back and forth-MS. AOKI: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --with each other?
MS. AOKI: Yep.
. . . Yes, it did.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: . . . Who were the...how, how, how was this done?
You, personally, with the board?
MS. AOKI: Me, personally, with the board. Primarily, at the time, it was John Min who
was the Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay.
MS. AOKI: And then there were letters. Then there were emails sent to Erin Wade, our
small town planner, and she would let me know, and that got a little bit
complicated in and of itself. Essentially, I or Allan DeLima, in my office, are the
primary people responsible for handling grants. So there was a lot of
communication back and forth between myself and the board or the Executive
Director or the Chair. It was a combination of people.

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
March 24, 2010

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah, let me ask you this. In, in, in that five months
. . .(laughter). . . was there any conversation about. . .them getting money from
you . . . (laughter). . . to be able to pay-MS. AOKI: They-COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --for whatever?
MS. AOKI: They provided...they have provided, I think, two quarterly reports. And in
the first report and I believe in the second report, I don't have them with me, they
stated that they were, you know, doing this in good faith with the understanding
that they will get paid once the grant is signed. And that, we agreed to that. I
have no problem with that.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So in those, in those reports. . .you couldn't give them
that money that they had initially spent?
MS. AOKI: No, because as Budget Director stated, we're not allowed to distribute funds
until an agreement has been signed.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: A new grant agreement is signed.
MS. AOKI: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. I, I'm done for now. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair, I would simply ask this question. Since
there is supposedly a new agreement, would it not be possible...is it possible that
we be given the new agreement instead something like this that's. . .we're not
sure what's in, what's not, what's been scratched in...you know, kept in? Is that
possible?
. . . I know it's not, not a signed document, but I guess it is a grant agreement.
And, you know, if we know what exactly--right now, we don't know exactly what
we're discussing.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Uh-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I'm asking you, Mr. Chair.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: I understand that the agreement...grant agreement that you
have in your hands, the one that's all scratched out, that is the agreement that was
drafted by Corporation Counsel.
NOTE: Experienced interference to sound system.

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: . . .(inaudible). . .
NOTE: Experienced interference to sound system.

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Aiya! . . .(laughter). . .
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: . . .(laughter). . .
NOTE: Pause.

MR. HOPPER: . . . Mr. Chair, the, the revised grant agreement is...at this point, is not a
public document because it hasn't been finalized. Should the Department wish to
provide it, then, then I think it can be provided, but it's not something that it's
required to be. The, the, the. . .document with all of the changes and scratch-outs,
that was provided by Wailuku Main Street Association as their proposed changes.
Some of those changes were made. I believe most of them were not made to the
new grant agreement, and I think that's the letter that you had from. . .from Mayor
Tavares in your, in your packet that basically stated as such, that most of those
provisions were going to stay the same. So there's not going to be a. . .a very
substantial difference between the two documents.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well, I think, you know, and I grant you it's not a
public document and if the Department wants to provide it, Mr. Hopper, you say
they may. The reason I'm asking for that, Mr. Chair, is really simple. The whole
topic of discussion and our next item...you know, the item of the $182,250. . .the
grant agreement that is going to be signed would be similar for the next year one,
but I think that's something we should have in our hands to make a good logical,
informed decision. I mean if it's possible, I'd like, I'd like to request that. If not,
then fine. But you're saying, Mr. Hopper, if I'm correct, that, yes, much of
these. . .things that were scratched out were put back in, but there were a lot of
changes in forms--15 days thereafter, Resource Center, Inc.--I mean, you know,
they made a lot of changes which now you're saying some of that was
incorporated with verbiage. Now, I want to know what was and what wasn't.
And I guess that's my only question, Mr. Chair.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. I was advised that we're looking at the Fiscal Year 2011
Budget and the number that we're supposed to be talking is $182,000.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: ...eighty-two thousand five hundred, understood.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So maybe in a different venue. What we could do--and the
Chairman had asked our Legislative Analyst--is in regards to contracts. . .so that
we all have clear understanding the contracts of this County, how it's drafted,
what provisions that we need to look at, and, and, you know, hopefully there's
only one type of contract that is consistent within...throughout the Maui County.
So in regards to this discussion this afternoon, the Chair had let it go, not realizing
that we're looking at the Fiscal Year 2011 Budget. So, Members, I would request
that we concentrate on the 2011 request going forward and, and the Chair is
recommending a PAF, through our Legislative Analyst, in regards to contracts
itself.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Then going back to that,
since I asked the last question, and I will ask then. . .from the Department. . .with
the $182,250, what, why, why was the tremendous reductions versus...as you
stated most were 10 percent, there were a few 25 percent. But I wanted to know
what the Department's. . .rational for reducing that. And if, Ms. Aoki or
Mr. Hunt, either one of you want to respond to that, I would appreciate that? I
give choices now.
NOTE: Silence.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . Department?
NOTE: Silence.

MR. HUNT: . . . The Administration is. . .looking at. . .expenditure reductions as one of
the ways to balance the budget.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
MR. HUNT: In a number of non-profits, as I understand it, there were cuts anywhere
from 10 to 25 percent. This particular.. .grant was proposed by the
Administration as a 25 percent cut. Again, I don't speak for the Mayor's office,
but I'm trying to answer your question and not be evasive.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
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MR. HUNT: I understand the emphasis from the Administration, the Mayor's Office,
was to focus on core essential services--food, shelter, clothing.
. . . There was not...to be honest, there was not a specific analysis that...from the
Planning Department that, well, it should be...it should be a 75 percent grant this
year as opposed to others. So all I can answer, the best I can answer you is the
bigger picture.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. So the final decision is, if I'm hearing you
correctly, this amount of 182,250 was sent down by the Administration. It wasn't
something you guys put out there, it was the Administration. Is that what you're
saying?
MR. HUNT: This is our, this is our budget.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . So it's their budget presented to us, so they sent it
down. . in other words.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. And what I was trying to ascertain, more
than anything else, Mr. Chair, was the fact that who made the final decision, okay.
And you're indicating that this is your budget, but the Mayor looked it over and
said, yes, this is, this is good. Is that what you're saying?
MR. HUNT: I don't want to be in a position where the Department's going against the
Mayor's Office. I hope you can understand that.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Okay. Okay. I just trying to find out where
the decision came from, and I guess it's your...it's in our ballpark now, so I guess
we'll have to look at it. But thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Members, just for your information, you
know, in all we have 106 grants and the average amount of reduction of all 106 is
21 percent. So happened that the Wailuku Main Street is 25 percent. . .reduction.
As you know, we had a discussion on MEO Ala Hou Bus Program, which is
79 percent, as well as the air ambulance, which is 100 percent cut.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Right.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So it varies from zero to 100, I guess--
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COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . .(inaudible). . .
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: . . .(laughter). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --you know. So it's going to be our decisions. . .our decision
to, to put in the numbers for the Administration. So we can ask all the questions
that we want, but ultimate decision will be made by all nine of us.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, and thank you, Mr. Chair. I thank you for
that clarification. But when we did ask the departments...yesterday,
Transportation, since you brought those two up, there were rationales behind of it
by saying, well, they only had 15 trips all of last year-UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --and the Paratransit was kind of replacing it. So
that's all I was asking -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --is some explanation. I, I, I'm not trying to
micromanage. I'm just asking. You know, when we ask other questions other
departments gave us their rational, whether we agreed with it or not, but they at
least had a rational. And that's all I was asking. So if there is other than
somebody made the decision, whether it's 25 percent, 10 percent, that's all we're
asking. You know, I just wanted to know where the decision came from and what
rational was behind of it Like I said, Transportation gave us one reason and
whether we agreed with it or not, at least they had a reason. And that's all I'm
asking. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Again, you know, the Mayor makes the ultimate
decision. So . . .
. . . We're going to leave Main Street for a while . . . (laughter). . . Members, any
more...
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member...I'll start with you, Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Just to follow up on
Mr. Victorino's inquiry on the 182,000. I'm glad he brought that up because all
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reductions have been given specific reasons and all we heard just now was that,
oh, well, someone in the Mayor's Office, and they agreed. There's no specifics
why. And, and looking at the timetable provided for us and, and
Director [sic] Aoki agreed with most of it, and I'm going to read one portion, says
email from Wade, I presume that's Erin Wade, informing us K. Aoki submitted
$218,700 for WMSA budget, November 30 th , 2009. Okay. So, now, we, we look
at the proposal from the Mayor, 182, and it's only natural for us to question and
get a specific reason, and we're not getting that today. We're not getting that. So
that's why we have to ask these questions. And it may make people
uncomfortable, well, that's...we're just doing our jobs. And earlier it was stated
by the Director that I've made conclusions. I haven't made any conclusions yet,
Mr. Chairman, and I even offered the Department as a fair...to be fair. . .give
them their side...give us their side of the story with regards to this situation with
WMSA. And it's sad, Mr. Chair, that we have to spend this much time on this
particular issue. But in all my ten years on the Council, this is the first time I've
ever seen a letter like this, the March 4 th letter. It's...it just opens up a lot of
questions and issues that I feel compelled to ask. And we heard testimony from
very credible people in this community, you know, and it just seems odd that after
25 years all of a sudden now the directive goes to Corp. Counsel, okay, insert this,
that, that. Why now? So it's only natural to ask. And I don't see a reason why
people should get defensive about it, you know. So, anyway, I, I still have that
question, too. And so, ultimately it seems like somebody from the Mayor's
Office gave the directive to cut them down even further. And, and here I'm
getting a mixed message from the Department. They earlier praised the, you
know, the working relationship with Main Street, and they've told us that in other
previous meetings, and then when we talked about their positions, possibly
making some adjustments, they said, no, we're going to need more positions.
Why not save money and rely on Main Street? You know, they have a lot of
historical background that could assist the Department. I mean are we going to
get any guarantees by the personnel that we may consider hiring as, you know,
additional bodies, additional costs to the taxpayers when you already have, you
know, the resource here. You know, so I don't know...that's why I'm just having
mixed messages from the Department as to their relationship with Main Street.
They like the work, but they want to cut them even further. And as Ms. Perreira
attested earlier, they have done services free of charge for them to assist the
Department. So anyway... and, and I know we're going to have to leave this
eventually, but when you deem it appropriate, Mr. Chair, if we can get
Ms. Perreira? I don't maybe if not at this meeting, at some other time, but I think
it's only fair for them to respond to some of the statements that were made by the
Department.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you.
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. . . The Chair will consider that, and I think consideration for some kind response.
Tomorrow, you know, we do have OCC as well as OCS, but they're...we're
going to reschedule them. So this Chair is going to take public testimony
tomorrow morning only. And maybe at that time, if Ms. Perreira is here, then,
you know, we can have her provide more testimony. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, thank you, Chair. Chair. . .this tension between
Wailuku Main Street and the Planning Department is not new. It seems to have
manifested itself greatly this year in this Mexican standoff on the contract and all
this stuff. And, you know, I've been thinking about this for awhile. In fact, I
thought about it last year, and I didn't put it forward, and I thought, well, this is
the time that I should suggest it, and it may no, it may not go anywhere, but I have
a suggestion. This situation reminds me of a bad marriage. You have two
wonderful people, but they just have irreconcilable differences. And I don't see
how, no matter how we fix this contract, there's always going to be this tension
because we have two personalities that do not click very well together. Because
of the nature of the work that is involved here, and I've been looking carefully at
the deliverables. . .and many of the. . .deliverables are related to economic
revitalization of small towns. Is it possible that this grant could be housed
somewhere else? And then, you know, the ability to work in small towns and
determine what their needs are, and write reports, and then submit those to the
Planning Department for their use or consideration while they do their planning or
whatever? I think it might take away some of the tension because what you have
here is the Department who is paying them and is responsible for them, telling
them what to do; and yet they feel that their work needs to be independent and
community driven. So it creates this tension. And I don't think it's going to go
away. I don't care how we write this contract, or how many discussions we have,
or how long we sit here, it's a natural situation where we're going to have
opposing sides. So my suggestion is let's try to figure out where else we could
put this, if the parties were willing to agree. And if that's not agreeable, then
frankly I don't see a way out of this.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Baisa. Yeah, the Wailuku Main Street
Association should be working independently from the Planning Department. I
agree with you on that. Where can put it? A lot of suggestions, Economic
Development. They provide economic development -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Right.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: --for the County and maybe the working relationship would be
much improved if we do that or if we decide to do that. Okay. I'm going to leave
Wailuku Main Street, unless somebody has a burning question.
. . . Okay. Seeing none. . .you know, the County provide a lot of grants to a lot of
non-profits. But before I go into the other grants--especially to probably the next
one that's going to have a lot of discussion, is the Sea Grant--Members, on
Page 14-5. . .when you look at almost to the bottom of the page, maybe
three-fourths, total for 909...909010, Planning Administration, you see some
numbers there, the $984,000 that is being requested. Anybody has a problem
regarding. . .that area from 909010, Planning Administration to total for 909010
Planning Administration?
NOTE: Silence.

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: . . . Chair, I just...just a question.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Just to the Department. Under rentals,
that amount represents rentals for what?
MS. AOKI: One Main Plaza.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. And then there will be an increase
in rent, then going up this next fiscal year?
MS. AOKI: Yes, that's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: And that's a20. . .25,000. . .
MS. AOKI: Twenty-five thousand.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Is that an annual increase in rent?
MS. AOKI: Actually, it was actually higher. It was...we had originally estimated it to
be about $370,000.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Kaho'ohalahala. . .talk in the mic.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Oh.
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MS. AOKI: And fortunately, the Administration renegotiated all the contracts with
One Main Plaza and got it down. So it actually went down to 335. So-COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Okay.
MS. AOKI: --that was a good thing.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you for that clarification.
MS. AOKI: You're welcome.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions regarding that one
particular area? Chair has one fast one. The cost difference between 2009
and. . „Tune 30 th , 2011, I know you had a big increase in 2010 from 2009 and now
you going to go at least $100,000 less. Can you explain the differences between
'09, '11, and '10 and '11?
NOTE: Silence.

MS. AOKI: . . . Chair, it, it appears that for the fiscal year ending '09, I can't explain to
you why there's a negative for sub-object code 6132, Professional Services-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Uh-huh.
MS. AOKI: --because that has always been a high number. In addition, wait...in
addition, further down, the air and transportation. . .I believe with all the, the
hearings and everything that were happening with the General Plan Advisory
Committee, all the meetings that we were having on Molokai and Lanai, the...we
started getting requests for boards. If they were...for example, if BVA were to
have a case that was a Lanai request for a variance, the community wanted us to
go to...you know, rightly so, they wanted us to go to their island. So that
increased the transportation and airfare significantly. You also have an increase
in the rentals. I would have to get back to you on why that professional services
has a negative number, because I don't know why that's there. It's never
negative. So-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. If you could?
MS AOKI: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Members, and we go directly on the B Account to all of
the grants that we provide. So I, I think the next one that we have, oh, we may
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have some, lot of discussion is the University of Hawaii, Maui Sea Grant. So,
Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Chairman, I apologize I had one quick question on the
Planning Administration, on figures.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, I'm sorry. Okay. Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: You know, looking at the '09 appropriation, was
357,537; then for '10 was 1,052,485; now Fiscal Year '11 you're looking at
984,000. I would have thought that the operating budget would somewhere fall
along the lines in the 300 maybe 500,000 category. So there was 6,000
add...600,000 that was additional was requested for '10, and now you're reducing
only by. . .and it doesn't seem that much. So what is the...again, what is the
Department's intention of using this? Because now, you know, you're requesting
984 and, you know, the GPAC's work is done.
MS. AOKI: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: A good bulk of that is done. So why only 984-MS. AOKI: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --versus, say, 500 or 600?
MS. AOKI: I would like to say that I found my report that was submitted to the Budget
Office, and according to my numbers in 2009, we expended $609,359. So I don't
know where this 357,537...it just doesn't add up. For professional services that
year in 2009, we expended $106,697. So I would eliminate that negative 145,125.
And for the...for your information, in 2008, we expended 812,444. So it's
remained relatively. . .consistent, I mean with $100,000 here and there. So with
the...for travel, to address your question, Mr. Molina, with travel for this year,
what we're looking at is a lot of travel to Lanai and Molokai for the Island Plan
updates. I expect that there will be a lot of travel. And what's unfortunate, if you
want to put it that way, is with Lanai we end up having to charter a plane because
of the fact that, you know, we want to have the community meetings at night
when people can come. And those charters cost us just over $2,000 a trip. So
they're very, very costly. What I've instructed the Long Range Administrator to
look at is trying to incorporate meetings on Lanai...Lanai and Molokai say, if we
can, on a Saturday or a Friday, Saturday and... or if we can do one in the morning
on one island, and then use the charter... 'cause we did that for the GPAC
meetings. We would...we went to Lanai in the morning with a charter, then flew
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to Molokai for the afternoon/evening, and then came back. And that made it a
little bit cheaper. I don't know if we're going to be able to do that. We were
fortunate with the Lanai GPAC members that they could meet during the day.
You know, and I, I don't want to exclude the public if, if I can. So, in any case I
hope that answers your question--that it's going to be a costly year just for those
two plans for travel.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. That helps answer my question.
So, for the record, we have to adjust that figure on the '09 expenditure.
MS. AOKI: Uh-huh. Right.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: That's what brought it on . . . (inaudible). . . so, yeah.
MS. AOKI: Yeah, I, I was...that shocked me.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: All right. Thank you for that clarification. Thank you,
Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Yeah, Ms. Aoki was going to. . .relook at those
numbers and provide us with some information. So, Members, as far as the grants
themselves on the B Account, the Chair would like to kind of focus on the
University of Hawaii Maui Sea Grant at this time. If, Member Victorino, you
have any questions?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I'll yield to Mr. Nishiki, 'cause he-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --had his hand up and...
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No. No. No. I, I...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, go ahead, go ahead. You go first.
ALL: . . .(laughter). . .
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I had something else to deal with-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh.
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --the impact fee study. But, anyway, on that Sea
Grant. . .why was it left out? Seemed like the general public had a concern that
this area needed. . .to be addressed, and, and, and it seemed like ...
. . . why is, why is it that we don't have that put in?
NOTE: Silence.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . Department?
NOTE: Silence.

MR. HUNT: . . . When we first proposed this cut. . .we had a number of staff people in
our own Department come to us and express concerns. So we did not propose this
cut lightly.
. . . Again, we. . .are. . .caught in a very dire budget situation. And so, we were
In this
trying to find places where we could make cuts.
particular. . .position...well, let me back up.
This, this position provides
scientific. . .and educational information to our planners and the public.
And. . .that's certainly a valuable position to our community, an island in the
Pacific. We don't dispute that, just as we don't dispute non-profits that bring
value to our community But with the budget situation the way it is, the logic was
this is essentially a State position. They, the position does not perform actual
permitting. . .though to be fair, the position relieves the burden off of people who
do permitting and, indirectly, you, you could probably conclude that there's going
to be enhanced permitting, streamlined permitting by having the position. But
essentially, we are also cutting a Planner I, an Inspector, a GIS Intern, and since
this was a State position and not doing permitting. . .we felt that. . .it was
justifiable to cut it.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. Um-MR. HUNT: Again, we don't take this lightly, but again this is our proposal and...
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So did the State give funding last year, fully?
MR. HUNT: They gave 20 percent.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. And, and you heard the gentleman from MCC
said that they had, like, what was it, Mr. Chairman, six months?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Six months left. Yeah.
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: They could...they had six months funding for...your
thoughts about that, Jeff?
MS. AOKI: I can answer that. Yeah. Essentially what happened was we entered into a
contract with them for Fiscal Year '10. At the time, Zoe. . .Zoe Norcross-Nu`u,
who held the position resigned, so there was nobody in that position. So you had,
you had a contract, but nobody in it. Around September, October we notified Sea
Grant and told them that it may be possible that they would not get funding for
Fiscal Year '11. We again told them, I believe it was in November. There was
still nobody in the position. So it was, it was easier because there wasn't anybody
in there. Well, when January came around, and it was decided that we would, you
know, hold off on funding this--again, I look at it similarly to a freeze and that
hopefully one day when we do have the money, we can come back in and help
support this. I was notified that Sea Grant had in fact now offered a job to a
woman, and I expressed my concern about that because I said does she know that
come July 1, there will be no funding. They advised me that they told her that,
you know, funding was in jeopardy, and it wouldn't continue. I also learned that
they advised her that she should go back and see if she could get her job back
with NOAA if she wanted to because of the fact that she would come here from
the mainland and possibly be unemployed. She was offered her job back by
NOAA. She declined it and accepted the position with the University of Hawaii,
knowing full well that come July 1 there may not be funding. I also learned from
Mr. Okimoto that they are trying to get funding effective July 1 to help. I also
learned, which was very interesting to me, as he mentioned Hawaii County also
has a Sea Grant agent. Hawaii County does not provide any funding for their
agent. It is completely funded by UH Sea Grant. So, you know, take that for
what it's worth. This is no reflection on the person that's in the position. It was
just a decision, as Mr. Hunt stated, that we had to look at the big picture, and how
are we going to make cuts, and what's going to hurt the least. That's not to say
that it doesn't hurt, because it does. And we hope that one day we can try to help
fund this again. It seemed to me that Mr. Okimoto. . .felt pretty confident that he
would be able to find funding for this position. So, you know, just as we, you
know, we had some of our planners' approach some non-profits out there, Maui
Coastal Land Trust, to try to see if there would be any way to help get funding.
You know, like you say be creative, try to see if we can get funding somehow for
her. But in the end, it's a UH position. . .and it's, it's, it would have been
$86,872. That's what their grant proposal was for.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: For Maui County's share?
MS. AOKI: Maui County's share is $86,872.
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. Thank you.
MS. AOKI: You're welcome.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So, Ms. Aoki. . .so we can get the money back?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: . . . (laughter).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: We haven't disbursed the money to-MS. AOKI: We have, right, exactly. So what happens is when the contract expires,
whatever monies are remaining, turn...you know, are Carryover/Savings, that's
correct.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Fine. Thank you. Would you know the amount?
86,000?
MS. AOKI: I would say it's roughly half of the 86,000. I, I could tell you exactly how
much it is, but it's roughly that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Fine.
MS. AOKI: Maybe a little bit more.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Kaho'ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah, thank you, Chair. You know, I am
looking at the . . .
. . . Finance Director's quarterly report and under the Planning Department
Section, and this would be expenditures for. . .the Section 5, which is Grant
Programs. Okay? And all, all I have is to ask you is that. . .in your Planning
Department, you have the Hawaii Ocean Research Management Planning CZM.
Is this the item, line item for that position?
NOTE: Silence.

MS. AOKI: . . . I think that's a different...
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: It would be Page 9 on, on the Section 5,
on. . .5B for Grant Programs.
MS. AOKI: I, I don't have that in front of me, so I'm just going to go off...there was a
grant. . .I'm trying to find it. The UH Sea Grant is one line item, and then there
was another line item where...I'm sorry. . .what-COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: . . . (inaudible).. .
MS. AOKI: --was the name of it?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA:
coastal zone. . .Coastal Zone
Management. . .items, and then you have a Hawaii Ocean. . .it's an abbreviated, it
looks like Research Management Planning '08/CZM.
MS. AOKI: . . . That was actually something that was funded in Fiscal Year '09, and
it's...yeah, it was a study, but I...if you wanted more information on that
particular item, I could get the administrator down here.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: I just trying to clarify if this is, in fact,
the position that we're talking about?
MS. AOKI: No, it is not.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No, it's not.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. It's not.
MS. AOKI: It is not.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.
MS. AOKI: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sol?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: We're going to cover that. . .in regards to the CZM. . .later.
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. No, I, but I'm looking for this
particular position, that's . . . (inaudible).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The Sea Grant?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yes. So I'm just wondering where,
because it's almost an 80/20 kind of split here, you know, where we are looking at
funding 80 and there's a 20 percent that's, that's divided apart from this. So it
just seemed...so I was just asking if that's where the money gets put.
MS. AOKI: Yeah. Right. No, that was one particular line item for Fiscal Year '09; and
also in Fiscal Year '09 there is another line item entitled, UH Maui Sea Grant.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. So just so, so it's clear then. . .Sea
Grant received the funding for this position at the 20 percent?
MS. AOKI: From...
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: That's the match, right?
MS. AOKI: Correct. The, Maui County was providing 80 percent -COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Eighty percent.
MS. AOKI: --and then UH, through Federal funds through NOAA, provided 20 percent.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: The 20 percent. And the real gap was
because the position was vacant, and they did not hire that position . . .
MS. AOKI: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: . . . for a period of six months.
MS. AOKI: It was vacant for about six, six months.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: So the person that's in place now is only
in place for six months.
MS. AOKI: Correct. The remainder of the contract agreement, which ends June 30 th .
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. But that's not implemented by our
agreement at all then, because we did not engage into that?
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MS. AOKI: We have a signed agreement with the University for a one-year contract
from July 1 st of 2009 -COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Nine.
MS. AOKI: --through June 30 th , 2010. So within that year, they have $87,000, but it's
for a 12 month contract.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.
MS. AOKI: So once that contract expires, it expires.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. And then what they're asking is
for us to consider looking at an extension for six more months based on their
20 percent then?
MS. AOKI: They're looking at a six month extension based on the fact that six months
of it wasn't used in the beginning. So they want to extend it the other way
around.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: And then you said if we don't expend
that, then the money just goes into the . . .
MS. AOKI: It-COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: . . . Carryover then?
MS. AOKI: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: So there would be a portion of their
20 percent, and then a portion of our 80 percent, then?
MS. AOKI: They, they essentially...well, we don't get that 20 percent. They bill us, and
we give them the money. So their 20 percent would be, I guess, 10 percent
because six, ten... six months has been used.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Half of that. Okay.
MS. AOKI: But they keep that money. They haven't given it to us. We pay them.
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah, and then, Chair, I just want to, you
know, note for the record that the Planning Committee did bring Ms. Nu`u-MS. AOKI: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: --to help the, the Council understand
some of the issues that we would be faced with in terms of sea level rise. And as
a resource to the Council, it was very important because we're looking at areas
that are being considered for permitting and development that might be in
the...inundation zones. So I'm just real concerned that this is a vital resource, I
think, especially for us in Maui County where a lot of our areas are near sea level
to begin with. And should we not take the opportunity to continue this kind of
information and resource to any and all of the planning and policy positions that
we're responsible for, for working with, that we may be remiss in, in not having
to . . .(laughter). . . give due consideration or serious consideration to some of
these areas just because we're lacking that. So, so is the Department going to
now accommodate that kind of resource since you're saying that we're not going
to be able to fund this?
MS. AOKI: I think that's a good question. What I'd like to make clear is Sea Grant is
still going to exist. They're in Honolulu. As he stated, he has 20-some-plus
employees. We just may not have an agent especially, you know, located here on
Maui, but the resources are still available to us--just as much as we use DLNR,
NOAA. You know, our planners contact them if they need information. We
work hand-in-hand with DLNR a lot, Dolan Eversole, et cetera. So if, if they're
not able to find funding, which I...you know, I feel confident that they will, just
based on the conversations that I've had with him, we...you know, we may not
actually have a person physically here, but the organization still exists, and we
still have the tools to, to use and, and contact them for information.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. And I think, Chair, what's also
out in the general public is this idea that, that there is monies remaining for the
position, as was testified to last night in Kihei, and the request is being made of
the County and the Council to reinstate that funding. So I think we need to be
really clear about your position so that becomes clear to the public about what
that truly represents in terms of where the monies are, what's remaining-MS. AOKI: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: --how this is funded, and up until nine. .
.now, we had no way of trying to respond to any of that that was raised last night
in public testimony. So . . .
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MS. AOKI: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: . . . I suspect that we're going to be
getting other testifiers as we continue our community meetings. So I'd like us to
be very clear about what, what this is involving so that we can pretty much put
that in the proper context so that people understand themselves. So. . .okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: . . .(laughter). . . Do you have that
capacity within the Planning Department, then?
MS. AOKI: I advised them that, no, the contract expires. It expires as of June 30 th , and
in order for me to, to fund the position, I would again need it as a line item in the
budget, just as it exists in Fiscal Year '09, '10, et cetera. So that's what I advised
them.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: So the answer is "no", then.
MS. AOKI: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Okay. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Let me ask you this question. Are you done,
Mr. Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So if, if a resource person is required, can we have a resource
person to come to Maui from Honolulu, should we request a person?
MS. AOKI: That's an excellent suggestion. There is...it's happened before where we've
actually paid for people to come to Maui to provide us with training or expertise.
That would be cost effective, I'm sure, for us to spend $150 to bring that person
over.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So what was the. . .duties of that particular person from Sea
Grant while she was here?
. . . Her responsibilities?
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. . . She didn't report to the County, right?
MS. AOKI: Yeah. . .somewhat. I mean she...if you...their contract or their proposal
provides for providing assistance to the County, to the Planning Department, to
other agencies, not just the Planning Department. It also calls for them
providing...being...providing instruction to classes at MCC. So that's probably
that 20 percent that comes in. They, they provided...that position, like Jeff Hunt
mentioned, is more of a technical person, a scientist, if you will. So they provide
assistance to the planners. Again, but it's not like that program is disappearing,
so you'd still have the opportunity, if you needed it, to contact them.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Member Baisa-COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --question on that? Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, you guys...have any more questions on
the Department's grants that they provide to non-profits?
NOTE: Silence.

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Mr. Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala, followed by Member Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah, no the, the real basic questions I
have are really along the lines of why you're making the drastic cuts to some of
these. And. . .if I look at 14-8. . .my question is the same for all three of those
items, because you're now eliminating them altogether. So what does that mean
in terms of...well, let's take the last item with the. . .the enforcement.
MS. AOKI: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: When you cut that amount, what does it
mean for your Department in terms of enforcement for the...
MS. AOKI: Uh-huh.
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: . . .(inaudible). . .
MS. AOKI: Well, last year what we did was we had requested $10,000 to see if we could
try to do enforcement by getting a credit card. We have used it and what we've
done is we, we feel that we'll be able to incorporate it into our Operation's budget
rather than it being a specific line item. It's been roughly about 4 to $5,000. If
we need to use it again, or, or do some sort of stealth, if you will, enforcement, we
feel that we can, we can cover it within our operations. So it didn't necessarily
mean we need to be a line item.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. And then in the item above that,
Environmental Assessment-Planning?
MS. AOKI: What that was for was for the Palauea lots. There was a request from the
Planning Commission a few years ago for the County to do further studies on two
lots that we owned. There was also a request by the Planning Commission to
consider and do a study to see if we could buy more of the lots down there. So
this was just a one-time sort of exercise for doing more cultural studies for the
environmental assessment. And this has to do also with their request... some of
the landowners request to do a Change in Zoning, so...and community plan
amendment, so it was sort of our share to help with that because we owned two of
the lots.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. And then the Integrated
Socioeconomic Land Use item?
MS. AOKI: That item, again, was a one-time request to update the socioeconomic
forecast as required by law. We were, the Planning Department is required to
update it every two years. And so, we came in and asked for funding for that
because the study was last done in 2006 or '07, I believe.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Every two years?
MS. AOKI: Yeah, every two years . . .(laughter). . . And, again, these numbers will be
used with the update of the community plans for Molokai, Lanai, West Maui,
Hana.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. And then if I can go back to 14-7,
then. And then you have an item at the top of that page that's under Professional
Services, a reduction from 100,000 to 15,000.
MS. AOKI: Right.

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
March 24, 2010

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Can you explain that?
MS. AOKI: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Yeah.
MS. AOKI: Again for the General Plan Update, what we were looking at. . .previous, for
last year and the years before was with Countywide Policy Plan as well as the
Maui Island Plan, there was a lot of printing costs involved. You all know how
big your binders are and how many binders you've gotten, the travel involved. So
with Fiscal Year '11, the contracts for Lanai, Molokai, and Hana have already
been, have already been done. So there's...that was done, like, in '07 and '08.
So there's...the 15,000 is just for general provisions for travel, for
printing--which will be for these three island...the three community plans. So
there's just not a huge need for as much money.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Chair, that's all the questions I
have. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah, I want to go back to 14-6, it's the second item
from the bottom, 909077, Impact Fee Study. Mr. Chairman, I know that this
study has changed its scope. It was, at one time, going to address a certain area,
and then I think the Council changed it to include the entire County, maybe or, or
maybe Maui island. But we paid big bucks. Last year, no money was spent, I
don't know why, maybe the, the, the study ended. But this is an area if the study
has been done, in where we can generate revenue. So what is happening with this
study? Is it done and that's why no money is being asked now?
MS. AOKI: The entire contract has been completed. From what I have here, from my
Long Range Division, they've contracted with Wilbur Smith & Associates to
prepare the study. Work is currently underway and the expected timeframe for
completion of the study is December 2011. If you'd like further information on
the study, I can ask Long Range Administrator, John Summers, to come down and
give you more information.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Well...yes, because if it's now going to take
another...or the end of this year. . .2011, then why, why...how come it's taking
that long?
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . Before you answer, is that the Traffic Impact Study?
MS. AOKI: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Okay. Ms. Aoki, if you can respond?
MS. AOKI: . . . I, I would prefer if Mr. Summers could answer, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Fine.
. . . Joining us is Mr. Summers.
NOTE: Pause while Mr. Summers approached the floor.

MR. SUMMERS: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
. . . The, the project scope was expanded also to address transit services. So the
Department is currently working with our consultant team, Wilbur Smith &
Associates to recalibrate the traffic impact fee model and develop the level of
service standards so we can develop these traffic impact fees. The December
dates, it's a conservative estimate. . . but I think it's a reasonable estimate in
terms of completion of that project.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: . . . You said that it was expanded to address transit
corridors?
MR. SUMMERS: Well, no, but transit. . .transit impact fees. The, the previous work
that the Department had done was purely focused on roadways -COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Right.
MR. SUMMERS: --and there was strong desire to expand the scope so that we could do
it in more in a multi-modal fashion so it, it does now address transit services as
well as roadways.
. . . So we're in the process of doing that. If we do pickup State roadways, it will
have to be reviewed by the State Department of Transportation--so that, that takes
a little time as well.
NOTE: Silence.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . Let me ask you this. You done, Mr. Nishiki?
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah, I need...yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. When we first started the Traffic Impact Study, was for
a certain community, I think it was Lahaina; then we included Kihei, South Maui.
Is that the same vendor that's doing the transit study?
NOTE: Silence.

MR. SUMMERS: . . . No, this is a different vendor.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So the impact study for roadways. . .is that completed?
MR. SUMMERS: When they, when the brought transit into the model, they had to make
some adjustments to the roadway model because it's an integrated model. So the
roadway and the transit go together. It's one model. And-CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . .(inaudible). . .
MR. SUMMERS: --and they're calibrating the model at this time.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, I think we took up this maybe five, six years ago and,
and, you know, it's been ongoing. And what we missing out is, you know,
the. . .the fees that we could generate from those impacts. So. . .the transit as well
as the traffic need to be. . .in one study to be more comprehensive in regards to
impact fees.
MR. SUMMERS: That's, that's correct.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Mr. Chairman?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Uh. . .do you know when it's going to be completed, if ever?
MR. SUMMERS: The model itself should be calibrated and the fee schedule developed
in the spring of 2011, and then it will take some time to. . .to develop the
ordinances to make sure that...there was a lot of discussion in the previous
update. We had six different ordinances developed, one for each community
plan. There was a lot of concerns about the confusion and the complexity of that.
So in order to do this, we're going to also have to meld those together into one
comprehensive ordinance, as well as add the transit language to the study so that
our enabling ordinance comports with, with the work that the Council desired. So

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
March 24, 2010

the study should be done in the spring, but there's going to be some work required
by the Council in terms of the ordinance update as well.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So the fees for this traffic impact and transit impact, would it
be consistent amongst all of the community plan or, or each community plan is
going to have a different impact fee?
MR. SUMMERS: That was one of the big issues that was discussed during the previous
update effort. We're going to come up with, with a menu of options so we can
look at the administrative feasibility and the fact of an islandwide fee as well as
fees that are specific to each community plan region. That way, we'll have sort of
the ultimate flexibility in making sure that we adopt a program that achieves the
most effective outcome for the County.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Mr. Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I, I, I, I can't believe that the Council directed you to do
this now and expand it to the transit area?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Not the transit.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Or is that you guys that made that decision, because
whoever you paid for this study perhaps wanted to pump more money and get
more money from us?
MR. SUMMERS: No, there was, there was a lot of public testimony during the previous
effort that transit should be incorporated into the study. So the Council expressed
a strong desire to have that done, and that's why it's being done.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Anyway, Mr. Chairman, I...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Maybe I forgot, but, you know I-COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: This started...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --this the first time I've heard it.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: This, this started, God, 15 years ago maybe, and I know
that, you know. . .I didn't deal with it, but then I know that in the course of
Councils it was made to whereby you didn't want a specific area, so you did a
whole islandwide, but then to hear now that we're not going to be able to deal
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with it yet is pretty alarm, not "alarming", but of concern that we're spending all
this money, and it's taking this long, Mr. Summers.
. . . Is that...is this normal?
NOTE: Silence.

MR. SUMMERS: . . . I think, you know...
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: You know, we haven't given funding in last year nor
this year. I mean, obviously, the, the study was, was, was not completed, but
continues on and the money was given in '09.
MR. SUMMERS: . . . Right. As you'll, as you'll recall you weren't on the Council at
the time, but we did have a study prepared. There was lengthy debate on the
previous study, and there was a desire that if we're going to do, we should do the
whole island, we should do different community plan regions, we should expand
it to transit. So the Department followed that direction. It's going to be, it's
going to be a heavy lift. You know, these are not easy things to do-COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah.
MR. SUMMERS: --and the study has to be very, very well done to avoid any legal
challenges on the basis of rational nexus or fairness arguments. And then it's-COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: . . .(inaudible). . .
MR. SUMMERS: And then there's going to have to be some ordinance work to make
sure that when we adopt this fairly. . .controversial. . .law that we're well set up,
both in terms of the study and the enabling ordinance.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Mr. Chairman?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: It's not like Maui County is so way ahead of the curve
that this is the initial test. God, give me a break. You got so many municipalities
that have impact fees on roads and everything else going on. So it's not like
we're, we're reinventing the wheel. And that's what bothers me. And that's why,
like I said, the question mark of why is it taking so long and in the meantime
we're losing all these revenues. And. . .you know, I don't, I don't know why
he's...you know, of course, I don't understand half of what he's saying about . . .
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UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: . . .(laughter). . .
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: . . . an ordinance. I know we're going to have to pass
an ordinance, but why is it going to be much harder now? You know, obviously it
seems...he seems to indicate it's because we included these transit. . .whatever,
corridors or fees or wanting this to be addressed, but why do we need to do that?
It just seems like it got more confusing and, and, and, and, and because of this we
have no ordinance right now, and yet we're spending all this money. So anyway
there's my disgust.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: . . .(laughter). . .
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Nishiki, you're so right.
. . . Let me ask you before I leave the . . .(laughter). . . this Traffic Impact
. . .(laughter). . . Study. Presently, as you read, as the Planning Department with
the Planning Commission. . .review plans, do we impose a proposed impact fee,
traffic impact fee for each of the developments?
NOTE: Silence.

MR. SUMMERS: . . . As I understand it, yes, we...you know, that's been a standard
practice.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: We still do?
MR. SUMMERS: That's my understanding. Director Hunt is more familiar with the
permit reviews that are being done, so if he wants to clarify that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Yeah, because when I was on the Planning
Commission, we didn't have any traffic impact fees, and we imposed impact fees
for developers.
NOTE: Pause while Mr. Hunt approached the floor.

MR. HUNT: . . . Because we don't have an ordinance that establishes a, a fee with a
nexus, a rational nexus, as John alluded to, the Department doesn't impose an
actual dollar fee. We work with developers to do "traffic mitigation", is how I
would describe it--demand management--so that perhaps they change the
schedules of workers, they do shuttles for visitors, provide rental cars, et cetera.
So I would say we mitigate traffic, that we don't have a dollar impact fee.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: So there's no impact fees based on the number of units in the
development?
MR. HUNT: Pardon me?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So there's no impact fees based on the number of, number of
units in the development?
MR. HUNT: Not that I'm aware of. Again, we, we mitigate. . .with traffic facilities,
improvements at intersections, signalization, turn lanes, the widening of roads
sometimes, parking-CHAIR PONTANILLA: So that's a part of the approval process? But, anyway, I'm just
getting off the 2011 proposed budget, but something that we need to look at.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: . . .(laughter). . .
MR. HUNT: The problem is, again, as John said, is we have to have a legal basis to
come up with a fee. It has to be rational. We can't just pull a figure out of the air
and start telling each developer, requiring each developer-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, I, I think we all understand that the ordinance need to be
gotten, and I think we all, we started maybe five, six years ago. . .but prior to
coming to the Council we were imposing impact fees on the number of units as,
you know, being developed because we didn't have an ordinance in regards to
impact fees. And some of the developers, I think the majority of them, agreed to
that impact fees. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I'm trying to reach back four years ago. I think Mr. Hunt
probably remembers when I was first elected to the Council and I became the
Planning Committee Chair. And I looked in the items that were in the Planning
Committee, and there was this Traffic Impact Study. And I was appalled because
it was so old . . .(laughter). . . It was a pending issue that had been there for
20-some-odd years, and I said, oh, my goodness, let's work on this, this needs to
be done 'cause we need to get this money. And we tried. We brought it out, and
we looked at it, and it got torn apart because it was based on a study that was not
adequate. I think we had hired Kaku & [sic] Associates, and they had done a
study, it was flawed, it didn't have the information it. . .we couldn't create the
rational nexus because we were trying to create traffic impact fees for all the areas
of Maui, not just for the ones that they started out with. So we funded, we gave
money to improve that study, and it was going to be done in concert with
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somebody else who was doing a study, I can't even remember who it was. But I
haven't heard anything anymore. And, you know, if we had done that, we
wouldn't be sitting here looking for money and worrying about 80,000, and 2,000,
and who has a position and who doesn't because we would have all this money.
We have millions and millions of dollars sitting out there that we cannot collect.
So I think it's something that we better make a priority and get it done. We, you
know, we cannot go on this way. Mr. Nishiki, when we started this budget
review, you said you wanted us to concentrate on looking for new money
. . . (laughter). . . and quit worrying about the shrinking pie, but you wanted a
bigger pie. Well, let me tell you, this is going to be a super pie if we can get it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . Thank you, Member Baisa.
MR. HUNT: Mr. Chairman?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: . . . (laughter).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Hunt?
MR. HUNT: To clarify, the County, particularly the Council through your conditional
zoning, has required pro rata share of traffic improvements, particularly in 670
and the Makena development. But it's not quite the same as the traffic
development impact fee that the Department would levy at the SMA permit level
or something like that. So maybe that's some of the confusion.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Thank you. Members, any more question
regarding the grants area that we provide? If not, the last area that...well...
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Chair, just...Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: For Account C -COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --by the way for Account C-COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --which is equipment-COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Just one more --
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: --one more question, if we can, on this
same section? Just some clarification on 14-5. . .and then you have Coastal
Erosion Rate Maps Update. Can you explain that change?
NOTE: Pause.

MS. AOKI: . . . Sorry, I was looking at the wrong page.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Fourteen-five.
MS. AOKI: Yeah, 14-5. We have...the $100,800 was to update the coastal erosion maps
for South Maui and West Maui, specifically. We do need to update the other
maps, but because of the financial situation that we're in right now, we've
postponed asking for money for those updates. So...
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. So you completed South Maui
and...
MS. AOKI: This, this money is allotted to update the South Maui and West Maui erosion
rate maps.
NOTE: Silence.

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: . . . And then to complete the rest of...
MS. AOKI: Yeah, we would need to complete East Maui, North Maui, et cetera, the
entire island, but because of the fmancial constraints that we have this year, we've
postponed asking for money for those.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: And do you know right off the cuff what
that amount would be?
MS. AOKI: I would say it would probably be similar to...this is for two districts. It
might be a little less because if you have less erosion, so to speak, on East Maui
you may not have as much as an erosion problem, and I don't know if they
actually have the data for that. So. . .I'm sorry, I don't have an exact figure, but I
would say it's roughly about the same, if not less.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you, Chair.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Uh-huh. Okay. Thank you. Anybody got questions on
Account C? The Department is looking to lease equipment for $40,000, and this
is an ongoing copier lease. Questions?
. . . Seeing none, okay, we're going into the last area. . .Grant Revenue, and I
think...let me go from the top. Anybody got questions for. . .Certified Local
Government Program?
. . . And this is a request that we. . .asked the State to provide funding to the
County.
MS. AOKI: Right. And it's actually through Federal funds, so it's on a reimbursement
basis. So there's no match. We actually get reimbursed 100 percent.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. When, when we do the work or...
MS. AOKI: Right. Correct. Questions on the first one, Members?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: How about the second one, Coastal Zone Management
Program?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: . . . Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Is this...now, this has nothing to do with...these,
these are all the positions we fund in, within our Planning Department, right?
MS. AOKI: That is correct.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And these...this is what we're refunded. . .the
salaries? Are we refunded the salaries? Not "refunded", that's not a word.
We're reimbursed.
MS. AOKI: Reimbursed, that's correct.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Reimbursed.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. I said refunded. I apologize.
MS. AOKI: So this is to cover those positions that are listed on Page 14-11.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. And then the operational is directly for that
part of the operation?
MS. AOKI: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. So we don't put any money in as far as the
County is concerned?
MS. AOKI: We actually do. . .do in the sense of an in-kind match -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Okay.
MS. AOKI: --which we've always met. We've never had a problem doing that.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MS. AOKI: So we, we don't actually have to come up with funds-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
MS. AOKI: --it's just that we have in-kind, which is basically all the other permits that
the other planners are doing that are related to the SMA. . .or programs, just for
example, the update of the maps that we did, that we asked for funding last year,
that can be used towards the match, the in-kind match.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Okay. And so, I was looking at...the
41,000...$41,052, that 18 percent reduction. Is that an elimination of a position?
Is that what that...the less -MS. AOKI: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --you know, from 2010 to 2011. I'm sorry, real
quickly.
MS. AOKI: I can explain that.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Please.
MS. AOKI: For position...this is on Page 14-11. For position PC-0047, the position was
originally a Planner V, and we downgraded it to a Planner III. So, therefore, you
have the $20,000 savings in salary, and the same thing for the position 0030.
Again, it was just a reallocation of the position that we downgraded from a V to a
III.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Okay. So that's how we came up with that
savings. Okay.
MS. AOKI: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I just, you know, wanted to know. Thank you.
MS. AOKI: You're welcome.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. One. . .fast question. I know we had a lot of
discussion in regards to State matching and the possibility, rather than the State do
matching to, to match the Federal side that. . .the possibility of the County doing
the matching.
MS. AOKI: That was originally requested from us last year. There, they were worried
that they weren't going to be able to get Federal funds to replace the State
matching funds; however...and so, they were asking the counties to see if we
could do that. That's no longer the case. They've stated that they do have the
Federal funds to cover the grant.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Going forward?
MS. AOKI: Correct, for Fiscal Year '10 and '11.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. So. . .no guarantees on '12 then?
MS. AOKI: Not at this point, but as Director Hunt has spoken more with the Office of
Information Practices, we haven't been advised that there would be a problem in
Fiscal Year '12.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. The other hard--
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MS. AOKI: . . .(inaudible). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --question that I have for you . . . (laughter). . . is that. . .out of
the, how many positions, three positions, four positions, four, right?
MS. AOKI: That's correct.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Are the four civil service positions or are they LTA type
where...meaning because its grant funded that it's limited term?
MS. AOKI: I think we've had this question before and from...and I would rather have
Personnel answer that question, but from my understanding is that they're not
considered limited term. They're considered -CHAIR PONTANILLA: I understand that they are civil servants.
MS. AOKI: --civil servants, County employees. That's my understanding.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Maybe going forward, you may have to think about this
one here, how do we get them back into...as County employees? Maybe not this
year, but, you know, following '12, '13. Okay, Members...Member Nishiki,
questions?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: I have questions, but I'll probably want
to put it in writing.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: For the Planning Department.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Members, that concludes the review for the Planning
Department. And, again, you know, if you do have questions in regards to the
Planning Department, if you can forward it to the Chairman, and we'll try and get
some responses from Administration. This evening we do have a meeting at
Hannibal Tavares Center, Pukalani, starting at 6:30. For tomorrow, I understand
that we have the Liquor Department that's going to be with us, and. . .I don't
anticipate going long on the Liquor Department because they're -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Sufficient.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --one of those enterprise departments. So we'll be taking
public testimony at that time and, again, you know, the Chair will offer Wailuku
Main Street Association the opportunity to provide us with more testimony
tomorrow. So...I'm sorry? Yeah, Liquor is tomorrow. And then tomorrow night
we go to Hana, East Maui at 6:30. Staff, what is the mode of transportation for
tomorrow?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: . . .(inaudible). . .
MS. REVELS: There's a mix of arrangements for Hana. Some people are going charter
and some people are driving.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Fine.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: With that then, Members...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Real quickly. You know, if I, if I make a
mistake or I...I like to correct it so that the public understands something. Earlier
we were talking about the national flood... if you turn to Page 10, um, 16-6, on
your, your. . .Program -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Program.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --okay, and the very top. The issue that I had
brought up about the rate, I was correct. It does not change the rate. But,
however, Maui County is very unique because we use the National Flood
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Insurance Program community rating system. This rating system basically gives
the homeowner a discount, okay, and that's where the difference was. You were
right, but you saying rate and that was wrong, and I was saying the area, but by
changing the classification of area you get a discount. And because we are the
only county that does that, we were able to realize a 10 percent on your flood
insurance. So that the people out there understand, that you guys have done a
yeoman's job in that respect. You know, give you credit where credit is due
because we do attack you when, you know, you don't do what we think is right.
So, anyhow, anyhow...so I just wanted to get that, Mr. Chair, that that, that
community rating system is a discount system, okay, and that saves anybody who
has flood insurance 10 percent versus any other county in the State. And I want
to thank the, the Administration and as far as the Planning Department for their
yeoman work in that area. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. At this time, the Chair would like to thank
Mr. Pablo, Ms. Aoki, Mr. Hunt, Corporation Counsel, and Staff for a long day
. . . (laughter). . . The meeting of the Budget and Finance Committee. . .for today
is now adjourned. . . . (gavel).. .
ADJOURN: 3:55 p.m.
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